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Five Years’ Financial Summary
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2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

FTAERT FAT FAET FAT FAT

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000

Revenue 994,589 552,880 201,541 68,350 1,682,786
Profit attributable to the

owners of the Company 148,700 47,696 572,899 606,619 440,660

Dividends 45,035 135,910 129,348 115,908 90,435

Earnings per share (HK$) 0.23 0.08 0.99 1.10 0.86

Dividends per share (HK$) 0.07 0.22 0.22 0.20 0.17

Dividend cover (time) 3.29 0.36 4.50 5.50 5.06

Assets and liabilities

Fixed assets (Note (a)) 6,701,336 7,127,240 7,698,535 7,132,876 5,676,053

Other non-current assets 176,292 201,472 187,652 182,030 145,437

Net current assets 1,232,161 655,203 402,637 553,436 1,537,156

Non-current liabilities (1,059,050) (1,251,999) (1,459,115) (1,325,913) (1,592,942)

Net assets 7,050,739 6,731,916 6,829,709 6,542,429 5,765,704

Net assets per share (HK$) 10.80 10.52 11.47 11.48 10.85

Note:

and equipment.

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED £t (%8) AR25 | Annual Report 2021 4£##
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General
Meeting will be held at 35/F., Central Plaza, 18 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong on Wednesday, the 17 day of
November 2021 at 3:00 p.m. for the following purposes:

1. To receive and consider the Statement of Accounts and
the Reports of the Directors and Auditors for the year
ended 30 June 2021;

2. To declare final dividend;
3. To elect Directors and fix their remuneration;
4. To appoint Auditors and fix their remuneration; and

5. As special business to consider and if thought fit, pass

the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions:

(A) That:

(i) subject to paragraph (iii) below, the exercise
by the Directors during the Relevant Period of
all the powers of the Company to repurchase
shares in the capital of the Company be
and is hereby generally and unconditionally

approved;

(ii) the approval in paragraph (i) above shall be in
addition to any other authorisation given to the
Directors of the Company and shall authorise
the Directors on behalf of the Company during
the Relevant Period to procure the Company to
repurchase its own shares at a price per share

determined by the Directors at their discretion;

(iii) the aggregate nominal amount of the share
capital of the Company which the Company
is authorised to repurchase pursuant to the
approval in paragraph (i) above shall not
exceed 10 per cent of the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital of the Company in

issue;
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(iv) for the purposes of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the

passing of this Resolution until whichever is

the earliest of:

(@)

the conclusion of the first Annual General
Meeting of the Company following the
passing of this Resolution at which time it
shall lapse unless, by ordinary resolution
passed at that meeting, the authorisation
conferred by this Resolution is renewed,
either unconditionally or subject to

conditions;

the expiration of the period within which
the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company is required by law to be held;

and

revocation or variation of this Resolution
by ordinary resolution of the shareholders

in general meeting.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

(B) That:

(i)

(ii)

following any repurchase of shares in the
capital of the Company pursuant to the
authorisation conferred on the Directors under
Ordinary Resolution A above, the exercise
by the Directors during the Relevant Period
of all the powers of the Company to allot
additional shares in the Company, and to make
offers, agreements and options which might
require the exercise of such power, equivalent
to the number of shares so repurchased be
and is hereby generally and unconditionally

approved;

the approval in paragraph (i) above shall be in
addition to any other authorisation given to the
Directors of the Company and shall authorise
the Directors on behalf of the Company during
the Relevant Period to procure the company to
allot or make offers, agreements and options
to allot additional shares which might require
the exercise of such power after the end of the

Relevant Period;

(iii) for the purpose of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the
passing of this Resolution until whichever is

the earliest of:

(a) the conclusion of the first Annual General
Meeting of the Company following the
passing of this Resolution at which time it
shall lapse unless, by ordinary resolution
passed at that meeting, the authorisation
conferred by this Resolution is renewed,
either unconditionally or subject to

conditions;
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(ii)

(b) the expiration of the period within which
the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company is required by law to be held;

and

revocation or variation of this Resolution
by ordinary resolution of the shareholders

in general meeting.

(C) That:

(i)

(ii)

subject to paragraph (iii) below, pursuant to
section 141 of the Companies Ordinance,
the exercise by the Directors of the Company
during the Relevant Period of all the powers of
the Company to allot additional shares and to
make or grant offers, agreements and options
which might require the exercise of such power
be and is hereby generally and unconditionally

approved;

the approval in paragraph (i) above shall be
in addition to any other authorisation given
to the Directors of the Company and shall
authorise the Directors of the Company during
the Relevant Period to make or grant offers,
agreements and options which might require
the exercise of such power after the end of the

Relevant Period;
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BREBFXEESE
Notice of Annual General Meeting

(iii) the aggregate nominal amount of share

(iv)

capital allotted or agreed conditionally or
unconditionally to be allotted by the Directors
of the Company pursuant to the approval in
paragraph (i) above, otherwise than pursuant
to a rights issue or on the exercise of the
subscription rights under any warrants, shall
not exceed the aggregate of 20 per cent of the
aggregate amount of the issued share capital of

the Company; and

for the purpose of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the
passing of this Resolution until whichever is

the earliest of:

(a) the conclusion of the first Annual General
Meeting of the Company following the
passing of this Resolution at which time it
shall lapse unless, by ordinary resolution
passed at that meeting, the authorisation
conferred by this Resolution is renewed,
either unconditionally or subject to

conditions;

(b) the expiration of the period within which
the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company is required by law to be held;

and

(c) revocation or variation of this Resolution
by ordinary resolution of the shareholders

in general meeting.
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“Rights issue” means an offer of shares open
for a period fixed by the Directors to holders
of shares on the register on a fixed record date
in proportion to their then holdings of such
shares (subject to such exclusions or other
arrangements as the Directors of the Company
may deem necessary or expedient in relation to
fractional entitlements or having regard to any
restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or
the requirements of any recognised regulatory
body or any stock exchange in any territory

outside Hong Kong).

By Order of the Board
Ho Sau Fun Connie

Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 15 October 2021

Registered Office:
Suite 4901, 49/F
Central Plaza

18 Harbour Road
Wanchai

Hong Kong
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notes:

Every member entitled to attend and vote at the above
meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend
and vote instead of him. A proxy need not be a member of
the Company but must be present in person to represent the

member.

Where there are joint registered holders of any shares, any
one of such persons may attend and vote at the Meeting,
either personally or by proxy, in respect of such shares as if
he were solely entitled thereto; but if more than one of such
joint holders be present at the Meeting personally or by proxy,
that one of the said persons so present whose name stands first
on the register of members of the Company in respect of such

shares shall alone be entitled to vote in respect thereof.

In order to be valid, the form of proxy duly completed and
signed in accordance with the instructions printed on it
together with the power of attorney or other authority, if
any, under which it is signed, or a notarially certified copy
of it must be deposited at the office of the Company’s share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Ltd.,
at 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time
appointed for holding of the Meeting or any adjournment
thereof. The completion and delivery of the form of proxy will
not preclude you from attending and voting in person at the

Meeting or any adjournment thereof if you so wish.

The purpose of Ordinary Resolution 5(A) of this Notice is to
seek approval from shareholders for a general mandate to

repurchase shares in the Company.

Concerning Ordinary Resolutions 5(B) and 5(C) of this Notice,
the Directors wish to state that they have no immediate plans
to issue any new shares of the Company; approval is being
sought from members as a general mandate in compliance

with the Listing Rules.
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PRECAUTIONARY MEASURES FOR THE AGM

1.

In light of the epidemic situation of COVID-19, the

Company will implement the following precautionary

measures at the AGM to protect attending shareholders,

staff and stakeholders from the risk of infection:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Compulsory body temperature checks will be
conducted for every shareholder or proxy at the
entrance to the AGM venue. Any person with a
body temperature of 37.5 degrees Celsius or above

will not be given access to the AGM venue.

All attendees will be required to wear surgical face
masks (self-supplied) before they are permitted to
attend, and during their attendance of, the AGM.
Attendees are advised to maintain appropriate
social distance with each other at all times when
attending the AGM. Seating at the AGM venue will

be arranged accordingly.

Attendees may be asked if (i) he/she is subject to
any HKSAR Government prescribed quarantine
requirement; (ii) he/she has travelled outside Hong
Kong within 14 days immediately before the AGM
and (iii) he/she has had

close contact with any person under quarantine

(“recent travel history”);

or with recent travel history. Any person who
responds positively to any of these questions will
be denied entry into the AGM venue or be required

to promptly leave the AGM venue.

Any attendee who declines any of the
abovementioned measures will be refused

admission to the AGM venue.

No refreshments will be served, and there will be

no corporate gifts.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

(vi) Anyone attending the AGM is reminded to observe

good personal hygiene at all times.
(vii) Hand sanitizing medical will be distributed.

Shareholders are requested (a) to consider carefully
the risk of attending the AGM, which will be held in
an enclosed environment, (b) to follow any guidelines
or requirements of the HKSAR Government relating
to COVID-19 in deciding whether or not to attend
the AGM and (c) not to attend the AGM if they
have contracted or are suspected to have contracted
COVID-19 or have been in close contract with anybody
who has contracted or is suspected to have contracted
COVID-19.

In light of the continuing risks posed by the COVID-19
pandemic, the Company strongly encourages
shareholders NOT to attend the AGM in person, and
advises shareholders to appoint the Chairman of the
AGM as their proxy to vote according to their indicated
voting instructions as an alternative to attending the
meeting in person, by completing and return the proxy
form. The proxy form will be sent to the shareholders

accompanied with the 2021 Annual Report.

For those non-registered holders whose shares are held
in the Central Clearing and Settlement System, they are
strongly encouraged to vote through HKSCC Nominees
Limited by giving instructions to their brokers or

custodians.
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5. WERERFETLFEHHEREREEAS - 5. If any shareholder chooses not to attend the AGM

BREMAZRIBARARQ R AER in person but has any question about any resolution
M EEMEEAERARRNES or about the Company, or has any matter for
2EE BN EBmARERALRWE communication with the Directors of the Company, he/
(EE A AFBHINMT) MRHES share is welcome to send such question or matter to
g o AN ARG NEAFACERELR the Board in writing through the Company Secretary
HARURREBAFARAE LER] D whose contact details are set out below. The Company
B EfAI AR o undertakes to respond in writing to any question raised

by a shareholder that could otherwise have been

answered “live” at the AGM.

NAIME The Company Secretary

5B Suite 4901, 49/F., Central Plaza
75 TE 581 855 18 Harbour Road

IR E 549124901 F Hong Kong

BE : info@cheuknang.com.hk Email: info@cheuknang.com.hk

6. MAREMBEABREFEFEANE AT 6. If Shareholders have any questions relating to the AGM,

A BB ARRRNDBFELREE please contact Computershare Hong Kong Investor
RFARESFESLABERAR BEHA W Services Limited, the Company’s Registrar as follows:
T

BEET 17M Floor

ERRNER1835 Hopewell Centre

& FAR L 183 Queen’s Road East

17MIE B Wanchai, Hong Kong

T 55 0 +852 2862 8555 Tel: +852 2862 8555

B H : +852 2865 0990 Fax: +852 2865 0990

BEEEFAM + www.computershare.comvhi/contact Contact us: www.computershare.com/hk/contact

12 CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =t ((8) AR2A5 | Annual Report 2021 43
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FREHES
Chairman’s Statement

| herewith to present to shareholders the report of Cheuk
Nang (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2021.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The consolidated profit after income tax of our Group
for the year ended 30 June 2021 is HK$149,516,000
(2020: HK$33,007,000) representing an increase of
353.0% comparing to last year. Details are set out in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Due to the uncertainty for the coming year, the Directors
resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK3.0 cents (2020: HK5.0 cents) per share payable to
those shareholders whose names appeared in the register of
members as at the close of business on 25 November 2021,
which together with the interim dividend of HK2.0 cents
(2020: HK7.5 cents) per share, makes a total distribution of
HK5.0 cents (2020: HK12.5 cents) per share this year, which

is 60% decrease when compare to last year.

After approval by the shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting, the final dividend will be paid on 13 December
2021.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND PROSPECTS
Hong Kong Properties

Hong Kong’'s economy will gradually recover from a low
base in 2021, supported by a solid rebound in China. While
the prolonged pandemic, absence of cross-border visitors
and Sino US political risks will all continue to create strong
headwinds, the local vaccination programme launched in
February has achieved over 60% of the population being

vaccinated.
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The disburse of consumption vouchers by the Government
has successfully boosted up the consumption sector
effectively but its effectiveness in long run owing to the
uncertain future prospect remain. Hong Kong large property
developers have expressed their support to the Government
to solve the Hong Kong housing problem which may ease

the continuing increase of real estate value.

The progress of our projects in Hong Kong are as follows:—

One Kowloon Peak at No. 8 Po Fung Terrace, Ting Kau,

Tsuen Wan

Residential project developed in two phases.

Phase 1 comprised of a block of 21-storey building
with 49 residential units (including 6 duplex units)
and 39 car parking spaces. The net floor area of the
units ranged from 1,075 square feet to 2,095 square
feet. 11 units has been sold and majority of other units
are rented. Phase 2 comprised of clubhouse, 29 car
parking spaces and five 3-storey garden villas. The
net floor area of the villas ranged from approximately
1,497 square feet to 2,329 square feet. The clubhouse

provides recreational facilities and swimming pool.

Villa Cecil Phase I, 192 Victoria Road, Pokfulam

Residential development comprised of three blocks of
4-storey low density residential building provides 29
residential units. The net floor area of the apartments
ranged from approximately 876 square feet to 3,099
square feet. During the period, unit 3B of Tower 3 was
sold for HK$52.8 million.

The occupancy rate of Phase 2 maintained at 85%.
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Chairman’s Statement

Villa Cecil Phase Ill, 216 Victoria Road, Pokfulam

Residential development comprised of two blocks
of 4-storey building for rental purpose. The total
marketable gross floor area is about 97,000 square feet
(net floor area is about 68,973 square feet). Block 1
provides 9 residential units and Block 2 provides 32
units. The gross floor area of the apartments ranged
from 760 square feet to 3,800 square feet (net floor area

ranged from 586 square feet to 2,555 square feet).

The occupancy rate of the two blocks has reached 95%

which contributed good rental income to the Group.

Cheuk Nang Lookout, 30 Severn Road, The Peak

A residential premises comprised of two deluxe 3-storey
residential villas, namely Villa Begonia and Villa
Crocus. The renovation of the two villas to enhance the

quality is completed.

New Villa Cecil, No. 33 Cheung Chau Sai Tai Road,
Cheung Chau

A residential project developed into 2 phases with
total marketable gross floor area approximately 58,000

square feet.

Phase | comprised of 19 blocks of 2-storey residential
villas has already received Occupation Permit. The
gross floor area of the villas ranged from 1,450 square
feet to 2,700 square feet (net floor area ranged from
1,106 square feet to 2,070 square feet). Phase Il
comprised of 4 blocks of 2-storey residential villas. The
gross floor area of the villas ranged from approximately
2,000 square feet to 12,000 square feet (net floor
area from 1,564 square feet to 9,260 square feet).
Recreational facilities including swimming pool and

landscape garden are provided.

Over 90% of the villas in Phase 1 are leased out.
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China Properties

Supported by the “dual circulation” development
strategy which comprises the domestic demand and
export market, the quantum of financial stimulus in
2021 will be reduced as compared with 2020. There
will be a continuation of stable monetary and fiscal
policy. Challenges related to deglobalisation and
relations with the U.S. remain, but the recent signing
of the Regional Comprehensive Economic Partnership
is set to play a key role in facilitating the “opening-
up” policy. The debt crisis of China Evergrande Group
(Stock Code: 03333) and the pressure of cash flow
has created concern over the China property and
banking sectors. It is believed the government will take

appropriate measure to ease the problem eventually.

Shenzhen

The outlook for Shenzhen’s prime property market
should remain steady in both the immediate and long
terms, supported by the continued growing momentum
of the economics and demographics in the city. This is
expected to propel strong demand within the core city

of the Greater Bay Area.

Cheuk Nang Garden
Longhwa, Shenzhen

Upto the date of this report, a total of 809 units have
been sold and the sales transaction amount achieved is

satisfactory.
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Chairman’s Statement

Hangzhou

The 19th Asian Games will be held in Hangzhou
in September 2022. At present, construction on 42
competition venues has been completed and those

venues are under functionality testing.

The construction of stadiums and athletes villages
boosted the local economy while the holding of the
Asian Games competition will drive the tourist industry

increased in 2022.

Cheuk Nang e Riverside
Yue Hang Qu, Hangzhou

The development comprised land area of 38,983 square
metres (419,613 square feet). The total net floor area
is 122,483 square metres (1,318,407 square feet) with
multi-storey buildings provides 849 residential units, 22
deluxe villas by the riverside, 780 car parking spaces,
clubhouse, recreational facilities and shopping centre.
The size of the residential units and villas ranged from
65 square metres (700 square feet) to 270 square metres
(2,906 square feet).

The construction of the development is completed and

REIE R W has applied.

Macau Properties

The Macau economy has moved upward gradually
since the 4th quarter of 2020. Despite the delta virus
has appeared in early August, the quick and immediate
measures taken by the Macau government has

prevented the wide spread of the virus.

The six gambling licenses will be expired soon.
The Macau Government has been seeking public
consultation regarding the issuance of new gambling

licenses.
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Golden Cotai No. 1
Estrada de Seac Pai Van, Coloane

Application for change of land use was submitted to
the Direccao dos Servicos de Solos, Obras Pdblicas
e Transportes (“DSSOPT”) and we maintain close

communications with the Government Departments.

Malaysia Properties

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic and the already
weak market environment before 2020 have severely
hit the real estate market. The conditional movement
control order introduced by the government has had a

serious impact on the economy.

According to research, most of the Malaysians want to
buy a house by the end of 2021. At the same time, the
government has introduced the Real Property Gains Tax
(RPGT) exemption that will probably encourage buyers

to invest in real estate.

Phase | “Parkview”
Lot 1359, Section 57, Lorong Perak, Kuala Lumpur

The development is a ready built 41-storey residential
building providing 417 residential units and 163 car
parking spaces. The total gross floor area is 325,626
square feet. Most units have been sold by our Parkview
joint venture partner. The remaining 27 unsold units
are operated as serviced apartments. The demand for
hotel and short-term accommodation has decreased

drastically after the outbreak of covid-19.

Phase Il “Cecil Central Residence”

Lot 11385 and 11386, Section 57, Lorong Perak, Kuala

Lumpur

The development currently comprised of 4 blocks of
residential condominium with total approved gross
floor area is 1,708,648 square feet. The main podium is

completed upto Level 5.
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Chairman’s Statement

INVESTMENT IN BONDS AND STOCK

The investment in Bond market as at 30 June 2021
was HK$161,211,000. During the year, a total of
HK$17,815,000 was sold and HK$3,882,000 was
purchased. Meanwhile, appropriate provision has been
made for the investment in China Evergrande Group

debentures.

The market price of our investment in the Hong Kong stocks
as at 30 June 2021 was HK$32,101,000. During the year,
a total of HK$2,241,000 stock was sold and no stock was

purchased.

OUTLOOK

The economies for Hong Kong and overseas are clouded
with uncertainty. The Return2HK and Come2HK Schemes
were introduced in the mid of September this year. The
quota under the Scheme is 2,000 visitors per day. It is
a good beginning for the resumption of normal cross-
boundary activities between Hong Kong, China and Macau
and hopefully, the tourism industry may be benefited

gradually under these Schemes.

The Government has announced the extension of the
vaccination programme to November this year. With a high
vaccinated population, the resumption of cross-boundary

activities hoped to be gradually opened up.
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DIRECTORS AND STAFF
The dedication of our directors and staff during the year are
much appreciated. Member of our staff team in Shenzhen

are increased.

As at the date of this report, the Executive Directors are
Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil (Chairman), Ms. Chao Gigi (Vice
Chairman), Mr. Yung Philip and Ms. Ho Sau Fun, Connie;
the Non-Executive Directors are Mr. Chao Howard and
Mr. Lee Ding Yue Joseph; the Independent Non-Executive
Directors are Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson, Mr. Ting Woo
Shou, Kenneth and Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham.

By order of the Board
CECIL CHAO

Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 September 2021
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS
CHAO Sze-Tsung Cecil — Executive Chairman

Dr. Chao, aged 85, is the founder and Executive Chairman
of the Group since 1988. Dr. Chao obtained a Bachelor
of architecture degree, with honours, from The University
of Durham, England and subsequently worked in the
field of property, construction, investment, shipping,
industrial and architect for over fifty years. He has also
worked for Hong Kong Government Building Department
and Architectural Office. He is a Hong Kong registered
architect and a member of the Royal Institute of British
Architect and has obtained Honorary Doctor Degree (Ph.
D.) from U.S. Morrison University. Dr. Chao is also awarded
World Outstanding Chinese. He has obtained Lifetime
Achievement Award given by the ASEAN Outstanding
Business Award 2016. He is the Chairman and beneficial
owner of Yan Yin Company Limited, Cecil Chao &
Associates Limited and Szehope Securities Company Limited

which are the controlling shareholders of the Group.

LAM Ka Wai, Graham

Mr. Lam, aged 53, is the independent non-executive
director of the Company. Mr. Lam graduated from the
University of Southampton, England with a Bachelor of
Science degree in Accounting and Statistics. He is a member
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Lam is currently the Managing Director
of an investment bank and has over 25 years experience in
investment banking as well as over 3 years experience in
accounting and auditing.
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In addition, Mr. Lam was the independent non-executive
director of Nan Nan Resources Enterprise Limited (stock
code: 1229) from 25 March 2008 to 7 September 2017,
China Fortune Financial Group Limited (stock code:
290) from 14 September 2007 to 11 April 2014, Applied
Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 519) from 1
October 2005 to 12 December 2011, Pearl Oriental Oil
Limited (now known as CHK Oil Limited) (stock code:
632) from 3 October 2008 to 19 March 2013, King Stone
Energy Group Limited (stock code: 663) from 23 April 2012
to 22 March 2013, Value Convergence Holdings Limited
(stock code: 821) from 4 January 2010 to 24 May 2012,
CT Environmental Group Limited (stock code: 1363) from
14 June 2011 to 15 April 2014, ZZNode Technologies
Company Limited (now known as China Chuanglian
Education Group Limited, stock code: 2371) from 29
January 2008 to 5 October 2010, Hao Wen Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8019) from 17 November 2010 to 16
May 2011, Well Way Group Limited (now known as Global
Mastermind Holdings Limited, stock code: 8063) from 24
March 2011 to 16 April 2014, China Railway Logistics
Limited (now known as Chinese Strategic Holdings Limited,
stock code: 8089) from 22 December 2008 to 27 April 2012
and Finet Group Limited (stock code: 8317) from 5 August
2009 to 24 January 2011, companies listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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SUN Ping Hsu Samson

Dr. Sun, M.B.E., J.P., aged 96, is currently the Chairman
of the Sun International Group of Companies. He is also
holding independent non-executive directorship in two
other companies listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, namely Oriental Watch
Holdings Limited and National Electronics Holdings
Limited. He was the Deputy Chairman and a Director
of Inchcape Hong Kong Ltd. and its predecessor Gilman
& Co. Ltd. from 1967 to his retirement in 1985. Dr. Sun
has over 60 years experience in marketing, distribution
and manufacturing of wrist watches, and over 30 years
in marketing and distribution of consumer products and
electronic goods. He has been a pioneer in developing trade
with China since 1979, and continued to be active in both

trading and manufacturing in China.

Dr. Sun has a long service record in leader’s capacity
in many voluntary community services and charitable
organizations, including Tung Wah Group of Hospitals, the

Community Chest and Scout Association of Hong Kong.

TING Woo Shou Kenneth

Mr. Ting, SBS, JP, aged 79, is a Chairman and Managing
Director of Kader Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code:
180). He was an Independent Non-executive Director of
Wheelock and Company Limited (Stock Code: 20) from
2003 to 27 July 2020. Mr. Ting currently serves as the
Honorary President of Federation of Hong Kong Industries,
The Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong and
The Toys Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong Limited,
and the Honorary Life President of the Hong Kong Plastics
Manufacturers’ Association Limited.

Mr. Ting also serves as a member of a number of other trade
organizations and public committees such as The Hong
Kong General Chamber of Commerce. He is a Life Honorary
Court Member of The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology Court.
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LEE Ding Yue Joseph

Mr. Lee, aged 59, is currently the Managing Director of
Chee Yen Investment Company (PTC) Limited and holds
many directorships with companies in Hong Kong and
overseas. He earned his Bachelor degree in Business
Management & Economics from Sophia University Tokyo
in 1984. Mr. Lee started his career working for Kyocera
Corporation in Japan specialising in manufacturing
semiconductor packages. In 1987 he returned to Hong
Kong to establish a photographic and digital imaging
lighting manufacturing business distributing his products
internationally. A manufacturing, property development,
and property investment veteran with 37 years of
experience, Mr. Lee possesses a sound knowledge in
manufacturing, a sound knowledge in developing
distribution network internationally, and a sound knowledge

in real estate businesses in Hong Kong and Japan.

YUNG, Philip

Mr. Yung, aged 63, has joined our Group since June,
2005. Mr. Yung has more than 20 years experience in
the Accounting industry and Listed Property Developers
in Hong Kong. Mr. Yung is currently a Certified Public
Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a Fellow Member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom and
holding a Master Degree in Business Administration. Mr.

Yung is also a director of the subsidiaries of the Company.
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HO Sau-Fun Connie

Ms. Ho, aged 54, was appointed as a Director of the
Company since 1996. She is an associate member of The
Hong Kong Corporate Governance Institute (formerly known
as the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries) and of
The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators
of U.K. She has been working in the company secretarial
field for over 30 years. Ms. Ho is also a director of the

subsidiaries of the Company.

CHAO, Howard
Mr. Chao, aged 38, is the elder son of Dr. Cecil Chao, the

Group Executive Chairman and the controlling shareholder
of the Company and is the brother of Ms. Gigi Chao, the
Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Chao hold degrees
of Master of Science in Real Estate and Bachelor of Arts in
Business Management.

Mr. Chao has joined the Group as Executive Manager since
January, 2006 and Executive Director of the Company since
1 December 2006. He is member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference of Chongging, committee
member of The Chinese General Chamber of Commerce,
vice-chairman of Young Executives’ Committee of The
Chinese General Chamber of Commerce and member of The

Hong Kong Real Property Federation.
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CHAO, Gigi

Ms. Chao, aged 42, is the eldest daughter of Dr. Cecil
Chao, the Group Executive Chairman and the controlling
shareholder of the company, and sister of Mr. Howard
Chao, Non-Executive Director of the company. She
graduated from the University of Manchester, Manchester
school of Architecture, England with a Bachelor of Arts in
Architecture with Honours. Subsequently, she worked with
prominent British Architect and Urban Designer Sir Terry
Farrell in London and Hong Kong where she participated in
projects such as Kowloon Station, Tsuen Wan West Station,
and various design competition submissions for prominent
iconic buildings in mainland China. Besides a background
in architecture and construction, her multi-faceted
experience in management and service was acquired from
an early career in marketing and retail services in Hong
Kong and China, during which she handled key accounts
such as Rolex, Audemars Piquet, Hong Kong Jockey Club,
In 2017,

LLB with Honours at the University of London International

Mont Blanc, inter alia. she also completed her
Programmes. From early years as a summer intern at various
regional offices since a young age, Ms. Chao officially
joined the group in 2011 as Senior Project Manager and was

later promoted to Executive Director.

Ms. Chao has always been a passionate member of the
global community and a prominent advocate for various
charitable endeavours. She is the China Representative
and board member of OutRight Action International
(formerly the International Gay & Lesbian Human Rights
Commission IGLHRC) a global organisation that has EcoSoc
consultative status at the UN and reports to the UN General
Assembly annually. Gigi is also the founder of Hong
Kong registered charity Faith in Love Foundation, which
encourages volunteerism and alleviation of poverty through
scholarships, resource distribution, and emotional support
for marginalised youth. She is the specialist private sector
adviser for the United Nations Development Programme
Being LGBTI in Asia. An enthusiastic aviator, Gigi is Past
President of the Hong Kong Aviation Club and Honorary
Specialist Flight Lieutenant of the Hong Kong Air Cadets
Corp.
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Corporate Information

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

CHAO Sze Tsung Cecil (Chairman)
CHAO Gigi (Vice Chairman)

YUNG Philip
HO Sau Fun Connie

Non-Executive Directors

CHAO Howard
LEE Ding Yue Joseph

Independent Non-Executive Directors

SUN Ping Hsu Samson
TING Woo Shou, Kenneth
LAM Ka Wai Graham

AUDIT COMMITTEE

LAM Ka Wai Graham (Chairman)
SUN Ping Hsu Samson
LEE Ding Yue Joseph

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

SUN Ping Hsu Samson (Chairman)
CHAO Sze Tsung Cecil
LAM Ka Wai Graham

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

CHAO Sze Tsung Cecil (Chairman)
SUN Ping Hsu Samson
TING Woo Shou Kenneth

COMPANY SECRETARY
HO Sau Fun Connie
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Financial Highlights

Revenue for the year ended 30 June 2021 (the “Year”)
amounted to HK$994,589,000 (Year ended 30 June 2020:
HK$552,880,000), a 79.9% increase as compared with last
year. It was mainly due to increase in properties sold in
Shenzhen amounted to HK$922,640,000 during year.

For property leasing, the Year recorded a decrease of 13.0%
in rental income as compared with the corresponding
year in 2020, amounting HK$55,179,000 (2020:
HK$63,453,000).

Gross profit for the Year amounted to HK$731,494,000, a
97.4% increase as compared with last year.

Other income recorded an increase of 43.1% to
HK$80,124,000 when compared with last year. The other
income for the Year were mainly attributed to dividend
income, interest income, gain on disposal of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, gain on disposal
of investment properties and net exchange gain. Increase
in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss amounted to HK$3,174,000 (2020: decrease
HK$9,294,000). Decrease in fair value of investment
properties amounted to HK$99,460,000 (2020:
HK$5,840,000).
fair value through other comprehensive income amounted
to HK$14,000,000 which related to debentures issued

by two companies due to default of interest payment or

increase
Expected credit loss of financial assets at

downgrading on credit rating. Administrative expenses
increased by 16.1% to HK$126,910,000 as compared
with last year. Finance costs decreased by 41.2% to
HK$21,385,000 as compared with last year. The decrease
was mainly due to the combined effect of (1) decrease in
interest rate; and (2) repayment of certain bank and other
borrowings during year. Income tax expenses increased
to HK$403,521,000 (2020: HK$244,427,000) which was
mainly due to land appreciation tax and profit tax in China
arisen from sale of properties in Shenzhen during year.
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Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the Year
was HK$148,700,000 (2020: profit HK$47,696,000). Basic
earnings per share was HK$0.23 (2020: HK$0.08) and fully
diluted earning per share was HK$0.23 (2020: HK$0.08).

A final dividend of HK3.0 cents (2020: HK5.0 cents) was
proposed together with the interim dividend of HK2.0 cents
(2020: HK7.5 cents) a total of HK5.0 cents for the year
ended 30 June 2021.

Total Equity Attributable To The Owners Of The Company
As at 30 June 2021,

to the owners of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$6,873,630,000 (30 June 2020: HK$6,555,623,000),
an increase of HK$318,007,000 or 4.9% when compared
with 30 June 2020. With the total number of ordinary
shares in issue of 652,676,781 as at 30 June 2021 (2020:
639,613,567 shares),
the owners of the Company per share was HK$10.53,

the Group’s total equity attributable

the total equity attributable to

representing an increase of 2.7% compared to HK$10.25 as
at 30 June 2020. The increase in total equity attributable to
owners of the Company per share was mainly attributable
to increase in bank balances resulted from sale of properties

during the Year.

Other than the existing projects and those disclosed in the
annual report, the Group did not have any confirmed future

plans for material investment or acquiring capital assets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Investment In Financial Assets At Fair Value Through Profit

Or Loss And Other Comprehensive Income

As at 30 June 2021, the fair value of investment in listed
securities and perpetual note and debentures amounted to
HK$32,101,000 and HK$161,211,000 respectively were
classified as the financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and at fair value through other comprehensive
income. During the Year, the portfolio was decreased by
a net disposal of HK$14,560,000, gain on fair value of
HK$3,174,000 of listed securities,
HK$1,560,000 of perpetual notes and debentures and an
expected credit loss on debentures of HK$14,000,000.
The investment in financial assets as at 30 June 2021

represented 1.8% (2020: 5.9%) of the total assets, which

loss on fair value of

formed part of the Group’s cash management activities.

Included in the financial assets, it included HK$18,185,000
debentures with fixed maturity dates ranging from 23 March
2022 to 28 June 2025 at a coupon rates ranging from 8.25%
to 10.5% per annum. Due to credit rating downgraded,
there was a substantial decrease in market price as at year
end date and up to the announcement date. In addition,
the Group also hold another debenture amounted to
HK$3,303,000 with fixed maturity date on 31 January 2028
at a coupon rate at 6.5% per annum which defaulted in
interest payment and also substantially decrease in market
price as at year end date and up to the announcement date.
The Group has made a provision of HK$14 million for the

above.

Equity
The number of issued ordinary shares as at 30 June 2021
and 30 June 2020 were 652,676,781 and 639,613,567

respectively.
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Debts And Gearing

As at 30 June 2021, the Group’s bank and other borrowings
amounted to HK$989,165,000 (2020: HK$1,442,453,000).
Cash and bank balances amounted to HK$1,988,157,000
(2020: HK$1,236,667,000) and net cash and bank
balances to HK$998,992,000 (2020:
HK$205,786,000).

net borrowing

Total debts to equity ratio was 14.4% (30 June 2020:
22.0%) and net cash and bank balances to equity ratio was
14.5% (2020: net debts to equity 3.1%).

The decrease in the total debt to equity ratio and changes
from net debt to equity ratio to net cash and bank balances
to equity were mainly due to decrease in bank borrowing
during the year and increase in cash and bank balances

resulted from increase in sale of properties during year.

As at 30 June 2021, the Group’s bank and other borrowings
were denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Of the Group's
total bank and other borrowings HK$989,165,000, 88.7%
and 11.3% were repayable within 1 year and 1 to 2 years
respectively by reference to the repayment on demand
clause based on scheduled repayments of the loan
agreement. The Group’s bank and other borrowings carried
interest rates by reference to Hong Kong Interbank Offer
Rate (“HIBOR”).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Pledge Of Assets
As at 30 June 2021,

properties held for sales and land and building with carrying
value of HK$3,179,059,000 (2020: HK$2,972,900,000),
HK$1,539,000 (2020: HK$1,539,000) and HK$36,200,000
(2020: HK$36,400,000) were pledged to secure general
banking facilities of the Group.

the Group’s investment properties,

Finance Costs

Financial costs included interest expenses on bank
and other loans, arrangement, facility and commitment
fee expenses.
HK$8,554,000 as compared to HK$19,793,000 for the

Interest expenses for the Year amounted to

Interest capitalized for the Year was

last year.
HK$21,385,000,
interest expenses of HK$36,382,000 recorded for the last

representing 41.2% decrease over the

year. The decrease in interest expense was mainly due to
the combined effect of (1) decrease in bank loans interest
and other borrowing cost; and (2) repayment of certain
bank and other borrowings during the Year. The average
interest rate over the year under review was 1.8% (2020:
3.4%) which was expressed as a percentage of total interest

expenses over the average total borrowing.
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Property Valuation

A property valuation has been carried out by Messrs. Roma
Appraisals Limited and K.T. Liu Surveyors Limited in respect
of the Group’s investment properties and certain property,
plant and equipment as at 30 June 2021 and that valuation
was used in preparing 2021 financial statements. The
Group’s investment properties and investment properties
under development were valued at HK$4,977,459,000
and HK$1,678,241,000 respectively making the total
HK$6,655,700,000 (2020: investment properties and
investment properties under development were valued at
HK$5,428,781,000 and HK$1,656,094,000 making the
total HK$7,084,875,000). The decrease in fair value of
approximately HK$99,460,000 was charged to the income
statement for the Year. The Group land and building held
for a director’s quarter carried at fair value were valued at
HK$36,200,000 (2020: HK$36,400,000). The decrease in
fair value of HK$200,000 for the Year were recorded in
property revaluation reserves. Properties under development
for sale of the Group were stated at lower of cost or net

realisable value in the consolidated financial statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established adequate risk management
procedures that enable it to identify, measure, monitor
and control the various types of risk it faces. This is
supplemented by active management involvement and

effective internal controls in the best interests of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

REMUNERATION POLICIES AND SHARE
OPTION SCHEME

As at 30 June 2021, the Group employed a total of 78 (as at
30 June 2020: 82) staff.

Employees were remunerated on the basis of their
performance, experience and prevailing industry practice.
Remuneration packages comprised salary, year end double
pay and year end discretionary bonus based on market
conditions and individual performance. The Executive
Directors continued to review employees’ contributions and
to provide them with necessary incentives and flexibility for
their better commitment and performance. No share option

scheme was adopted for the Year.

FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR
Profit Attributable To Owners Of The Company and

Earnings Per Share

The Company uses the profit attributable to owners of
the company and earnings per share as the Group’s as
the financial key performance indicator. The Company’s
aim to increase the Group’s profit attributable to owners
of the company and earnings per share. We compare the
profit against the previous period as a measure of the

performance. Detail refer to Financial Highlight section.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group has appointed external professional firm to
perform periodic review on the internal control of the
Group. Current year review has completed and some minor
weakness have been identified. The Group will carry out

necessary procedures to improve these control weaknesses.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND COMPLIANCE

Our environmental policy is to meet all the environmental

legislations which relate to our operation.

A review on the performance on our environmental policy

has been carried out.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS

Relationships with vendors

We have established relationships with numbers of suppliers
for the construction and renovation work in Hong Kong,
PRC and Malaysia. Other than one supplier relating to our
construction work which recently has financial problem,
the work originally carried by the contractor has been
reassigned to other contractor. Other than this, there is no

major events affecting our relationships with our suppliers.

Relationships with customers

Our sale and leasing team maintain good relationship with

our customers especially our tenants.

Relationships with employees

During the Period, we are not aware of any major event

affecting our relationships with our employees.

BUSINESS REVIEW & OUTLOOK

Please refer to pages 13 to 19 of the Chairman’s Statement.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard
of corporate governance at all times. The Board believes
that good corporate governance helps the Company
safeguard the interests of its equity holders and improve the

performance of the Group.

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Company
complied with all Code Provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (“the Code”) set out in Appendix 14 of

the Listing Rules, except the following deviations:

1. Code Provision A.4.1

Under the code provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific
term and subject to re-election. However, all the
independent non-executive directors are not appointed
for specific terms but are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
of the Company in accordance with the provision of the
Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association.
The Company considers that sufficient measures have
been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are no less exacting than those in
the Code.

2. Code Provision A.2.1

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the role
of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be
separated and should not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer should be

clearly established and set out in writing.

The Company currently cannot comply with the
requirement of the Listing Rules to separate the role of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. We are, through
different channels, still looking for a suitable person
to act as Chief Executive Officer and with a hope to

comply with the requirement in the next financial year.
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The Board is responsible to lead and control the
business operations of the Group. It formulates
strategic directions, oversees the operations and
monitors the financial performance of the Group.
The management manages the business of the
Group within the delegated power and authority by
the Board.

The functions of the Board are carried out either
directly or through Board Committees and some
of which have been delegated to the management
of the Company. The types of decisions which are

reserved to be taken by the Board include:

1. matters relating to conflict of interest for a
substantial shareholder or a director of the

Company;

2. formulation of the Company’s policies relating
to the overall strategic direction and strategic
plans, key business and financial objectives,
dividend policy or entering into contract
involving significant capital acquisition or

expenditure;

3. financial controls, compliance and risk
management for the approval of annual
operating and capital expenditure budgets,
the Company’s financial statements, published
reports, price-sensitive announcements and
other disclosure required under the Listing

Rules or other statutory requirements;

4. changes to the Company’s capital structure,
including reductions of share capital, share

buy-backs or issue of new securities;
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major appointments or removal to the Board,
the Chief Executive Officer, the Company’s
chief financial officer, company secretary and

external auditors;

changes to the terms of reference or
membership of any committee of the Board and
the authority delegated to the Chief Executive

Officer and the senior management;

matters exceed the authorities of the senior

management; and

the adoption, review and approval of changes
of the Corporate Governance Practical
Manual of the Company, the Code of Ethics
and Securities Transactions entered into
by the directors and other specified senior
management of the Group, group legal policy
(if any) and group system control and risk

management policy.

The terms of reference of the Board includes the

following:

(@)

(c)

to develop and review an issuer’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make

recommendations to the board;

to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of

directors and senior management;

to review and monitor the issuer’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and

regulatory requirements;
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(d) to develop, review and monitor the code
of conduct and compliance manual (if any)

applicable to employees and directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with
the Code and disclosure in the Corporate

Governance Report.

The Board should be responsible for performing
the corporate governance duties set out above or it
may delegate the responsibility to a committee or

committees.

The Board members have no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationships
with each other save that Ms. Gigi Chao and Mr.
Howard Chao are the children of the Chairman.
When the Board considers any proposal or
transaction in which a Director has a conflict of
interest, he declares his interest and is required to

abstain from voting.

BOARD MEETINGS

= A
FR EFSHT2OREEEESHE - 8% During the year, two full board meetings were held and the
ERHBFBOT individual attendance of each director is set out below:
HEESEFRARK

Number of Board HER
EEnA Name of Director Meetings attended Attendance rate
it Chao Sze Tsung Cecil 2/2 100%
HAZ Chao Gigi 2/2 100%
Fi=BAW Chao Howard 2/2 100%
HIRE Yung Philip 2/2 100%
AIFHZ Ho Sau Fun Connie 2/2 100%
THE Lee Ding Yue Joseph 2/2 100%
FRE Sun Ping Hsu Samson 2/2 100%
e Lam Ka Wai Graham 2/2 100%
TTE Ting Woo Shou Kenneth 2/2 100%
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A.2 CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company has identified the roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer under the Listing Rules and
understood that the two positions cannot be performed
by the same individual to ensure that there is a clear
division of responsibilities at the board level to entail a

balance of power and authority.

The Chairman is responsible for leadership of the
Board, for ensuring that the Board functions effectively,
and for ensuring communication of the views of
the Board to the public. In performing this role, the
Chairman’s responsibilities include chairing meetings
of the Board; ensuring the board meetings receive
accurate, complete, timely and clear information
concerning affairs of the Company; ensuring
constructive relations between executive and non-
executive directors; formulating for discussion and
decision, questions which have been moved for the
consideration of the Board; ensuring that all directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at board meetings;
acting as liaison between the Board and management;
in consultation with the Chief Executive Officer and
the company secretary or his/her designated delegates,
drawing up and approving the agenda for each board
meeting taking into account, where appropriate, any
matters proposed by the other directors for inclusion
in the agenda; and at least annually hold meetings
with non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) without the presence of the

executive directors.

The Chief Executive Officer is primarily responsible for
recommending policy and strategic directions for Board
approval, implementing the strategies and policies
adopted by the Board and conducting the day-to-day

operation of the Company.
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ARABIREREME EMRAEEERE The Company currently cannot comply with the
MITHRBEBEDBZRTE - RFFRE requirement of the Listing Rules to separate the role of
BB TRREXNSES AEREITHA Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. We are, through
H HERT—HBREEAFEEK- different channels, still looking for a suitable person

to act as Chief Executive Officer and with a hope to

comply with the requirement in the next financial year.

A3 EEEZARK A.3 BOARD COMPOSITION
EFerEAaBEttgET xR - The Board is chaired by Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil (the
EEeR=-RBEIIFNITES - WA “Chairman”). The Board comprises three Independent
HITEENNERITESAEK  EFH Non-Executive Directors, two Non-Executive Directors
ZRBEEFBENRAFRPEIAEE and four Executive Directors. The names, biographical
FE[EELREPREEAEBRGBN]— details of the directors are set out in the “Profiles of
o BV IFRTESRIFRTES Directors and Senior Management” on pages 21 to 26
HAARNAFREELH R EEME - to the annual report. All Independent Non-Executive
EEeemEOGEs  ARTESFNEIF Directors and Non-Executive Directors bring a variety
WITES (BREBEIERITES) 8 of experience and expertise to the Company. The Board
FEEGAEF—EBELIME  ERERE includes a balanced composition of executive and
B HE - AREIERITEESEEHN non-executive directors (including independent non-
BN RAE  FHMOERAERFES - executive directors) so that there is an independent

element on the Board which can effectively exercise
independent judgment, and that non-executive directors
should be of sufficient caliber and number for their

views to carry weight.

TR ABE K+ - 9BRIERBEE I IE The independent non-executive directors are identified
HITEE 251 - in all corporate communications that disclose the

names of the directors.

RRABZEEZRENHEAEEBES An updated list of directors of the Company and their

RARNFIMERTIZHEEN - role and function is maintained on the websites of the
Company and the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited.
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A.4 APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF

DIRECTORS

The Company has entered into appointment letters
with all the directors of the Company. Pursuant to
such appointment letters, each of the directors of the
Company is not appointed on fixed term but is subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company. In accordance with
the Company’s Articles of Association, all newly
appointed Directors (either to fill a casual vacancy or as
an addition to the Board) shall hold office only until the
next annual general meeting of the Company and shall
then be eligible for re-election, but shall not be taken
into account determining the Directors who are to retire

by rotation at such meeting.

The Board at all times met the requirements of Rules
3.10A and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three Independent Non-
Executive Directors with at least one Independent Non-
Executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial

management expertise.

The Company has received from each of the
Independent Non-Executive directors an annual written
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 to the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent within the definition of the Listing Rules.
The Independent Non-Executive Directors are explicitly

identified in all corporate communications.
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Independent non-executive director serving more
than 9 years could be relevant to the determination
of his independence. According to Code A.4.3, if an
independent non-executive director serviced more than
9 years, his further appointment should be subject to a
separate resolution to be approved by the shareholders.
At the annual general meeting held on 17 November
2020, no independent non-executive director was

required to retire.

Pursuant to Article 107 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, a shareholder can propose a person for
election to the office of Director at any general meeting
by giving the Company notice in writing of the intention
to propose that person for election as a Director and
notice in writing by that person of his willingness to be
elected shall have been given to the Company at least
seven days before the date of the general meeting. The
procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose
a person for election as a Director are available and

accessible on the Company’s website.

In addition, at each annual general meeting, one-third
of the Directors for the time being, or, if their number is
not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest
one-third, shall retire from office. The Directors to retire
on every year shall be those who have been longest in
office since their last election but as between persons
who became Directors on the same day those to retire
shall be determined by lot. The retiring Directors shall

be eligible for re-election.
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A.5 NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Nomination Committee
with specific terms of reference which deals clearly
with its authorities and duties. The Nomination
Committee currently consists of two Independent Non-
Executive Directors namely Dr. Sun Ping Hsu Samson,
Mr. Ting Woo Shou Kenneth and one Executive
Director namely Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil. Dr. Chao

Sze Tsung Cecil is the Chairman of the Committee.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
are posted on the websites of the Company

(www.cheuknang.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee will review the structure,
size and composition of the Board, identify suitable
candidates to the Board, and to make recommendations
on any matters in relation to the appointment or re-
appointment of members of the Board and succession
planning for director, in particular, the chairman and
the chief executive. The Nomination Committee will
also assess the independence of independent non-
executive directors. Appointment of new Directors is

reserved for the Board’s approval.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Nomination
Committee ensures that the Board comprises members
with mixed skills and experience with appropriate
knowledge necessary to accomplish the Group’s
business development, strategies, operation, challenges
and opportunities. The Nomination Committee take
into account of that person’s skill, qualifications and
expected contributions to the Company before making
any recommendations to the Board in relation to the
appointment or re-appointment of members of the
Board.
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Where the board proposes a resolution to elect an
individual as an independent non-executive director
at the general meeting, the papers sent to shareholders
accompanying that resolution prior to the general
meeting already included the reason why the board

believes he is independent and should be re-elected.

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. In designing the Board’s composition, the
Board diversity has been considered from a number
of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of

service.

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy setting

out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.

The individual attendance of each member is set out

below:

HEESSSEHRY
Number of HER
=Y Name of Member meetings attended Attendance rate
it Chao Sze Tsung Cecil 1/1 100%
EHERIE Sun Ping Hsu Samson 11 100%
T4% Ting Woo Shou Kenneth 11 100%
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A.6 RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director will be received
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on the
first occasion of his appointment, so as to ensure that
he has appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and that he is fully aware of his
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules

and relevant regulatory requirements.

The Company provides regular updates relating to the
Group’s business and the legislative and regulatory
environments in which the Group conducts its business

to the Directors.

The functions of non-executive directors include
participating in board meetings to bring an
independent judgement to bear on issues of strategy,

policy, performance, accountability, resources, key

BRIGHIBEEAS SRR BRALEE
HEEe  FHEES  REZEeR

BRBEKE - MMFRE T

appointments and standards of conduct; taking the lead
where potential conflicts of interests arise; serving on
audit, remuneration, nomination and other governance
committee, if invited and scrutinizing the issuer’s
performance in achieving agreed corporate goals and

objectives, and monitoring performance reporting.

EECRERS

AR E R T AR B E S0P 8L _E T
TAEFETESFRRZNFEEST R ([F%
SADARBARRERTETESFRS °
ARRARMEFHEERSFTAXAE - @it
ERRBFFEXGECETESRRTH
HY A — {8 A N b F E A e/ 8 A AT
MEFHLLEABAE  UREBEEEXT
HEBERGEN  TRESEARQAZEFNIT
AT H-

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTION
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for
securities transactions by directors of the Company. A
copy of the Model Code has been sent to each Director of
the Company. Also, formal written notices are sent to the
Directors one month before the date of the Board meeting
to approve the Company’s half-year result and two months
before the approval of annual result, as a reminder that the
Directors cannot deal in the securities and derivatives of the

Company until after such results have been published.
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Under the Model Code, Directors of the Company are
required to notify the Chairman and receive a dated written
acknowledgement before dealing in the securities and
derivatives of the Company and, in the case of the Chairman
himself, he must notify the Board and receive a dated

written acknowledgement before any dealing.

Having made specific enquiries, all Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the
accounting year under review.

Directors’ interests as at 30 June 2021 in the shares of the
Company and its subsidiaries (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance) are set out on

pages 125 to 126.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

There are also arrangements in place for providing
continuing briefing and professional development to

Directors at the Company’s expenses whenever necessary.

The Company circulates details of training courses which
may be of interest to directors. All directors are encouraged
to attend relevant training courses at the Company’s

expense.

The Directors are committed to comply with the Code
Provision A.6.5 of the Code which came into effect on
1 April 2012 on Directors’ training. All Directors have
participated in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and provide
a record of training they received for the year ended 30 June

2021 and up to the date of publication of this annual report.
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The individual training record of each Director received

ARFEFHAZEBE  SEFFAEXEI 2@ for the year ended 30 June 2021 and up to the date of

AIRCERBLAL LN T

EEHEREE

Name and Title of Directors

e
EZQIRRNOTET
Chao Sze Tsung Cecil,
Chairman of the Board and
Executive Director

ich: g2

HITES

Chao Gigi,
Executive Director

publication of this annual report is summarized below:

P23

Training received

MEEBLREREENEREN Rt
Review the regulations and documents
relating to the land value-added tax

liquidation

WM RANE AFTFNEE
BBSIRBE  FHRRME

Block Scope, hoisting functions, variables
in memory, pass by reference, string
manipulation

B REAREFREN -« GithubZ K -
fERNESD - B AlE

Callback versus regular function expression,
Github install, cycle and integration, unit

testing

XA MSIE - CSSE Ahtml « BEERES
PARIE 7 = A4 A

Styles and Bootstrap, CSS injection into
html, class functions, Grid and Style

programmatically

RASEIERITIH B 2RI

Training provider or source of

training materials

TER
N/A

ia®ET

Massachusetts Institute of

Technology

ia®ET

Massachusetts Institute of

Technology

ia®ET

Massachusetts Institute of

Technology

Fir RS (1 BS)

Time spent (hour)

20

20
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ESHEREE

Name and Title of Directors

W E

FHTEF

Chao Howard,
Non-Executive Director

FRE
BUFHTES

Sun Ping Hsu Samson,

Independent Non-Executive

Director

FRE

FHMITES

Lee Ding Yue Joseph
Non-Executive Director

TF8
BUFHTES
Ting Woo Shou Kenneth

Independent Non-Executive

Director

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =

P = 53

Training received

R

SIVAN
/A

SFCRE gk
SFC ESG

LEKE-ERAEAMERR
BATERBENLAZE
PWC HK - Asset & Wealth Management:

Legislative proposals for Hong Kong's carried

interest tax concession

RERFXZ2RERZHMER
The legislative penalty to enhance
occupational safety and healthy

mﬁ

202048 = B i
2020 Economic Summit

EEKERB-BEAMERR:
BB EEETRER

PWC HK - Asset & Wealth Management:
Risk & Regulatory Industry Briefing

hERENSERE
The World’s Chinese Merchants Summit
Forum

ITARMIERERL
Major Continuing Obligations of Listed
Companies

REDAERI-BUFATESNAERAL

Corporate Governance Series — Roles and
Responsibilities of INED's

KPMGE I IEHTEZHIE
The KPMG INED Forum

g (M) HR23 | Annual Report 2021 4£#

REFIERZIHR 2 RR
Training provider or source of

training materials

BHLHEERERZEE
Securities & Futures Commission

REXHE
CITA

AP EAES
The Chinese General Chamber
of Commerce

BAGHELE
HKICPA

BRGNS
HKICPA

EEREHMEHMR
KPMG

Fir PR ) (/B

Time spent (hour)

1.5
1.5

6.5
6.5

1.5
1.5



ESHEREE

Name and Title of Directors

ME B

BUFRTES

Lam Ka Wai Graham,
Independent Non-Executive

Director

FRH

WITES
Yung Philip,
Executive Director

P = &3

Training received

ERBNRH RN a8
Scheme of Arrangement and Spin-off

in Hong Kong

IHRATHETAREE
Certain compliance issues under the Listing

Rules

THEEREEEHRIERA
Key points of practical operation of

land value-added tax liquidation

—ToTEERBRE
Annual Taxation Conference 2020

SECREEEREHEN:
[HEEIABRE

Annual Accounting update 2020:

the “New Normal” financial reporting

hNEBRTE —F-AeEMBERE -

BANEES  TRAE BB

SMP Symposium - Module 1 Accounting
and Financial Reporting, Auditing and
Assurance, Industry Knowledge, Taxation

PONEBHHE - F-ARE
AMEMER  TRAE - FERM
SMP Symposium - Module 1 Ethnics,
Integrity and Professionalism, Industry

Knowledge, Information Technology

EEERBE
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BRI E RN AR 2 RR
Training provider or source of
training materials

XM EB R

Angela Ho & Associates

FEA R

Raymond Siu & Lawyers

RYTEHEXGE

Shenzhen Real Estate Association

RN

HKICPA

BEGHHAE

HKICPA

BRGNS

HKICPA

BRGNS

HKICPA

Fir B ) (/B

Time spent (hour)

2.5
2.5

3.5

3.5

3.5

3.5

3.5

3.5
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ESHEREE P2 323l

Name and Title of Directors  Training received

%% RANEEIZRY : BAREEEHAREA
BOTESRARNE

Ho Sau Fun Connie, Company Secretarial Practical Training
Executive Director and Series: Share Capital and Capital Raising
Company Secretary Practice and Application

PERALEAHERDEXEBHN

Introduction to China’s Entrusted Notary

System and Notary Documents

BRANESMHFRNBERES — &3
B
Limited Partnership Funds & Tax Concessions

for Carried Interest — Latest Updates

ETRE - ERLEME

E-Proxy - Practical Governance Issues

BRMDNBRRT — AERRGIZG

Mediation Techniques to Resolve Disputes —
with Practical Case lllustrations

WERY : BEHE

Enforcement Series: Competition Law

Enforcement

[ABEER?SPAC REEM—BRER?
“Expansion to Vietnam? Is SPAC an Option
for Fund-Raising?
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REFIERZIHR 2 RR

Training provider or source of

training materials

NN
(MERERANELS)
HKCGI (formerly HKICS)

BEBNRENE
(AIEEBETHNELD)
HKCGI (formerly HKICS)

EBNARELNE
(FIBAEBRITHERS)
HKCGI (formerly HKICS)

ERYNCIER YN
(MERERMNELS)
HKCGI (formerly HKICS)

EANRGELE
(MERERMNERS)
HKCGI (formerly HKICS)

BERDARERE
(FIBABRITNERS)
HKCGI (formerly HKICS)

BEEHMEBRERAR
Cheng & Cheng Taxation Services

Limited

Fir PR ) (/B

Time spent (hour)

1.5

1.5
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Training received

ERBEENEREBRER/HKERR
frizma g

Seminar on Development Opportunities and
Legal/Tax Risk Prevention and Control of

Doing Business in the Mainland

AN CEUBEERBEAERSRNRR
The exploration of personal and enterprise

data application and cross-border compliance

BELENBRRE

Cybersecurity for Licensed Corporations

BRABRHUBLE

Digital Forensics for Compliance Officers

Fun Connie,

T BN
TtEEIR

W
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RESFIERZIHR 2 RR
Training provider or source of
training materials

BeHMmEBMERAA

Cheng & Cheng Taxation
Services Limited

AMERMAE
Institute of Certified Compliance
Officers

AMERMAE
Institute of Certified Compliance
Officers

AMERMAE
Institute of Certified Compliance
Officers

During the year ended 30 June 2021,

Fir B ) (/B

Time spent (hour)

Ms. Ho Sau
an Executive Director and the Company

Secretary, has undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant

professional training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the

Listing Rules.

A.7 SUPPLY OF AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION

The Directors may attend meetings in person, by phone

or through other means of electronic communication in

accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

B ER AR

retrospective.

At least 14 days formal notice would be given before
each regular meeting. According to the Company’s
Articles of Association, a Director may waive notice of

any meeting and any such waiver may be prospective or
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NRAIMEREMBEEFENHETS
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FEENFRENMERANRE -

EI?:

BREFERHEHETZEGERAER
& NEERBRALEFGNEETER
EeeRnl REREAREBESE
HEETZEGKE  UHESE HET
ZEEKEER -

SHRLBHEFE HETZEEME
EHEIRSGERHRE R BT AN
RRE% o

EFAREESFEeRCIRR
EER - EEEERMERE  NEER

BARTFEH LN KK ERIFLE
Z e
EECEBH  AENEERRAELE

SRBYBEXER  RAMEUARREL
o BRBAQRN -

EEFE-RUEMARRTAERE
NWE2RBES (BEBIENTESE)
EHBEERAEE  UHAZERER (M
HE)% FMEZEE -

An agenda and accompanying board papers were sent
to all directors at least 3 days before the intended date

of board or board committee meeting.

The directors have access to the Company Secretary
who is responsible to the Board for ensuring that Board
procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations, are

followed.

The Company Secretary prepares written resolutions
or minutes and keeps records of matters discussed and
decisions resolved at all Board and Board Committee

meetings.

The Board and Board Committee minutes/resolutions
are sent to all Directors/Board Committee members
within a reasonable time after each Board and Board
Committee meeting and are available for inspection by

Directors/Board Committee members.

Minutes record in sufficient detail the matters
considered by the Board/Board Committees and

decisions reached.

The Directors are given an opportunity to comment on
draft Board minutes. Final version of Board minutes
is placed on record within a reasonable time after the

Board meeting.

Directors have been advised that the Company
Secretary can arrange independent professional advice
at the expense of the Company should such advice be

considered necessary by any Director.

Important matters are usually dealt with by way of
written resolutions so that all Directors (including
Independent Non-executive Directors) can note and
comment, as appropriate, the matters before approval is

granted.
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The Board having considered the attendance records
of the Directors is satisfied that each Director spends

sufficient time performing his responsibilities.

TERMS OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 of the Code requires that non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific
term and should be subject to re-election. The
independent non-executive directors of the Company
are not appointed for specific terms but are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at least once
every three years in accordance with the provision
of the Company’s Articles of Association. As such,
the Company considers that sufficient measures have
been taken to serve the purpose of this code provision.
Four out of the five non-executive directors have
remunerated at HK$67,000 per year and the remaining
has remunerated at HK$162,000 per year.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND BOARD
EVALUATION

B.1 REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Remuneration
Committee to advise the Company on the directors’
remuneration policy and other remuneration related

matters.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprised
of three members includes two Independent Non-
Executive Directors namely Dr. Sun Ping Hsu
Samson and Mr. Lam Ka Wai Graham and one
Executive Director namely Dr. Chao Sze Tsung
Cecil. Dr. Sun Ping Hsu Samson is the Chairman of

the Committee.
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REAH Name of Member
HRIB Sun Ping Hsu Samson
ENE Lam Ka Wai Graham
Fi=pu Chao Sze Tsung Cecil

The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are posted on the websites of the
Company (www.cheuknang.com.hk) and the Stock

Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee is primary
responsible for formulating and making
recommendation to the Board on the Group’s
policy and structuring the remuneration of
the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group. No Directors or any
of his associates is involved in deciding his own
remuneration. The remuneration package of the
Directors includes salary, bonus and pension. The
remuneration level is determined by reference
to the expertise, performance and experience

possessed by each Director.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at
least once a year or as requested by the director

responsible for resources function.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE MEETING

During the year, the Remuneration Committee
meeting was held in February 2021 reviewed and
recommended the remuneration package of all
directors and senior management to the Board for
approval with the relevant directors abstained to

the discussion of his/her remuneration package.

The individual attendance of each member is set

out below:
HESRRE
Number of HE=R
meetings attended Attendance rate
1/1 100%
1/1 100%
1/1 100%
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3. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
C.1 FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Management provide sufficient explanation
and information to the board to enable it to
make an informed assessment of financial and
other information put before it for approval. All
members of the board are provided with monthly
updates giving and balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company’s performance, position
and prospects in sufficient details to enable the

board and each director to discharge their duties.

DIRECTORS” RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities
for the preparation of the financial statements of
the Company and ensure that they are prepared
in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Directors
also ensure the timely publication of such financial

statements.

The statement of the external auditors of
the Company with regard to their reporting
responsibilities on the Company’s financial
statements is set out in the Report of the Auditors

on pages 132 to 141.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge, information and belief, having made
specific enquiries of all directors, they are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going

concern.
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C.2 INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has the responsibility to review annually
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls. In 2021, the Board, through
the Audit Committee, had reviewed the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and

financial reporting functions.

Risk management is defined as the continuing
process to identify, analyse, evaluate, and treat loss
exposures and monitor risk control and financial
resources to mitigate the adverse effects of loss.
Risk Appetite is the amount of risk that the Board
and the management are willing to accept in the

pursuit of the Group’s value.

Risk Management Approach

The Group adopts a “Top-Down” approach in
the Group’s risk management framework which
the Board, the Audit Committee, the senior
management and the department heads exercise
strong oversight on the establishment and

maintenance of the risk management policy.

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED £t (%8) AR25 | Annual Report 2021 4£##



”/’i‘e&%/é\ffﬂﬂ f)%

AEENERAEEBHNA NS
AERK

i. EEE
- FHMEMEETHEEAER
= B B B R M AR A @R
BEEEFIZE

. BETERRBEEERY
aﬁ*ﬁﬁﬁ%%éﬁ:

- BRRESEFHUAKER
HTATRREEBEN
BRIRITES WAL
TR RIEARAR RS
B AT 3 A 1 R

IJ]]D

_l_

ok

|
%%&w

i. =®

\
’

&
BEEEWNEREIER

- REREIREARETEE
7 BREZEEIHA
350 B MO B

- ZERESEEENERERE
BEENTEASE
HEFEHEIEE L E LR

BERMEE -

EERERHRE
Corporate Governance Report

Risk Governance Structure

The Group’s risk governance structure consists of

the following parties:

i. The Board of Directors
— evaluate and determine the nature and
extent of the risks it is willing to take in

achieving the Group’s strategic objectives;

— oversee management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk

management systems on an ongoing basis;

— ensure that a review of effectiveness of
the Group’s and its subsidiaries’ risk
management system has been conducted
at least annually and report to shareholder
that it has done so in Corporate

Governance Report.

ii. The Audit Committee
— review the Group’s risk management

systems;

— discuss the risk management systems with
management to ensure that management
has performed its duty to have effective

systems;

— consider major investigation findings on
risk management matters as delegated
by the board or on its own initiative and

management’s response to these findings.
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Senior Management

identify corporate risks;

review of corporate risks and mitigating

actions;

consider risks when making decisions;

articulate risk appetite when making

decisions.

Department Head

identify risks to the achievement of their
unit’s business plan which might also
be corporate risks, and to advise senior
management and Board of Directors of

such risks;

identify any relevant mitigating actions, to
include these within their unit’s business
plan, and to ensure the objective of

business plan is achieved;

be alert to other risks that might develop.

All Staffs

be alert to possible corporate risks and
report the risks that they have identified to

their managers.
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The Group’s risk management process comprises 4

core stages:

Risk identification

Each of the head of department is responsible
to identify potential risks that affect the Group
through assessing the market, competition
environment and the daily operations by
considering the risks relating to their processes.
The risks are then recorded into the risk
register, which serves to summarize the risks of
the Group as a whole by four risk categories,
namely reporting, operational, strategic and

compliance risk.

The risk register is submitted to the internal
audit function and the Audit Committee for

review upon completion.

The identification process is performed
annually to respond to the changing business
environment and to determine whether
adjustment is required for the risk identification

result.

Risk Assessment and Prioritization

(2.1)Risk Assessment
A common set of assessment criteria is
deployed across departments to assess
the risks in terms of likelihood and
consequences. The head of departments
are required to assign the ratings on the
likelihood and the consequences of the
risks in accordance with the assessment
criteria. The rating applied ranges from 1
to 5.
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(2.2)Risk Prioritization

Risks are prioritized in descending order
after the overall ratings are calculated. The
design of risk mitigation plan is based on
the risk prioritization and the details of the
plan are described in “(3) Risk Response”

sections.

(2.3)Assessment Criteria

The assessment criteria is determined by
the management and approved by the
Board.

(3) Risk Response
(3.1)Risk Mitigation Plan

Each department head is responsible to
formulate the risk mitigation plan upon the

completion of risk prioritization.

The risk mitigation plan includes the

following sections:

(i) Risk Identified
The Group will list out the top 10 risks
in descending order by using result
from the risk assessment. Description
of the risks and the impact of the risks
are required to be included under this

section.
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(ii) Risk mitigation plan
In the midst of the design of the
risk mitigation action, management
needs to consider the impact and the
vulnerability of the risks, and select
the most appropriate measure to
respond to the risks. The following
reference table summarizes the
types of the risk responses and the
circumstances to be adopted upon the

formulation of the risk mitigation:

B R ERANER
Type of Risk Responses |Circumstances to be adopted
%5 RBERSETERN W AERBASKFZA -
Acceptance Risks are considered as immaterial and it is within the risk
acceptance level.
D B R AR B R - A A R R R AR XA
Reduction 7J<$ °
Risks are considered as material, and controls are available
to reduce the risks to an acceptable level.
A= %Wﬁ%éﬁ$ﬁ'$ BIEE K A [ E R E XK o
Sharing [E\ R B o5 W4 R ﬁ?ﬁﬁi\@ﬁj@,v\@ﬁ/\% °
Risks are considered as material, and the Group is not able
to reduce the risks to an acceptable level solely. The portion
of risks has to be transferred to or shared with other parties.
s R R AEME - B TR —E 8 7 A RER AT X K
Avoidance oo EREBRRERAIEXAKERETSEANSHAE

Risks are considered as material, and the risks cannot be
reduced to an acceptable level by all means, or it requires

unreasonably high cost to reduce the risks to an acceptable

level.
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(3.2)Reporting to those charged with
Governance After department heads
submit the risk register and risk mitigation
plans to senior management for review,
the senior management will perform the
consolidation of the risk register and the
risk mitigation plans, thereafter report to

the Board and the Audit Committee.

(4) Risk Monitoring
(4.1)Daily Monitoring
The department heads are responsible to
implement and monitor the risk mitigation
plan, and review its effectiveness since

implementation.

(4.2)Annual Review Reporting A report, which
summarises the monitoring activities
during the year and the risk mitigation
results, is prepared by each responsible
department annually, and submitted to

senior management for review.

Handling and dissemination of inside information

The Company has developed its disclosure policy
to provide the general guideline on handling
confidential information, monitoring of information
disclosure and response to queries to its directors,
officers, senior management and the relevant
employees. The Company has executed supervision
programs to confirm the strict prohibition
from unauthorised access to and use of inside

information.
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The Group does not have an internal audit function
as the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Company and is
currently of the view that there is no immediate
need to set up an internal audit function within the
Group in light of the size, nature and complexity
of the Group’s business. The situation will be

reviewed from time to time.

The Board also contracted Grant Thornton
Advisory Services Limited to conduct the risk
management and internal control reviews of the
financial reporting & disclosure controls, revenue
management and inventory management for
the year ended 30 June 2021. The reports were
distributed to the Audit Committee and the Board

for their review.

For the year ended 30 June 2021, the Board
considered the Group’s risk management and
internal control system as adequate and effective
and that the Company has complied with the code

provisions on internal control of the Code.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee currently comprises of two
independent non-executive directors and one
non-executive director, namely Dr. Sun Ping Hsu
Samson, Mr. Lam Ka Wai Graham and Mr. Lee
Ding Yue Joseph. Mr. Lam Ka Wai Graham is the
chairman of the Audit Committee. The composition
and members of the Audit Committee complies
with the requirements under Rule 3.21 to the

Listing Rules.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are posted on the websites of the Company

(www.cheuknang.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange.
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The main function of the Audit Committee is to
assist the Board to oversee the financial report
system, risk management and internal control
procedures and the external audit functions. The
Audit Committee annually assesses the appointment
of the external auditor, taking into account the
quality and rigor of the audit, the quality of the
auditor service provided, the audit firm’s quality
control procedures, relationships between the
external auditors and the Company and the

independence of the external auditors.

As required by Code Provision C.3.7 of the Code,
details of arrangements for employees to raise
concerns about improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control and other matters have been
included in the terms of reference of the Audit

Committee in February 2012.

No member of the Audit Committee is a former
partner of the existing auditing firm of the Company
during the one year after he/she ceases to be a

partner of the auditing firm.

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING

During the year, two Audit Committee meetings
were held in September 2020 and February 2021

with the presence of the external auditors. The

JEEEIBWT individual attendance of each member is set out
below:
HESBXE
Number of HER
REAH Name of Member meetings attended Attendance rate
FRiR Sun Ping Hsu Samson 2/2 100%
MR Lam Ka Wai Graham 2/2 100%
FHRE Lee Ding Yue Joseph 2/2 100%
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The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting
procedure and policies adopted by the Company
and discussed with management and the external
auditors regarding the internal controls and
financial reporting matters. To monitor the integrity
of the financial statements of the Company, the
Audit Committee has reviewed the interim report
for the six months ended 31 December, 2020, the
audited financial statements for the year ended 30
June, 2021 before their submission to the Board.
There was no disagreement between the Board
and the Audit Committee on the selection and
appointment of the external auditors during the

year under review.

4. COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
D.1 INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company continues to enhance relationship
and communication with its investors. Detailed
information about the Company’s performance and
activities is provided in the annual report and the
interim report which are sent to shareholders. The
Company maintains close communications with
investors analysts, fund managers and the media by
individual interviews and meetings. The Group also
responds to requests for information and queries
from the investors in an informative and timely
manner. The Board also welcomes the views of
shareholders on matters affecting the Group and
encourages them to attend shareholders’” meetings
to communicate any concerns they might have with

the Board or senior management directly.
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The Company has adopted a Shareholders’

Communication Policy which was posted in the

Company’s website and of the Stock Exchange.

The Company establishes different communication

channels with shareholders and investors,

including:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

printed copies of corporate communications
(including but not limited to annual reports,
interim reports, notices of meetings, circulars
and proxy forms) required under the Listing
Rules, and shareholders can choose (or are
deemed to have consented) to receive such
documents using electronic means through the

Company’s website;

the annual general meeting provides a forum
for shareholders to raise comments and

exchange views with the Board;

updated and key information on the Group
is available on the website of the Company

(www.cheuknang.com.hk);

the Company’s website offers a communication
channel between the Company and its

shareholders;

the Company’s Registrar deals with
shareholders for share registration and related

matters; and

the Company Secretary of the Company
handles enquiries from shareholders and

investors generally.
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The annual general meeting is used as an
opportunity to communicate with all shareholders.
Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual
general meetings for which a notice would be
served with at least 20 clear business days. For
all other general meetings, notice will be sent to
shareholders with at least 10 clear business days.
The Chairman and/or Directors are available to
answer questions on the Group’s business at the
meetings. At general meetings, separate resolutions
are proposed on each substantially separate issue
such as the election of individual directors and re-

appointment of auditors.

Details of poll voting procedures and the rights
of shareholders to demand a poll is included in a
circular to shareholders accompanied the annual
report. The circular also includes relevant details
on proposed resolutions, and biographies of each

candidates standing for re-election.

The constitutional document of the Company
was posted in the Company’s website and of the
Stock Exchange. There has not been change in the

constitutional document during the year.

At the 2020 annual general meeting of the
Company, the external auditors and the Chairmen
of the Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Audit Committee were attended to
answer the questions from the shareholders. The
Chairman of the meeting has explained the detailed
procedures for conducting a poll, and answered

questions from shareholders.
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The Chairman of the meeting exercised his power
under the Company’s Articles of Association to put
each resolution set out in the notice to be voted by
way of a poll. Representatives of the Share Registrar
of the Company were appointed as scrutineers to
monitor and count the poll votes cast at the 2020
annual general meeting. Since the Company’s 2009
annual general meeting, all the resolutions put to
vote at the Company’s general meetings were taken
by poll. Poll results were posted on the websites of

the Company and the Stock Exchange.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Ms Ho Sau Fun Connie, is
responsible to the Board for ensuring that the Board
procedures are followed and the Board activities
are efficiently and effectively conducted. These
objectives are achieved through adherence to proper
Board procedures and the timely preparation and
dissemination of meeting agendas and papers to the
Directors. Minutes of all meeting of the Board and the
Board committees are prepared and maintained by
the Company Secretary to record in sufficient details
the matters considered and decisions reached by the
Board or the Board Committee. All minutes are sent to
the Directors and are available for inspection by any

Director upon request.

The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that
the Board is fully apprised of all legislative, regulatory
and corporate governance developments relating to the
Group and that it takes these into consideration when

making decisions for the Group.
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The Company Secretary is also directly responsible
for seeking to ensure the Group’s compliance with
all obligations under the Listing Rules and The Codes
on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Repurchases,
including the preparation, publication and dispatch of
annual reports and interim reports within the time limits
set out in the Listing Rules and the timely dissemination

of the same to the Shareholders.

Furthermore, the Company Secretary advises the
Directors on their obligations for disclosures of interests
and dealings in the Group’s securities, connected
transactions and price-sensitive information and ensures
that the standard and disclosures required by the Listing
Rules are observed and, where required, reflected in the

annual report of the Company.

The appointment and removal of the Company is
subject to Board approval in accordance with the
Articles of Association of the Company. All members of
the Board have access to the advice and service of the

Company Secretary.

Ms. Ho Sau Fun Connie was appointed as the Company
Secretary of the Company in February 1996 and has
day-to-day knowledge of the Group’s affairs. Ms. Ho
Sau Fun Connie has confirmed, following specific
enquiry made by the Company that she has complied
with all the qualifications, experience and training

requirements of the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Set out below are procedures by which Shareholders
may: (1) calling for extraordinary general meeting;
(2) putting forward enquiries to the Board and (3)
putting forward proposals at general meetings. These
procedures are generally governed by the provisions of
the Company’s Articles of Association and applicable
laws, rules and regulations, which prevail over what is

stated in this section in case of inconsistencies.

Calling for Extraordinary General Meeting by
Shareholders

Under the Companies Ordinance, Chapter 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “CO”), registered
shareholder(s) of the Company representing at least 5%
of the total voting rights of all the shareholders having a
right to vote at general meetings may request to call an
extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) of the Company.
The request (a) must state the general nature of the
business to be dealt with at the meeting, (b) must be
signed by the requisitionist(s), and (c) must be deposited
at the registered office of the Company (the “Registered
Office”) at Suite 4901, 49/F., Central Plaza, 18 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for the attention of the
Company Secretary. If the resolution is to be proposed
as a special resolution, the request should include
the text of the resolution and specify the intention to
propose the resolution as a special resolution. The
request may consist of several documents in like form,

each signed by one or more requisitionist(s).
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The Directors must call an EGM within 21 days from
the date of the deposit of the valid request. Such
meeting should be held on a date not more than 28
days after the date of the notice convening the meeting.
If the Directors fail to call the EGM as aforesaid, the
requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more than
one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves call the EGM. The EGM must be called
for a date not more than 3 months after the date of
the deposit of the request. Any reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) by reason of the
failure of the Directors duly to call an EGM shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting forward enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board
through the Company Secretary who will direct the
enquiries to the Board for handling. The contact details

of the Company Secretary are as follows:

The Company Secretary

Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited

Suite 4901, 49/F., Central Plaza

18 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Email: info@cheuknang.com.hk or
connieho@cheuknang.com.hk

Tel No.: (852) 2526 7799

Fax No.: (852) 2521 7728

Shareholders can also contact Computershare Hong
Kong Investors Services Limited, the share registrar of
the Company, if they have any enquiries about their

shareholdings.
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3.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General

Meetings by Shareholders
Circulation of shareholders’ statement

Under the CO,

Company representing at least 2.5% of the total voting

registered shareholder(s) of the

rights of all the shareholders who have a relevant right
to vote, or at least 50 shareholders who have a relevant
right to vote may request the Company to circulate to
shareholders of the Company entitled to receive notice
of a general meeting a statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to a matter mentioned in a proposed
resolution or other business to be dealt with at that

meeting.

The request (a) must be signed by the requisitionist(s),
(b) must be deposited at the Registered Office for the
attention of the Company Secretary, (c) must identify
the statement to be circulated, and (d) must be received
by the Company at least 7 days before the meeting to

which it relates.

The expenses of circulating shareholders’ statement
need not be paid by the requisitionist(s) if the meeting
to which the requests relate is an annual general
meeting of the Company; and requests sufficient to
require the Company to circulate the statement are
received in time to enable the Company to send a copy
of the statement at the same time as it gives notice of
the meeting. Otherwise, such expenses must be paid
by the requisitionist(s); and there is deposited with or
tendered to the Company, not later than 7 days before
the meeting, a sum reasonable sufficient to meet such
expenses in doing do, unless the Company resolves

otherwise.
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Circulation of resolution for annual general meeting

Under the CO, registered shareholder(s) of the
Company representing at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all the members who have a right to vote on
the resolution at the annual general meeting to which
the requests relate, or at least 50 shareholders who have
a right to vote on the resolution at the annual general
meeting to which the requests relate, may request the
Company to give, to shareholders of the Company
entitled to receive notice of the annual general meeting,
notice of a resolution that is intended to be moved at

that meeting.

The request (a) must be signed by the requisitionist(s),
(b) must be deposited at the Registered Office for the
attention of the Company Secretary, (c) must identify
the resolution of which notice is to be given, and (d)
must be received by the Company not later than (i) 6
weeks before the annual general meeting to which the
requests relate; or (ii) if later, the time at which notice is

given of that meeting.

The Company must send a copy of the notice of a
resolution at the Company’s own expense to each
shareholder entitled to receive notice of the annual

general meeting.
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Nomination of a person for election as a Director

Pursuant to Article 107 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, a shareholder can propose a person for
election to the office of Director at any general meeting
by giving the Company notice in writing of the intention
to propose that person for election as a Director and
notice in writing by that person of his willingness to
be elected at least seven days before the date of the
general meeting. The period for lodgment of such
notices shall commence no earlier than the day after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than 7 days prior to

the date of such general meeting.

Circulation of Written Resolution

Under the CO, registered shareholder(s) of the
Company representing not less than 5% of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders entitled to vote on
the resolution, may request the Company to circulate
a proposed written resolution to its shareholders.
The requisitionist(s) may also request the Company
to circulate with the proposed written resolution a
statement of not more than 1,000 words in respect of

the resolution.

The request (a) must be signed by the requisitionist(s),
(b) must be deposited at the Registered Office for
the attention of the Company Secretary, and (c)
must identify the resolution and any statement to be

circulated.

The Company must send a copy of the proposed written
resolution and statement (if any) at the Company’s own
expense to every shareholder not more than 21 days
from the date of the deposit of the valid request. The
Company must ensure that the copy of proposed written
resolution is accompanied by guidance as to how to
signify agreement to the resolution and the day by

which the resolution must be passed.
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INSURANCE FOR DIRECTORS’ AND
OFFICERS’” LIABILITIES

During the year, the Company has arranged for the
renewal of an insurance policy on directors’ and
officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
the Directors and officers of the Company and its
subsidiaries arising out of corporate activities of the

Group.

AUDITORS” REMUNERATION

During the year, the fees paid or payable to external
auditors of the Company, Grant Thornton Hong Kong
Limited, was approximately HK$677,000 for statutory
audit services rendered to the Group. The Group has
not engaged external auditors to perform non-audit

services.

The Group also appointed other external auditors
for the statutory audit purposes of certain overseas
subsidiaries and their remuneration for audit services

rendered was approximately HK$59,000.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

Environmental Policy

Our commitment to protect the environment is well
reflected by our continuous efforts in promoting green
measures and awareness in all business practices. The
Group has introduced a green policy to enhance the
awareness of environmental protection among staff with
the aims of saving energy, fully utilizing resources and

recycling wastes in daily office operation.
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10.

For the past years, the Group had undertaken initiatives
to reduce paper usage including usage of electronic
devices, and encouraging the use of websites and
online version of corporate communications. To reduce
the power consumption, lighting and equipment will be
turned off when not in use. Our Group is using office
equipment carries Energy Label issued by the Electrical
and Mechanical Services Department which save the

energy in the offices.

Community Involvement

We encourage our employees to spend more time with
their families and engage in volunteer work in their free
time. The focus areas of contribution have been poverty
alleviation, education, environmental recycling, and the
arts. The senior management of the Group endeavours
to lead the way through example by regularly
contributing time, supplies, and financial resources to

charitable work.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Company recognizes that our employees,
customers and business associates are keys to our
sustainability journey. We strive to achieve corporate
sustainability through engaging our employees,
providing quality services for our customers,
collaborating with business partners and supporting our
community. The Company provides a fair workplace,
promoting non-discrimination and diversity to our staff,
together with competitive remuneration and benefits, as
well as a range of opportunities for career advancement
based on employees’ merits and performance. The
Company provides subsidy to staff for trainings to keep
them abreast of the latest developments in the market

and industry.
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BOARD STATEMENT

On behalf of the Group, our Board of Directors (the
“Board”) is pleased to present the 2020/21 Environmental,
Social and Governance Report (“ESG Report”) of Cheuk
Nang (Holdings) Limited, in reporting our performance
in the areas of sustainable, operational responsibility,

environmental protection, employee care, and community.

In confront with the challenges of the rising uncertainties
of the current macroeconomic situation and the outbreak
of the COVID-19 pandemic, our stakeholders have become
more concerned about our sustainability performance, as
the situation affected the overall sustainable growth of the

environmental, social and governance aspect.

The Board endeavours to support the Group’s commitment
in incorporating sustainable development into our business.
It has overall responsibility for formulating strategies,
monitoring and managing ESG-related risks, as well as
ensuring the effectiveness of ESG risk management and
internal control systems. The management is responsible for
the implementation of ESG initiatives and the measurements
of the corresponding performance, while the Board takes
responsibility for reviewing, examining and approving
the Group’s ESG report to ensure its compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations and alliance with our vision.
The Board will continuously review its business strategy
and its internal sustainability policy, and communicate the
Group’s annual sustainability performance in a responsible
manner to ensure that its environmental and social impacts

are reviewed and minimized.
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We hold value to all stakeholders’ interests, and formulate
relevant strategies and other plans for sustainable
development based on our stakeholders’ views and
expectations. We continue to identify key sustainability
topics to both the Group and its stakeholders based on the
ESG Reporting Guide and existing communication channels.
Subsequently, we assess the materiality matrix by ranking
the key topics according to its total scores through our
quantitative analysis and the results are reviewed by the

Board.

In the future, the Group will continue its effort in collecting
opinions from all stakeholders, keep improving its ESG
reporting and promoting ESG development, and ultimately

create long-term value for the Group and the community.

ABOUT THIS ESG REPORT
Objective

Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited (“Cheuk Nang”, “the
Group”, “We”) is pleased to present the Environmental,
Social and Governance (“ESG”) report (the “Report”), which
summarized the ESG initiatives and accomplishments
to stakeholders during the Reporting Year, so that the
stakeholders can understand the progress and direction of

the sustainable development of the Group.
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Reporting Scope and Boundaries

This report covers the period from 1 July 2020 to 30 June
2021 (the “Reporting Year”), which is in conformity with
the Group’s financial year. This report focuses on the
Group’s management approach, performance and measures
in respect of the environmental, social and governance
aspects. The reporting scope covered our major business
operations, including our property development and
investment and provision of property management and
related services at Head Office which located in Hong Kong

for the Reporting Year.

The source of data in preparing the ESG report is primarily
based on the internal policies and documents as well as
information provided by various key stakeholders. Cheuk
Nang will continue to optimise its data collection and
reporting system over the three aspects: environmental
management, social responsibility and governance, and
gradually expand the disclosure scope to improve the
quality and comprehensiveness of the report in the long

term.

Reporting Principles

This Report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
(“the Guide”) contained in Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), for the
purpose of identifying and making disclosure of the
material matters and key performance indicators in relation
to the Group’s environmental, social and governance
and promoting the full implementation of sustainable
development and social responsibilities by the Group. The
report was reviewed, confirmed and approved by the Board

on 28 September 2021.
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The disclosure in this report complies with the “comply
or explain” requirements by following the reporting

principles of “materiality”, “quantitative”, “balance” and
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“consistency”. Please refer to the table below for our

understanding and response to such reporting principles.

YT A RMHTH
Principle Context Our Action
BEEMH BERBCEZTSETQHREERAME | RAOERHEEE - AT HEABM
Materiality MEELBBXENRE HELELREHE - | AEAKERREENRE - X
The Report should contain the ESG EETEZERME - UBERIEXR
issues determined by the board that are HEE o
sufficiently important to investors and other | We communicated with our
stakeholders. stakeholders to understand
their concerns relating to
sustainability issues and
conducted materiality
assessment to identify the
material topics.
1t BERAAIGENABRBERRERIER & | ©EENBRT  RMAKERR

Quantitative

BORR HERERBRRREERSNHN
3 Al R (A N e RE - B ERIEM R
MAEBRMEFE WEEENBR MM
LB BUE -

The Report should disclose key
performance indicators in ways that can

be measured so that the effectiveness of
ESG policies and management systems can
be evaluated and validated. Quantitative
information should be accompanied by a
narrative, explaining its purpose, impacts
and giving comparative data where

appropriate.

BIIERR - E(LERARKRER
BE A ©

We disclosed key performance
indicators, quantitative
information and the
methodology in collecting the

data, where applicable.
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Context

BRANTH

Our Action

Consistency

HeERERBIEARAEEERNLE -
The Report should use consistent
methodologies to allow for meaningful

comparisons of ESG data over time.

F & BERETR I FHE2RBMANKRR - @R | AFNBEFEEEBEARENE
Balance AREE TR EMTERSTEERRNHAE N | B LB RS & LR
EE BRI 2HMBA - T o

The Report should provide an unbiased We aimed to keep balanced
picture of our performance. The Report and unbiased picture by
should avoid selections, omissions, disclosing both achievements
or presentation formats that may and challenges in this report.
inappropriately influence a decision or
judgment by the Report reader.

— % BREREA-—BORBERA L RE - | ZAEA—ZWIE  SRMAN

REBBRIIEEEENLER - 75
EIA AR E - RIERE AR
BH o

We adopted consistent
methodologies to allow fair
comparison of our performance
over time. Changes to the

methodologies, if any, were

indicated in the report.

BHENSR

BEEME - THRIRIITHRREIERMHE
MBI MERERAFEERNEE -
AREBREHEEIANEBRRERATER
MEBBE UWHERIZFHENERLER
EREMEIARMRENERE - TRET
SREHEANNEZRNENE LT -
NEREZEEEDE -

Stakeholder Engagement

Cheuk Nang believes understanding and taking actions
to tackle key stakeholders’ concerns and expectations is
the goal to achieve sustainable development. The Group
actively communicates with key stakeholders through
different communication channels in order to ensure
comments and feedbacks from major stakeholders could be
effectively and timely addressed. The following table shows
the expectations and concerns of the major stakeholders
as identified by Cheuk Nang, and the corresponding

management responses.
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#HE BERE MK BT EEENRE
Stakeholders Communication Expectations and Management Feedback
Channels concerns
5P - FEERBRAK |- #WE — WMREBETEHNEE URERP
Customers — Customer — Integrity Mes LR K
service hotline | — E&E R K& E @ — Ensuring contractual
— High quality services obligations are in place to
and products protect customers’ benefits and
rights; and

— BARHEIRBLEM B2
ReEFPMEE -

— Maximizing customers’
satisfaction by providing high

quality services and products.

== - @& - AXREE — TEREREEZE:
Employees — Conferences —  Humanity — Paying attention to
- EREZE occupational health and safety;
— Health and safety — BEETEOITERE
- EXERE — Creating a comfortable working
— Career development environment;
— SIf#Ea — HEEBEZEFSEEENERE
— Labour rights SIALRTRE S 2

— Encouraging employees to
participate in continuous
education and professional
training to enhance
competency; and

— BMRBUTASHETURESI#

S o

— Ensuring contractual

obligations to protect labour

rights.
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E&oE
Stakeholders

Communication

MK BAE EEENRE

Management Feedback

Expectations and

Channels concerns

f% =R
Shareholders

— FHEPHHRSE

— Annual and
interim reports

- BREREAFAE

— Annual general

REM@#H

Return on investment
&R

Interest protection

BHER

BRBRRAFASBRAEER
B R AR E R

Ensuring transparency and
efficient communications

through annual general

meetings Information meetings;
— BERXSHIAM transparency T FEREPEARSE - &
— Announcements 1R b B IR Publishing annual and interim
in HKEXx Operating risks reports; and
management MREBRZ ST HIETE B A o
Publishing regular
announcements in HKEx.
B — R 85T AR KRR HEEBE RRBEE LRI E
The Government | — Official letters Compliance with E 373
— DNREW applicable laws and Upholding integrity and
— Public regulations operating business in
consultations BT EE compliance with laws and

Fulfill tax obligation
{/E/\Hﬁﬂ
Cooperation for

mutual benefits

regulations; and

RERP - M ERMEE -

Paying tax on time in return
contributing to the society.

HEm EER |- g# A= ERETAEOEE &
Suppliers/ — Meetings Integrity Ensuring contractual
Constructors FERANRBEBRE obligations are in place; and
Transparent VARER B2 BT e RS, R
procurement process & o
Performing supplier/contractor
selection with due care.
a2 — HERERENBE Hesn HEEIZ2BEARZEEH &
The Community | — Community Involvement in Encouraging staff to participate
investment and society in charitable events; and
donation B 49 58 IR BITARKREER  BAER -
Energy saving BIRAALEWEIR - EER
BRRAE DHIRBNTE -
Resources Implementing eco-friendly

conversation

measures to reduce, reuse and

recycle resources to minimize

environmental impact.
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

Cheuk Nang values the opinion given by stakeholders.
Taken the stakeholder’s expectation into consideration,
we analysed the importance of environmental, social and
governance reporting issues. Factors such as business
strategy objectives and policies, industry standards, legal
and regulatory responsibilities, environmental protection,
use of resources, quality control and employee protection,
etc. were considered in order to identify the impact of the

business operations.

The procedures for the materiality assessment are as follow:

Step 1: Identification — With reference to the sustainability
topics listed in the ESG Reporting Guide and the latest
sustainability trends in the industry, 16 ESG issues were

identified where they posed higher significance to both

stakeholders and our business operation:

BRE -HEREREER Fi BE -HEREREEH
ESG Aspects No. ESG lIssues
A. BRI
A. Environmental
A1 BRI 1 AR E R B BER

ATl: Emissions

Reduction in greenhouse gas emissions

A2 BIRGEF

A2: Use of Resources

2 fEEIR

Resources saving

A3 IRIBERRKAER
A3: The Environment and
Natural Resources

3 BERIAEENRREZE
Minimizing the Group’s environmental impact

A4 RixEAE
A4: Climate Change

4 RIXHERBEEE

Climate-related issues
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RE -HEREREER
ESG Aspects

755 BE HEREAREE
No. ESG Issues

B. #&
B. Social
1:1&E 5 EEERAKEME

B1: Employment

Employee’s hiring and retention
6 & BAEF

Employee’s welfare

B2 : @i L %
B2: Health and Safety

7 BREFETE
Occupational health and safety

B3 : R KIEH

B3: Development and Training

8 BEE#ER

Employee’s development

B4 : & T %R
B4: Labour Standards

9 Br1EE T Mok Hlgs T

Prevention of forced and child labour

B5 : fLIESEE
B5: Supply Chain Management

10 B LA E R M

Process of supplier selection and assessment

B6 : Em=E T
B6: Product Responsibility

11 REE P LR

Protection of customers privacy
12 e 2R

Handling of complaints

13 R 5 0 38 72

Protection of intellectual property rights
14 EmEENEE
Product quality and responsibility

B7 : RES
B7: Anti-corruption

15 REFMRERE

Anti-corruption and anti-money laundering

B8 : (T [@IFE

B8: Community Investment

16 HEIEE

Community investment

%ﬁ%ﬁ% F-—RETERE Hgke
BEEZEEN  BRFMREBESHREEEMN
Ex%ﬁﬁzti HOE10MER (0BT
HE  10RZEWEZ)HFERE Ha8k
EREEMHBARE SEEHETTHR
Fo o UTEE MM 47 RINIPET
MER(HRNEZTE)  B#HAETA
HIHER(HEBITE) - LRA LA
SRZEBER HERELAEFEREHEE -

Step 2: Prioritisation — To determine the materiality of the
ESG issues, we have assessed and scored the relevance/
importance of each of the ESG issues based on the views of
our senior management and key stakeholders on a scale of
0 to 10 (0 is irrelevant and 10 is crucial). The vertical axis
of the below materiality matrix shows the result of external
assessment (impact on stakeholders) and the horizontal axis
presents the internal assessment result (impact on business).
The ESG issues that fall within top right-hand quadrant are

of greatest importance.
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Materiality Matrix
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AESRHE (HEB2FE)

Internal assessment (Impact on business)

Fi BRE HERELEE Fih BRE HERELEE
Topics of environmental, social and governance . Topics of environmental, social and governance
T R EEREBIN 9 |BIEEIREHST
Reduction in greenhouse gas emissions Prevention of forced and child labour
2 |EEER 10 | BRELFHAHEROERF
Resources saving Process of supplier selection and assessment
3 |BERIARENRETE 11 | REFFLE
Minimizing the Group’s environmental impact Protection of customers privacy
4 | RIXHEBREE 12 | BRI
Climate-related issues Handling of complaints
5 |[EEEAMEE 13 | REMBERE
Employee’s hiring and retention Protection of intellectual property rights
6 |EEREF 14 |EmEERATE
Employee’s welfare Product quality and responsibility
7 |BREREZE 15 |REB/MREERE
Occupational health and safety Anti-corruption and anti-money laundering
8 |EB%ERE 16 |HEEE
Employee’s development Community investment

F35 ERA-AREHHMLIFMERE Step 3: Application — To address the most mattered issues to
ENET FREZEEEEEFMNMOMER  us as well as our stakeholders, Cheuk Nang’s responses to
RERE AT B E 1T E A ARt these important issues have been elaborated in more details

in the following sections of this report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL

Cheuk Nang understands that business operation will
exert certain impacts on the surrounding environment,
and recognises its responsibility to adopt environment-
friendly practices across business development. In order
to achieve the goal of alleviating adverse impacts on
the environment and pursuing long-term sustainable
developments, the Group actively integrates green
protection concepts and implemented a series of
environmental protection measures into our projects

and daily office operations.

Similar to last year, Cheuk Nang had limited number
of construction projects during the Reporting Year, and
the business operation focused on property leasing and
provision of property management services that mainly

operated in an office setting.

A1: Emissions
Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions

Fuel consumption by motor vehicles and flights
taken for business trips are the main sources of
air emissions in our operation. With the aim of
reducing greenhouse gas emissions, our vehicles
are required to take regular maintenance to
utilize fuel efficiency, while we also encourages
employees to the use of video and phone meeting
equipment to reduce the face-to-face meeting. Not
only do these practices bring cost-saving benefit
to the Group, it also contributes in lowering the
carbon footprint and emission reduction of the

Group.

Another source of GHG emissions from our
operation comes from the electricity consumption
in our office. The Group has educated and
encouraged our staffs to commit to good energy-
saving practices by providing continuous training

and affix energy saving reminders.
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We committed to comply with the Air Pollution
Control Ordinance in Hong Kong to strengthen
pollution control and protect the environment.
During the Reporting Year, Cheuk Nang generated
74.12 tons of carbon dioxide equivalent emissions,
produced 12.79 kg of nitrogen oxides, 0.38kg of

sulphur oxides and 0.94kg of particulate matter.

As target setting, the Group aims to reduce GHG
Emissions by at least 5% in the next 5 years,
comparing with 2020. In order to achieving the
target, the Group has been actively choosing
clean and efficient energy and is committed to
downsizing energy consumption to reduce direct

and indirect GHG emissions.

Wastes

During the Reporting Year, Cheuk Nang had limited
construction works in Hong Kong and they were
mainly outsourced to external contractors. Most
of the hazardous and non-hazardous wastes in
construction sites have been handled and disposed
by third-party contractors in accordance with the
Waste Disposal Ordinance in Hong Kong, hence
there is limited information available regarding the
construction waste. For the daily operation in office
setting, Cheuk Nang mainly generated recyclable
wastes - papers and domestic garbage, which
are handled by the property management service

provider.
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To minimize the waste of papers and domestic
garbage, the Group applies the concept of “4R” (i.e.
Reduce, Reuse, Replace and Recycle approach) by

taking a step forward as below:

e Adopt electronic means of communications
(such as email, mobile and website) and
electronic filing of documents as far as

possible;

e Use duplex printing for documents and

adjusting the print area before printing;

e Reuse waste paper for printing draft

documents;

e  Collect used paper for recycling;

e Evaluate the usage of material to avoid

overstock; and

e Provide guidance and instruction to employees

on source separation of waste.

During the Reporting Year, the Group consumed
0.11 tons of paper. In order to protect the natural
environment and prevent waste of resources, the
Group aims to reduce waste of paper by at least 5%

in the next 5 years, comparing with FY2020/21.

Annual Report 2021 4£%t | CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED & (%£E) AR

91



92

RE-HERERRE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

A2: BERE M

BEJR ~ K & A il )EFE

BARKEMEEFANEEER -
HFZARNSMAERME  Hlan
B - FTENH R B o RATREF
B AXEEHHAEER16.87KE
Br o FPIFEARIRER T — RAIRTRERE
B NEBRERNSBER - flm
A EH R ERFE245 268
KE  BRATHERNRR  WHRA
HHERUSIZHRAEERE - £
RERRE - R BETROE RN ME R
BEREBEYEN - A AR EER
DANENFZ - KPIEFEIERK
EMASREEHEEEHE KA
B E R KRE  NEIEE
WARERERENER - BHR =F
TRE CBWBIE-FT C—BBEF
JEABLL + AEEMERERESE R

9\%9\50/0 °©

BRI R E I RS R R 2
H - Eib I \EAEERAERKNE
e @EWML  FRETBEEEE
AR DA BRI RKE R o

ERFTREBERME  (FRMEER
B HRERENAEREBBIELE
BREE  BRAREFEREM
HEREX TEM -

A2: Use of Resources

Energy, water and other consumption

Electricity is the main resource used in our
operation, which is consumed by various office
equipment, e.g. computers, printers and light bulbs.
During the Reporting Year, the Group consumed
16.87MWh electricity. We have proactively taken
a series of energy-saving measures to achieve
efficient use of resources, such as to keep the office
temperature at 24 to 26 degrees Celsius, turning
off unnecessary lighting, and deploying energy-
efficient devices which carry energy efficiency
label. Cheuk Nang understands that reducing
energy consumption not only cuts greenhouse gas
emissions but also reduces unnecessary expense
for the Group, we plan to replace lighting or
equipment with automatic low power mode
or energy-saving mode with the objective of
minimizing energy consumption in the future. The
energy consumption of the Group is expected to be
reduced by at least 5% by 2026, comparing with
FY2020/21.

The information on water consumption of the office
is unavailable since the water supply is controlled
by the property management service provider.
On the other hand, Cheuk Nang encourages its
employees to minimize their water usage in order

to build awareness of water conservation.

As for packaging material usage, since packaging
is not involved in the usual course of Cheuk
Nang’s business as a property developer, the use of
packaging material during the Reporting Year is not

applicable.
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A3: Environment and Nature Resources

As disclosed above, the major environmental
impacts of our Group include the emission
of greenhouse gases associated with the use
of vehicles, the usage of electricity and the
consumption of paper for office operations,
thus the environmental impacts regarding the
business operation in Hong Kong are limited.
However, Cheuk Nang is aware of the importance
in protecting the environment for the well-
being of the society and the next generation. We
endeavour to further lessen the adverse impact on
the environment in the future by adopting more
resource-saving and environmentally-friendly
equipment whenever possible, to enhance the
environmental awareness of our staff and business
partners, and in turn achieve the goal of sustainable

development collectively.

A4: Climate Change

As climate change is becoming a more prevalent
issue around the world, there is an increasing effort
in companies with its energy conservation and
emission reduction, while international cooperation
has been conducted to respond to public demands
and implement the concept of sustainable
development. Cheuk Nang is aware with these
international trends and policies, and is hoping
to incorporate more sustainable development
elements and actions to our business operation to
prepare us from issues that may arise from climate
change. Furthermore, we established the reduction
targets in next 5-yeasrs based on FY2020/21 levels
for GHG Emissions, waste and energy consumption

and will disclose our progress annually.
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We believe that extreme weather changes brought
about by climate change will be one of the
unavoidable climate risks for business activities,
and extreme weather events such as large-scale
wildfires, earthquakes and typhoons will bring
dangers to the living environment and affect our
properties and operations. Therefore, the Group
has internal guidelines in place for employees and
departments to respond to major disasters and
in cases of emergency, which will be regularly
reviewed and improved to reduce the climate risk

to the business operations.

The Group will take into account the
recommendations of Task Force on Climate-
related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) to enhance
the governance processes and integrate the
consideration of the climate-related risks and

opportunities into our future risk assessment.

SOCIAL

Acknowledging the significance of developing a
mutually beneficial community for sustainability and
prosperity, Cheuk Nang ingrains social responsibility
into all aspects of operations. The Group will continue
to devote to the society through improving our

contribution and services.

B1. Employment

Employees are the foundation of our long-term
business success. Cheuk Nang is dedicated to build
a respectful and harmonious workplace in order to
enhance the working incentives and motivations of

our staff.
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The Group attracts and retains talents with
competitive remuneration packages, generous
welfare and benefits. Cheuk Nang welcomes talent
in all kinds, regardless of their age, background,
ethnic group, gender, religion, marital status, family
status, pregnancy, disability, politics or race. We
also promote and make salary adjustment by a fair

and non-discriminatory evaluation procedure.

The Group provides employees with competitive
compensation, holiday benefits and discretionary
bonus. All of our staffs are entitled to the medical
benefits and a 5.5 working days arrangement,
MPF schemes, retirement benefits, annual leaves,
marriage leave, maternity leave and other leaves
in lines with the Employment Ordinance of Hong
Kong, Minimum Wage Ordinance and Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance of Hong Kong.
To understand our area of improvements, we try to
address the concern or complaints from our staff.
As stated in the Group’s policy “Code of Conduct”,
complaints could be sent directly to the Executive
Chairman, and all the feedback and complaints will
be handled with confidentiality. For leaving staff,
we organise an exit interview with them in order
to listen to their opinions and feedbacks towards
Cheuk Nang. Dismissal of employees is executed
in compliance with the Employment Ordinance
of Hong Kong or other relevant local laws and

regulations.
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During the Reporting Year, Cheuk Nang stringently
complies with the relevant laws and regulations in

Hong Kong, including but not limited to:

e Employment Ordinance;

e Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
of Hong Kong;

e Minimum Wage Ordinance;

e Employee’s Compensation Ordinance;

e Sex Discrimination Ordinances;

e Disability Discrimination Ordinance;

e  Family Status Discrimination Ordinance;

e Race Discrimination Ordinance;

e The Hong Kong Bill of Rights Ordinance;

e Inland Revenue Ordinance; and

e Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance.

B2. Health and safety

Cheuk Nang cares about employees’ talent
and priorities their health and safety at the top
position. We strictly comply with the Occupational
Safety and Health Ordinance at all times and
takes necessary safety measures in construction
sites to prevent occupational hazards, including
precautionary tools against extreme summer heat
and winter coldness, noise cancelling earplugs,
insulated boots and gloves, and antistatic clothing.
In addition, Cheuk Nang periodically inspects
the fire extinguishers and other fire prevention
equipment in sites to ensure their effectiveness.
Every case of injury or accident and potential
danger must be reported, and remediation
action shall be taken to improve the safeness of
workplaces. There was no reported case for work-
related fatalities and lost days due to work injury
in the financial year of 2018/19, 2019/20 and
2020/21.
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To ensure a hygienic working environment, the
Group periodically engages professional service
provider to carry out air-conditioning systems
cleaning, pest control and carpet disinfection
treatment in the office for the killing of viruses and
bacteria. We also provide first-aid kits as well as
medical insurance to all staffs as safety measures.
Cheuk Nang also encourages staff to join the fire
drill organised by the property management service
provider to train their readiness in responding
to fire emergencies. The Group has also set up
guidance for work arrangements in emergencies,
such as typhoons, rainstorm warnings, strikes,

protests and other circumstances.

In the face of the COVID-19 epidemic, the Group
has actively complied with the Government policy
on pandemic prevention and taken precautionary
measures at our workplaces to avoid the risk of
infection for creating a safe and healthy working
environment to employees. In response to the
outbreak of COVID-19, the Group has taken
precautionary measures at our workplaces to avoid

the risk of infection:

e provide surgical masks;

e install air defenders and hand disinfectors;

e issue guideline to protect against infection by
COVID-19; and

e require staff with fever and respiratory
symptoms to report to the Group, visit
doctors immediately and stay home until fully

recovered.
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B3.

B4.

Development and training

The Group understands the need for staff training
to carry out their duties at a high standard and
for their own career development. To support
the growth of employees and maintain their
competitiveness, we provide on-the-job training
to the staff members. The training covers a range
of topics that not only include technical skills
relevant to their positions, but also on health and
safety and code of conduct. Besides, the Group
also encourages employees to attend external
training programs held by the government or
relevant recognised institutes, such as Vocation
Training Council and Occupational Safety and
Health Council, to enhance their work-related
skills, maintain up-to-date knowledge, and share

experiences among other expertise.

Labour standards

Human rights are considered to be a fundamental
right, and we fully agree that hiring child labour
and forced labour violates the fundamental human
rights protocol of international labour conventions.
Thus, Cheuk Nang places great emphasis on
fairness and strictly abide by the Employment
Ordinance and relevant laws and regulations in
Hong Kong. Cheuk Nang reviews the identity
documents and conducts background checks to
candidates prior to signing an employment contract
to prevent having an employment relationship with
a person under 15. Also, the Group strictly follow
our employment contracts and will not force our
staff to work against their will or under any kind of
threat. We offer compensation of leave to staff who
works overtime and they are free to resign upon

notice to the Group.
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B5. Supply chain management

As a property developer, Cheuk Nang engages
contractors to carry out the construction work and
may purchase some of the materials and consumables
ourselves. We promote fair and open competition,
and aims at developing long-term relationships with
suppliers and contractors based on mutual trust as
stated in the Group’s policy “Code of conduct”. To
ensure our contractors and suppliers share the same
business philosophy in running the business with a
fair and integrity manner, suppliers and contractors
are required to pass through strict assessment
procedures or tendering procedures before engaging

in business activities with Cheuk Nang.

In addition to financial and quality aspects,
suppliers’ and contractors’ attitudes toward the
environment and the society will also be a part
of the assessment criteria. The Group will not
consider suppliers or contractors who have been
in bribery cases or have incurred incidents related
to material safety or environmental incidents. The
Group performs on-going and regular reviews on
the contractors’” works to ensure the quality of the
construction works are within the Group’s standard
to lower the environmental and social risks.
During the Reporting Year, the Group engaged 4
contractors and 10 suppliers in Hong Kong. In the
future, the Group will consider giving priorities
to suppliers and contractors with Environmental

Management System Certificates when feasible.

Besides, the Group will adopt initiatives, to
enhance the development of “green supply chain”.
Our supplier are also encouraged to adopt the
best environmental and social practices and to
disseminate the pursuit of sustainability into the
core business, through develop energy-saving and

consumption-reducing policies.
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B6. Product responsibility

Assuring the quality and safety of our products
are the topmost importance. Cheuk Nang cares
about customers and set high standards to ensure
the architectural quality and commercial values
of the properties. Product quality is controlled
throughout the construction processes and ongoing
management and maintenance. We perform tight
selection procedures of materials, suppliers and
contractors at the beginning stages of the projects.
We pay full attention to monitoring the work
performed by the contractors and take detailed
acceptance procedures upon completion of the
project to ensure all our requirements have been
strictly followed. After taking a series of quality
audits to ensure our products were safe and up
to standard, we did not record any product recall
concerning the products safety during the Reporting

Year.

In view of high public concern over data privacy,
all the personal information received from the
Group regarding our business operations has been
handled with due care and in accordance with
the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance and similar
regulations to fulfil key stakeholders’ expectations
on information security and confidentiality. As
emphasized in the policy “Code of Conduct”, it is
the responsibility of each director and employee
to provide adequate safeguards to prevent the
personal data of customers, business partners,
shareholders and customers to be abused or
misused. To preserve the confidentiality of the
data, only authorised persons have access to such

personal data.
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B7.

The Group respects all intellectual property rights.
To avoid infringe intellectual property rights and
to comply with relevant licensing terms, the Group
has prohibited employees from using a pirate
version of software as well as duplicating, installing
or using the software in violation of its copyright or

license terms.

In case of any complaints related to product
quality, data privacy or intellectual property rights,
Cheuk Nang will strictly follow the complaints
handling procedures as stated in the policy “Code
of Conduct” to ensure the complaints will be

investigated and handled with due care.

Anti-Corruption

All employees, including directors,

shall uphold
the code of ethics, advocate fair competition
and act against bribery according to the Group’s
policy “Code of Conduct” and Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance (Cap.21) of Hong Kong. The
Group takes zero-tolerance towards all kinds
of illegal activities, such as corruption, bribery,
money laundering, forgery, and embezzlement
and collusion case. The Group has set up a
clear reporting channel for all staff to report
any violations notes from an individual or its
departments. The Group is committed to protect the
whistle-blower and keep his identity confidential.
In addition, all staff shall not accept or request
any personal benefits or advantages in connection
with his or her duties and with the business of the
Group. Anyone who has conflicts of interest must
declare and obtain prior written approval of the

Group.
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B8.

In case of any violation of laws or “Code of
Conduct” established by the Group, Cheuk Nang
adopts disciplinary actions with no mercy and
hesitation. During the Reporting Year, there was
no legal case regarding corrupt practices that was
brought against Cheuk Nang or its employees, and
we strictly complied with the Prevention of Bribery

Ordinance.

Cheuk Nang provides anti-corruption trainings to
directors and employees through e-training, articles
and video in order to strengthen the integrity
awareness and professional ethics of all employees,
so as to create a fair and honest working
environment. Due to limitation resources of the
Human Resources Department, Cheuk Nang did
not maintain training record in the anti-corruption
training by employees during the Reporting Year.
We are in the process of revising our training
protocol of the Anti-corruption and will disclose

this KPI information in the next ESG report.

Community investment

It is the primary corporate social responsibility of us
to contribute to our community where we operate.
Cheuk Nang believes that community involvement
could bring a positive return to both society and the
business. Meanwhile, we also encourage our staff
to participate in voluntary and charitable services
with their families to build friendly community

relations.

In the future, Cheuk Nang will continue to seek
opportunities to support community programmes

actively.
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BIR Environmental
—%-%/ =B-Nn/
Em BRANER “EC-FE CECEFE
Aspects KPIs 2020/2021  2019/2020
Al B2 Ay (INOxJ) FTrFRr) 12.79 9.57
AT: Emissions® Nitrogen oxides (“NOx”) Kilogram (“kg") 12.79 9.57
&t (1sox]) T+ 0.38 0.39
Sulphur oxides (“SOx”) Kilogram (“kg”) 0.38 0.39
fry (TPMY) T+ 0.94 0.70
Particulate matter (“PM”) Kilogram (“kg”) 0.94 0.70
A2 RERE | HE-EEER
A1.2: Greenhouse | §cope 1 - Direct emissions
gas’ RAME “EHmEBHA(AMLE)  [61.64 61.91
Company’s vessels Carbon dioxide equivalent 61.64 61.91
emission (in tonnes)
EE_SittmEBHNMAE —FbhE B R (ARG &) 61.64 61.91
Total direct carbon dioxide Carbon dioxide equivalent 61.64 61.91
equivalent emission emission (in tonnes)
ER-SIREEHREE “ELBERER (UMEE) S [3.24 3.44
RERH
Intensity of direct carbon dioxide | Carbon dioxide equivalent 3.24 3.44
equivalent emission emission (in tonnes)/Total number
of Employee
BE2-BEER
Scope 2 - Indirect emissions
REHE S —EmERER(AETE)  [11.98 12.77
Acquired Electricity Carbon dioxide equivalent 11.98 12.77
emission (in tonnes)
ME_StHRERFRAE “EARER R (UM HE) 11.98 12.77
Total indirect carbon dioxide Carbon dioxide equivalent 11.98 12.77
equivalent emission emission (in tonnes)
AE_—SLCRERFAEE “ERERBER (UME)  |0.63 0.71
BERY
Intensity of indirect carbon Carbon dioxide equivalent 0.63 0.71
dioxide equivalent emission emission (in tonnes)/Total number
of Employee
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BA - FAAEHFHDENE

AAR/NEE R 2RI

All figures have been rounded up to 2 decimal places, unless

otherwise specified.

P BERIORIEHEBZ ST EE 2
RIE - HERERRE) N[ RIR
PR IERIERIE S| | AR BB BT R
BIRERN T _TFRBENCERBERE
FEIR R A T A ) (https://ecib.emsd.gov.hk/
index.php/hk/energy-utilisation-index-hk/
transport-sector-hk)zt & °

3 ORERBUBRIREBEHTAERSATIE
COfA IR IE ~ A RE RS )8 [ M8k
—REHRERIEFRERESIFHE -

The emission is calculated based on the “How to prepare
an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” published by HKEx and “Energy
Consumption Indicators and Benchmarks” published in 2020
by Electrical and Mechanical Services Department of HKSAR
(https:// ecib.emsd.gov.hk/index.php/hk/energy-utilisation-
index-hk/transport-sector-hk).

3 The greenhouse gas emission is calculated based on the “How
to prepare an ESG Report” Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance
on Environmental KPIs” published by HKEx.

oiges
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—2-%/ =B-hn/

Em HRENER —E--FE —B-ZFE
Aspects KPls 2020/2021  2019/2020
HBE3-HMmR
Scope 3 - Other emissions
EHRERZFENORR “RIRE BN UABEE) 0.50 0.84
Paper waste disposed at landfills | Carbon dioxide equivalent 0.50 0.84
emission (in tonnes)
EERBMEIRTT i E 2R AN B) & 0.42
Business air travel by employees | Carbon dioxide equivalent Nil 0.42
emission (in tonnes)
Htt—EREEHRAE “EREHMEEHER AMAHE) 050 1.26
Total other carbon dioxide Carbon dioxide equivalent 0.50 1.26
equivalent emission emission (in tonnes)
Htt—EtBEEBHNEE “ERERHER (UMHE) & 0.03 0.07
BB
Intensity of other carbon dioxide | Carbon dioxide equivalent 0.03 0.07
equivalent emission emission (in tonnes)/Total number
of Employee
BERBERAE
Total greenhouse gas emission
BEREBHRAE S E BB (UM E) 74.12 75.94
Total greenhouse gas emission | Carbon dioxide equivalent 74.12 75.94
emission (in tonnes)
BERBEREE “EfemERSH (UM E) E|3.90 4.22
ERY
Intensity of greenhouse gas Carbon dioxide equivalent 3.90 4.22
emission emission (in tonnes)/Total number
of Employee
A13: FEBRY MELEEERVMAE g ® ®
A1.3: Hazardous | Total hazardous waste produced |Tonnes Nil Nil
waste* FEERERRNEE W ERAH # &
Intensity of hazardous waste Tonnes/Total number of Employee | Nil Nil
produced
Y OREWBNEERBEEFEEYWEHSE=A ¢  The hazardous and non-hazardous wastes in construction sites
FROMEEREE - B - Z@ERESUER have been handled and disposed by third-party contractors, so
WA AR RPN ET this KPI is not applicable to our business.
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—2-%/ =E-n/
Bm ARENER —E--EE —E-SEE
Aspects KPIs 2020/2021 2019/2020
A4 BEREZRYS | HE W 0.11 0.18
Al.4: Non- Papers Tonnes 0.11 0.18
hazardous waste’ | sz gz R = =
Domestic wastes Tonnes Nil Nil
RELEERENAE i 0.11 0.18
Total non-hazardous waste Tonnes 0.11 0.18
produced
FELBRERRNEE W,/ EEAY 0.01 0.01
Intensity of non-hazardous waste | Tonnes/Total number of Employee | 0.01 0.01
produced
A2.1: BEIR® ERERER
A2.1: Energy® Direct energy consumption
EERRARE R i —
Total direct energy consumption | MWh Nil Nil
ERRREERE KRB EEAH 3 3
Intensity of direct energy MWh/Total number of Employee |Nil Nil
consumption
HiZEREE
Indirect energy consumption
BENEN K BF 16.87 15.96
Acquired Electricity MWh 16.87 15.96
BEEREREE KE B 16.87 15.96
Total indirect energy MWh 16.87 15.96
consumption
MR REERE KRk REBH 0.89 0.89
Intensity of indirect energy MWh/Total number of Employee |0.89 0.89
consumption
REREEE
Total energy consumption
RERERE KE B 16.87 15.96
Total energy consumption MWh 16.87 15.96
EREREE KRk EEBH 0.89 0.89
Intensity of energy consumption |MWh/Total number of Employee |0.89 0.89
A2.2 : FEKE’ FkHRE 5K = —
A2.2: Water Total water consumption Cubic metre Nil Nil
consumption” | g g EKk/ REAH = "
Intensity of water consumption | Cubic metre/Total number of Nil Nil
Employee

s ReEEAEEERIHRESNEEY o o
o RRREDRBEEERSHAIBN(NE o
EREE AR W) M -
5255 B 2 44 BB 9035 5] 5151 - A AL
BEEEN (EERRABENES) - b
BAAE M EEE A B A T IR
MEEBEARAAR -2 —BEAHN

B -
7 ROKDREERRGEEEES Bl
SR ROR B A AR R P -
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Only includes waste directly controlled and generated by the
Group.

The energy consumption is calculated based on the “How to
prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance
on Environmental KPIs” published by HKEx. For Energy
indirect emissions (main sources from purchased electricity),
the emissions factors for Hong Kong-based operations is
calculated based on the emission intensity published by the
Hong Kong Electric Company Limited in 2020.

The water supply is controlled by the property management
service provider, so this KPI is not applicable to our business.

(M) BRAE
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FEm

Aspects
B1.1: {EE#BE
B1.1: Total workforce

Social

BAREARER

KPIs

RERERE D

By employment type

—B-2

—E--FE
2020/2021

—Z2-hS
—BoBEE
2019/2020

X EE#A 19 18
Full time No. of employee 19 18
PR REHE i i
Part time No. of employee Nil Nil
RILEE 5

By geographical region

BB REHE 19 18
Hong Kong No. of employee 19 18
BRI &

By gender

St BB HE 8 12
Male No. of employee 8 12
M BE#A 11 6
Female No. of employee 11 6
BERED

By age

30BRAT BE#H i i
Below 30 No. of employee Nil Nil
31ZE405% EE A 4 3
31-40 No. of employee 4 3
41ZE505% EEZE 5 6
41-50 No. of employee 5 6
50584 £ EE#E 10 9
Over 50 No. of employee 10 9
RESERE S

By employee category

SREBAR EE#E 6 5
Senior management No. of employee 6 5
TREEAR EE A 4 7
Middle management No. of employee 4 7
—RBE BEHA 9 6
General staff No. of employee 9 6
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=2=%/ =B-hn/

=] BREVIER D —EBEI-FE ZBBFE
Aspects KPIs i 2020/2021 2019/2020
B1.2 : EEMAE RERELES
B1.2: Employee By employment type
turnover 2 % 26.32 6
Full time %o 26.32 6
F % i L
Part time % Nil Nil
Zith B & 5
By geographical region
B % 26.32
Hong Kong %o 26.32
ek
By gender
St % 25
Male % 25
pegid % 27.27 i3
Female % 27.27 Nil
RERED
By age
30BRA T % i S
Below 30 % Nil Nil
31E405% % 50 i
31-40 %o 50 Nil
41E505% % 40 Eis
41-50 %o 40 Nil
5085 A £ % 10 11
Over 50 %o 10 11
B2.1 : EITtEER M ITEMEEZBT EE#E e jik!
AN O Work-related fatalities No. of employee Nil Nil
B2.1: Number and TEMRBZET % s i3
rate of work-related Work-related fatalities % Nil Nil
fatalities®

8 RZZE—)/NS—NUBFEN WHEATL *  There was no reported case for work-related fatalities and lost
T RETEMmMERN TERNMEMRE - days due to work injury in the financial year of 2018/19.
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Bm
Aspects
B2.2 : ATEBHEATIE

BRRENER
KPIs
RITHBERTIFAR

By
Unit

2020/2021

—EB-F/
—EC-—FE

—Z2—-h

—EowEE

2019/2020

SE Lost days due to work Nil

B2.2: Lost days due to |injury

work injury

B3.1: XIlEE AN |EIERIESD

B3.1: Percentage of By gender

employees trained S % 37.50 16.67
Male % 37.50 16.67
2% % 18.18 33.33
Female % 18.18 33.33
RESER 82
By employee category
=ARERAR % 66.67 80
Senior management %o 66.67 80
hREBRAR % 25 £
Middle management % 25 Nil
—REE % L &
General staff % Nil Nil

B3.2 : EX XM |BRERTKRZIIN R £ 5.45 2.55

153 TR B

B3.2: Average training |Average training hours Hours 5.45 2.55

hours completed completed per employee
gk by
By gender
FiE 5 25 4.94 1.92
Male Hours 4.94 1.92
it iSE 2 5.82 3.81
Female Hours 5.82 3.81
RESERE D
By employee category
SREEAR R B 16.42 9.18
Senior management Hours 16.42 9.18
FREEAR iy 85 1.25 el
Middle management Hours 1.25 Nil
—RBE Ry 21 i B
General staff Hours Nil Nil
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= = 74 zg—n/
Em EREARER —=- —ECEHE
Aspects 2020/2021 2019/2020
B5.1 : ffER MARRE RitE&H D
# A By geographical region
B5.1: Number of &5 HEm EREBRHSE (14 14
supplier and contractor | Hong Kong No. of supplier and |14 14
contractor
B6.1: EEXCERXE RHxzHREFEAMALW % L =
AT R 2EERE WNECERCEXEMEH
EhmARKEE S
B6.1: Percentage of total | Total products sold or % Nil Nil
products sold or shipped |shipped subject to recalls
subject to recalls for for safety and health
safety and health reasons
reasons
B6.2 : HERNEMR |REBNEMMNKF s 4= i LRI10RE
B 18 R B B AR
B6.2: Number of Products related complaints | No. of complaint Nil Less than
products related received 10 material
complaints received complaints
case

B7.1: EEMAHERE |RERIAHBEITAIERE RMAHE i =
ESES 4= BRNYEBRENETEE

ESEROL QS WSS LR
B7.1: Number of Number of concluded legal |No. of case Nil Nil
concluded legal cases |cases regarding corrupt

practices brought against

the issuer or its employees

during the reporting period

and the outcomes of the

cases
B8.1K&B8.2 : itEmxE |HXERMAR
B8.1 & B8.2: Donation on focus area
Community investment |85 BTT i 20,000

Sport HKD Nil 20,000
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RE-HERERERE
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BXA(RE #HEREBHBEEIDAR

#5|

B m

Aspects
A1 BERRY)

AT1: Emissions

—RIXER
BREARIER
General disclosures
and KPIs

— AR EE

General disclosure

it

Description

BRAEERSCEERBHEN - MK &L
WEES BEMNEBEEBRREYVNELES
Ky -

(@ BZE: &

(b) BTHBEITABEAFENMBBE
ESERYl

H)E R o

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations

that have a significant impact on the

issuer relating to air and greenhouse

gas emissions, discharges into water

and land, and generation of hazardous

and non-hazardous waste.

HKEx ESG Reporting Guide Content Index

HEZHE

Corresponding

section

Al B

ATl: Emissions

AT.1 Pen e 1A R AR REHE U BUE o KRBBEHE

A1.1 The types of emissions and respective |Performance Data
emissions data. Summary

A1.2 BERBANE (AWFE) k(@ | RRBER B
R)ZE -

A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total Performance Data
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate, Summary
intensity.

A1.3 FEEEETEEMEE AMAHE) K| XRRBBERE
(E ) ZE -

A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced Performance Data

(in tonnes) and, where appropriate,

intensity.

Summary
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—RFER
FAREMIEE

General disclosures

HEZHE

Corresponding

Aspects and KPIs Description section

Al.4 FELEEREYWAE AMAE) M RRBERHE
(WEm) ZE -

Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced |Performance Data
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate, Summary
intensity.

A1.5 R EBERENBERLAFIRER o |A1: B

A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate ATl: Emissions
emissions and results achieved.

A1.6 R EIEREENBEZTEEYN L B |A1  HFRY
BRELXENEREAEMR -

Al.6 Description of how hazardous and A1: Emissions
non-hazardous wastes are handled,
reduction initiatives and results
achieved.

2:BRER | —REE ERERER(BREER KEEMR|A2 - BRER

A2: Use of

Resources

General disclosure

A BYBUR o
Policies on the efficient use of A2: Use of Resources
resources, including energy, water and

other raw materials.

A2.1 REAESNERER SEEERER REHERHE
EMUTETRKFE) REE -

A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy Performance Data
consumption by type in total (kWh in |Summary
’000s) and intensity.

A2.2 BIEKERTE - KRBBEHE

A2.2 Water consumption in total and Performance Data
intensity. Summary

A2.3 it B R(E MM AT B RS ER - |A2 : BIRER

A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency A2: Use of Resources
initiatives and results achieved.

A2.4 i SREGE M7KR LRl B ERMRE - A A2 - BIRER
NIRTT AR am st 8 T AR ©

A2.4 Description of whether there is any A2: Use of Resources

issue in sourcing water that is fit for

purpose, water efficiency initiatives

and results achieved.
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B m

Aspects

—RIXER
BREAERIER
General disclosures
and KPlIs

Description

HEZHE

Corresponding

section

BIR
A3: The
Environment and

Natural Resources

General disclosure

FEOEK -
Policies on minimizing the issuer’s
significant impacts on the environment

and natural resources.

A2.5 EHEMATABREMHMEE (AEETE) (A2 BRER
MOOER) BEESBMGE -
A2.5 Total packaging material used for A2: Use of Resources
finished products (in tonnes) and, if
applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.
A3 IRIERRA | —RIKE WARBETAHRBERRAEREKEK A3 RIEERAER

A3: The Environment

and Natural Resources

mitigation of significant climate-
related issues which have impacted,
and those which may impact, the

issuer.

A3.1 M EBEHHIRBELRAERNEK A3 RERRAER
FTERCEDEREBTENTH -

A3.1 Description of the significant impacts |A3: The Environment
of activities on the environment and and Natural Resources
natural resources and the actions taken
to manage them.

A4 |ixE 1L — AR EE BRIREHE R RAIEGHBEBITAESE A4 RIREL
A4: Climate TENBARIFEBEEEREE -
Change General disclosure |Policies on identification and A4: Climate Change

A4.1

A4.1

B EMAIE G HETAELEREN
BARIKMERER  MEHTH -
Description of the significant climate-
related issues which have impacted,
and those which may impact, and the

actions taken to manage them.

A4 RIREA(L

A4: Climate Change

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =
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—BRRER
Em ERANER 5 HESH

General disclosures Corresponding

Aspects and KPIs Description section
B1: E1# — AR EE BRAZN R - B LB - TR |B1 : 1%
2 BY - FERE  Zl - RER
LA B B At 155 48 Fe 48 ) &Y

(@) BE: &
(b) BTHETABEAZENHEBZL
TR
AR -
B1: Employment |General Disclosure |Information on: B1: Employment

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and

regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer relating to

compensation and dismissal,

recruitment and promotion, working

hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,

diversity, anti-discrimination, and

other benefits and welfare.

B1.1 BRI EERE  FRAJN KRS | REHERE
DHIEBAAE -

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, Performance Data
employment type, age group and Summary

geographical region.

B1.2 IR FRAR MRS DHNEER | RRBIEBERHE
KEp = o

B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age | Performance Data
group and geographical region. Summary

Annual Report 2021 4% | CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =t (%) GR/AF 113



114

RE-HERERHRE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B
Aspects
B2 : @EMLE

B2: Health and
Safety

—RIXER
BAREMNERE
General disclosures
and KPlIs

— MR ER

General Disclosure

Description

BRRHZETEFRENREREE S

BEMREEN:

(@) BER: &

(b) BTHETABBERZENMERE
EISFAY

B R -

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from

occupational hazards.

HEZHE

Corresponding

section

B2 : 2

B2: Health and Safety

B2.1 ATEEEMIETHAB R X - RINBBRHE
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related Performance Data
fatalities. Summary
B2.2 AIBEATEEE- RRBIERE
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Performance Data
Summary
B2.3 H TR B R ERE L 28 - (B2 BFEHEZE
MERATRERTIA -
B2.3 Description of occupational health and|B2: Health and Safety
safety measures adopted, how they are
implemented and monitored.
3 BERNMEI | —REE BRI EEREIT TEBREN MBS |B3 : #RNIFII

B3: Development

and Training

General Disclosure

BEHVIBUER o F M IBFINE S o

Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for discharging
duties at work. Description of training

activities.

B3: Development and

Training
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—BRRER
ERANER

General disclosures

HEZHE

Corresponding

Aspects and KPIs Description section
B3.1 RUERNMEEEN(NERERRE -+ | RRBERHE
LREEE)EINXIEEADL -
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained |Performance Data
by gender and employee category Summary
(e.g. senior management, middle
management).
B3.2 BRI NEEEMNE D  SREETK RRBEBEHE
S 310 F 4R B o
B3.2 The average training hours completed |Performance Data
per employee by gender and employee | Summary
category.
B4 : B T#A| |—KEE BB IEE TR e T : B4 : 5 TR
(@) BER: &
(b) BTHETABERTENHERE
TN
B -

B4: Labour
Standards

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced

B4: Labour standards

labour.

B4.1 AR RIS E IR FE e AR R E T & (B4 : 85 T %48
SR T -

B4.1 Description of measures to review B4: Labour standards
employment practices to avoid child
and forced labour.

B4.2 IR E RIS IR HR BB AT | B4 : 85 T AR
REUH B -

B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate |B4: Labour standards

such practices when discovered.
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B m

Aspects
5 HEEER
B5: Supply Chain

Management

—RIXER
BAREMNERE
General disclosures
and KPlIs

—MRIKER

General Disclosure

Description
EEMfEENIRE LSRR

Policies on managing environmental

2 R o

HEZHE

Corresponding

section
5 fHEEEIR
B5: Supply chain

and social risks of the supply chain. management

B5.1 miEmE D HHEmEE - RRBBEHE

B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical |Performance Data
region. Summary

B5.2 AR REERmIED - MEBHTT|B5 - HEEEIE
BB MHEREE - A REERT

NERTIE -

B5.2 Description of practices relating B5: Supply chain
to engaging suppliers, number of management
suppliers where the practices are
being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.

B5.3 A RIER e T EIRE MRS & |B5 « (B E IR
HeRERaED - AKRBRERITMEER
JI0E

B5.3 Description of practices used to B5: Supply chain
identify environmental and social risks | management
along the supply chain, and how they
are implemented and monitored.

B5.4 it ERERERREES RARREMR B> : fHEREE
NARFGEED - AREREMITMERT
V5 o

B5.4 Description of practices used to B5: Supply chain

promote environmentally preferable
products and services when selecting
suppliers, and how they are

implemented and monitored.

management
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Responsibility

BRiE
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—RIXER
BREAERIER
General disclosures
and KPlIs

— MR ER

General Disclosure

Description

BERMREEMMREOERERZ S

BE BFRERMLESE#ERITA

Ky -

(@) BR: &

(b) BTHETABEAZENHEBZL
TR

BB KY o

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer relating to health

and safety, advertising, labelling and

privacy matters relating to products

and services provided and methods of

HEZHE
Corresponding

section

B6 : EmEMEL

B6: Product
responsibility

redress.

B6.1 EEXRCEXEMBETRALTE2EER RRBBEHE
BHMmARKNE DL -

B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or Performance Data
shipped subject to recalls for safety Summary
and health reasons.

B6.2 REEREMMREOFEE ANE | RRBERE
Ik

B6.2 Number of products and service Performance Data
related complaints received and how |Summary
they are dealt with.

B6.3 Mt REERRENBEEAHENIE|Bo: EmALT
K

B6.3 Description of practices relating to B6: Product
observing and protecting intellectual |responsibility
property rights.

B6.4 Ml EEREBRELREMDWIEF - |Bo: EmEE

B6.4 Description of quality assurance B6: Product

process and recall procedures.

responsibility
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—BRRER
ERANER

General disclosures

B m

HEZHE

Corresponding

Aspects and KPIs Description section

B6.5 B EHEERRELILBEBER - UK |B6: EmAE
HEBRIT MER A -

B6.5 Description of consumer data B6: Product
protection and privacy policies, how |responsibility
they are implemented and monitored.

B7 : R&ES — R E BRI - R - RFFREARE  |B7 : RES

B7: Anti-corruption | General Disclosure

K :

(@) BE: M

(b) BTHETABEAZENHERZE
EI TN

HE R -

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer relating to

bribery, extortion, fraud and money

laundering.

B7: Anti-Corruption

B7.1

B7.1

RIEERMALHTAREEBERLILD
BENESHBETOHB LFRE
B

Number of concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the

outcomes of the cases.

KABIERE

Performance Data

Summary

B7.2

B7.2

faatph it e R BT - AR
TTRERTIA -

Description of preventive measures
and whistle-blowing procedures, how

they are implemented and monitored.

B7 : R&E’S

B7: Anti-Corruption
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—RIXER
BREAERIER
General disclosures
and KPlIs

B7.3

B7.3

Description

R ESRRE TREMNREFE -

Description of preventive measures
and whistle-blowing procedures, how

they are implemented and monitored.

HEZHE

Corresponding

section
B7 : RE)S

BMERETERRE
SEIEIET S WA E
TR R RS NI ER
FABRAA IR EHY
B7: Anti-Corruption

We are in the process
of revising our training
protocol of the Anti-
corruption and will
disclose this KPI
information in future

reporting.

B8 : iLmIKRE

B8: Community

Investment

—REE

General Disclosure

BN R2ERTHREEMELES
BEMBERAXGE A G E BALR T2
BUR ©

Policies on community engagement

to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into

consideration the communities’

B8 : L@ E

B8: Community

investment

interests.

B8.1 HIEREBE (WHE  REFEH 5 (B HRIKE
THXK 2 X 875) -

B8.1 Focus areas of contrlbutlon (e.g. B8: Community
education, environmental concerns, investment
labour needs, health, culture, sport).

B8.2 ERIHREMPRER (M EHK RRBERHE
@) o

B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or |Performance Data

time) to the focus area.

Summary
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EEEHREE
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EEeREBE_ST_-_—F<A=+H1
FEZHREENEERGAYBHRRESE
ERELE -

ETEX®
ARREBEBRAREZE -

ARFNHBRRRBERR ZEEER
HEBRAETE R FEARKMNE
NMERAGIEDERER RELRER -

REBAFERBEEHE LR ZRE
DITEN ARG B MKR W a6 -

EBER
FRAAEEFAEBHEREBERKER
ERAOBLEERRNFEFRBIZEEZEI9E
WEFEREEAN > MABAEE R EES
B &\ b e T EABA A =AYt - JRE N SES8
BEZFO0OEMTLEERMENRN HREUHK
WEEMABENEH T AEE BB E R
EHEZERBK R_ZE_ZTFXA=1+H
EFEREBRITEZEAIHAEEELE
MEREHNH - AFWE2BRFIEEER
FUMBRME]  ABMBBEERFERSTAR
SEFARE - WHN BRAEEIRRIK
K HEBHERRREAEBREERTE
HEBERERRAIZETIER 2 5FIR
F77EE7BEMBEEEAMET -

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED £t (%) §RAF |

The Directors submit to the shareholders their report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates comprise property development, investment and
management in Hong Kong, Macau, the People’s Republic

of China and Malaysia.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
business and geographical segments is set out in note 6 to

the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and
a discussion on the Group’s future business development
are provided in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 13
to 19 of this Annual Report. Description of possible risks
and uncertainties that the Group may be facing can be
found in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 58
to 60. Also, the financial risk management objectives
and policies of the Group can be found in Note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements. There is no important
event affecting the Group that have occurred since the end
of the financial year ended 30 June, 2021. An analysis of
the Group’s performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is provided in the Five Years’
Summary on page 2 of this Annual Report. In addition,
discussions on the Group’s environmental policies,
relationships with its key stakeholders and compliance
with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant
impact on the Group are contained in the Corporate

Governance Report on pages 77 to 78.
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Report of the Directors

RESE

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2021
and the financial position of the Group at that date are set
out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 142 to
288.

An interim dividend of HK2.0 cents (2020: HK7.5 cents) per
share, totaling HK$13,054,000 was paid on 15 April 2021.

The Directors resolved to recommend the payment of a
final dividend of HK3.0 cents (2020: HK5.0 cents) per share
payable to those shareholders whose names appeared in
the register of members as at the close of business on 25
November 2021, which together with the interim dividend
of HK2.0 cents (2020: HK12.5 cents) per share, makes a
total distribution of HK5.0 cents (2020: HK12.5 cents) per

share this year.

After approval by the shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting, the final dividend will be paid on 13 December
2021.

Particulars of dividends proposed and paid during the year are

set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES
Movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 29 and pages 149 to 150

respectively to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS
There is no charitable donation made by the Group during
the year ended 30 June 2021.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in investment properties and
property plant and equipment of the Group are set out in
notes 14 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.

PROPERTIES
Details of the Group’s interest in properties are set out on
pages 289 to 292.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital are set out in note

29 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30 June 2021, the reserves of the Company available
for distribution amounted to HK$27,922,000 (2020:
HK$73,823,000).

BONDS

Details of the bonds of the Group are set out in note 17 to

the consolidated financial statements.

CAPITALISED INTEREST
The amounts of interest capitalized by the Group during
the year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial

statements.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries and the
Group’s principal associates as at 30 June 2021 are set out

in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

Annual Report 2021 4E#



BITERREMEESE
Kglb_/\fvf ﬂz/\ﬂ ‘T‘E,Zfﬁ‘/ﬁg
AEREMETWNOT

EEEHRESE
Report of the Directors

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

The amounts of bank loans and other borrowings of the

Group at 30 June 2021 were as follows:

L]
Group
BB TIT
HK$’000
RITERKRES Bank loans and bond 876,533
i%@ﬁy\ Advances from a director 112,632
989,165

BRI Repayment analysis:

RITERKES Bank loans and bond
—DPR—F — within one year 865,920
—EE_F — in the second year 10,613
876,533

BEFEBRN Advances from a director

— 8 B TR KR - no fixed repayment terms 112,632
989,165
REE 2BEHEEELR KA AE14.4% (= The Group’s debt to equity ratio was approximately 14.4%
T-FTF :22.0%) - Jﬁ/ﬁﬁ?‘ﬂéﬁfﬁ(&ﬁi\@f% (2020: 22.0%) expressed as a percentage of bank loans and
EBRUNEBEESENE - B17TERNE  other borrowings over net assets of the Group. The ratio of

EEFREE lzﬁﬁkt\lﬁtt?“%u?%% 6%
(ZEZZFF :88.2%) M11.4% (ZE =
£ :11.8%) ©

BHE_T-_—FXA=+H ’$E@ﬁﬁﬁ
2B RBITFER  RITERREME
ERBRARMES }\Eﬁ% BT e

bank loans and advances from a director over the Group’s
financial debts is 88.6% (2020: 88.2%) and 11.4% (2020:
11.8%) respectively.

Most of the Group’s cash and bank balances, bank loans
and other borrowings were denominated in Ringgit
Malaysia, Renminbi and Hong Kong dollar as at 30 June
2021.

Annual Report 2021 4£# | CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =t ((E) HRAH

123



EETHEE

Report of the Directors

AFMBERE

AREEFRIOIAFZERE BERAGBHE
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=

REERARBEARETEBH XA F

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group

for the last five financial years is set out on page 2.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this

EERER: report were:

HITES Executive Directors

HEBEL (F/E) Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil (Chairman)
W Z L+ (FEE) Ms. Chao Gigi (Vice Chairman)
HIRGEE £ Mr. Yung Philip

AIFHF L+ Ms. Ho Sau-Fun Connie

FHITES Non-Executive Directors

S k& Mr. Chao Howard

FRESLLE Mr. Lee Ding Yue Joseph
BIYKHITES Independent Non-Executive Directors
HRIEE Dr. Sun Ping Hsu Samson
THELE Mr. Ting Woo Shou Kenneth

MR BT A Mr. Lam Ka Wai Graham

R EiEiE Lt  FTHELEENT FELEZE Dr. Sun Ping Hsu Samson, Mr. Lee Ding Yue Joseph and
REERAFAKE FHESIR WWHEEE Mr. Ting Woo Shou Kenneth will retire at the forthcoming
BAIFEREEE- Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-election.

EEAREEARERD  #tEZiE+ - # During the year and up to the date of this report, Messrs
RELL+ G ELE - AFH LM Chao Sze Tsung Cecil, Chao Gigi, Yung Philip, Ho Sau
AELETNAERARKE AR ZES 7 Fun Connie and Chao Howard are also directors of the
FANRBEEAFER  ARQAIKHE AR 2 Company’s subsidiaries. Other directors of the Company’s

HEMEENT - subsidiaries during the year and up to the date of this report
were as follows:
BRi=MA A Mr. Chan Tak Szy
(BER=ZZFE=Z—FHATN\BEMT (resigned on 18 May 2021)
= B B ot A& Mr. Au Hing Lun, Dennis
(ER=ZE=Z—FHATN\BEZE) (appointed on 18 May 2021)
EEY 7+ Ms. Haw Suat Tin
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Chao Sze Tsung Cecil
FRE Rl
Lee Ding Yue, Joseph
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Ordinary Shares

Ordinary Shares

EEEHRESE
Report of the Directors

BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biography of Directors and senior management are set
out in the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior

Management” of this annual report.

DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

At 30 June 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and Chief Executive in the shares of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”),
as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies,

were as follows:

(i) Company
B Az

Personal interest

kB

Corporate interests

32,573,397 453,408,112

1,765,767 -

Note: The shareholdings disclosed by Dr. Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil
under the heading “Corporate Interests” in the above
represents the shares held by Yan Yin Company Limited
and Szehope Securities Company Limited, substantial

shareholders of the Company.
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Lee Ding Yue, Joseph

(ii) Subsidiaries

5PN 34 EEERE
IR 2 Personal Corporate
Equity Interests Interests
A - 192 f&shares
Shares (1.92%)

The Company did not grant to the Directors, Chief Executive
or their associates any right to subscribe for shares in the

Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or their
associates had any interest or short position in the shares
of the Company or its subsidiaries as at 30 June 2021 that
was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.

At no time during the year was the Company, any of its
subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding company
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body

corporate.

INTEREST DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO
AND SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 30 June 2021, the register of interests in shares
maintained under Section 336 of the SFO shows that
the Company had not been notified of any substantial
shareholders’ interests, being 5% or more of the Company’s
issued share capital, other than those of the Directors and

Chief Executive as disclosed above.
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There are no contracts of significance in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company, any of its
subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding company
was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at

the end of the year or at any time during the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the
Company, as at the date of this report, it is confirmed that
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float

under the Listing Rule

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the

Articles of Association of the Company.

STAFF

As at 30 June 2021, the Group employed 78 staff. Staff
remuneration packages are normally reviewed annually. The
Group also provides other staff benefits, which include year
end double pay and contributions to defined contribution

retirement schemes.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions are set out in note 31
to the consolidated financial statements and in the above

under Directors’ interests in contracts.

SERVICE CONTRACT

None of the Directors has a service contract with the
Company which is not terminable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than

statutory compensation.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group were entered into or existed during

the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
During the year, the five largest suppliers and the largest
supplier of the Group accounted for 55.5% and 33.3%

respectively of the Group’s total purchases.

During the year, the five largest customers and the largest
customer of the Group accounted for 5.3% and 1.4%

respectively of the Group’s total turnover.

Save as aforesaid, at 30 June 2021, none of the Directors,
their associates, or any shareholder (which to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had any beneficial interests in the Group’s five

largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Director has interest in any business which is,
either directly or indirectly, competing with the business of

the Group.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
On 4 June 2018, the Company had entered into a Business
Service Agreement with Cecil Chao & Associates Limited
(“CCAL") and Cecil Chao Design (Macau) Limited (“CCA
Macau”) in respect of the provision of architectural,
engineering, design, project management and related
services by CCAL and CCA Macau to the Group. The
Agreement was entered for a fixed term of two years from
1 July 2018 to 30 June 2020. Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil is a
director and the ultimate owner of CCAL and CCA Macau.

The maximum aggregate amounts payable by the Group
under the Business Service Agreement for the year ended
30 June 2019 and for the year ended 30 June 2020 are not
expected to exceed HK$24,150,000 and HK$24,150,000
(“the Cap”) respectively.

Given that the relevant percentage ratios in respect of the
maximum annual value of the Services to be provided by
CCAL and CCA Macau under the New Service Agreement,
on annual basis, are more than 1% but less than 5%,
the New Service Agreement is subject to reporting,
announcement and annual review requirements but are
exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval

requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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During the year ended 30 June 2020, the aggregate amount
of service fees in respect of the services paid by the Group
under the Business Service Agreement was HK$4,200,000,
which is within the annual cap for the said year of
HK$24,150,000 as disclosed in the announcement dated 4
June 2018.

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
have reviewed the above continuing connected transactions
and confirmed that such transactions have been entered
into by the Group (a) in the ordinary course of business
of the Group; (b) on normal commercial terms; and (c) in
accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

The auditor of the Company has performed review work in
respect of the continuing connected transactions under the
New Service Agreement for the year ended 30 June 2020
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagement 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and has reported that nothing has come
to the Auditors’ attention that causes them to believe that
the said continuing connected transactions (a) have not
been approved by the Board; (b) were not entered into, in
all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies
of the Group; (c) were not entered into in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing the transactions; or (d)
have exceed the annual cap as disclosed in the relevant
announcement of the Company. The Directors confirm that
the Company has complied with the relevant disclosure
requirements in relation to the said continuing connected
transactions as disclosed above.

No renewal of the Business Service Agreement after its
expiry on 30 June 2020.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal
actions against its Directors’ and senior management arising
from corporate activities. The permitted indemnity provision
is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required by
section 470 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of the laws of Hong Kong) (the “Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance”) when the Report of the Board of the Directors
prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance with

section 391(1)(a) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s shares

during the year.

AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended
30 June 2021 were audited by Grant Thornton Hong Kong
Limited, who will retire and a resolution to re-appoint Grant
Thornton Hong Kong Limited as auditor of the Company will

be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Cecil Sze-Tsung Chao

Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 September 2021
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Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd

To the members of Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages 142
to 288, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 30 June 2021, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 30 June 2021, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance

with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BIAZBEHRES
Independent Auditor’s Report

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Annual Report 2021 4£# | CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =t ((E) HRAH

133



134

W 3% WA 3R & B
Independent Auditor’s Report

A= H ()

BRETEE
Key Audit Matter

REYE 1418

Valuation of investment properties

BRI A TFREAN T FE2. 5B R E14H

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BB ONEEZEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Refer to Notes 2.5 and 14 to the consolidated financial statements

RZZBZ—FXA=+H  BEXEHEER
AEEFENREYRLEG655,700,000
BT MREVEIAABERLIOB
99,460,000/ L E % FEMER A B KT
HER o

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had
investment properties measured at
fair value amounted to approximately
HK$6,655,700,000 and a decrease in
fair value of investment properties of
approximately HK$99,460,000 was
recognised in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss for the year then ended.

BRI REMENETIEFERE
Our audit procedures in relation to the investment

properties included:

FEMAREMENGEERS  YREEEMMGE
A Rt (A R A E RN ITDEM E 2 /RER ¢

reviewed the valuation reports of the investment
properties and discussed with the management
and valuers to assess the methodologies and key

assumptions adopted in the valuation;

AHE A EMAERMBERANE - WHEEMBPINER
iRt - FHAREROTERIE - BIIEMED + K

obtained the valuers’ qualifications and expertise
and read their terms of engagement and evaluated
the objectivity, independence and competence of

the valuers; and
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FREITEE
Key Audit Matter

EREREMENAAEEGEER EXRER
BEAEMNINEAEMETNE L EEN G
- H A EXRHE M GE - BR&EETA
REZEMRBRE - EEMEERBHEREERME
RABEATUATSEERERETER L2
Z s AR AR T ETRUYERN
M55 e

The estimate of fair values of the Group’s
investment properties were assessed
by the Group based on independent
valuations performed by qualified external
valuers, in which significant judgements
and estimation, including valuation
methodologies and key assumptions, are
used. These investment properties were
valued on market value basis on their
existing development stage and usage, and
by reference to recent market transactions
for similar properties in the same location

and condition.

HRFBTE R EARERTEFHMEMRE
05 B8 B B0 BB (b 5T A0 HI BT 7 B4 € R B/ At
BB LRI AEE

We focused on this area because the
significant estimates and judgement
involved in determining the property
valuations warrants specific audit focus and

attention on this area

Bz HED R EE
Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

RPN BT OWEEZEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

— AHETEAMEZERENEARNCLE  mHEE -
ERRTEELES  RMAYFHETEMBALR
SEEIREMEEMERK -

— evaluated the methodologies used and the key

assumptions, such as capitalisation rate and market
rent, adopted in the valuation models based on
market data, entity-specific historical information,
and the nature and composition of the Group’s

investment properties.
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BIAZBENRES
Independent Auditor’s Report

BRETEE(E)

BAREITEE
Key Audit Matter

BT EYES A ZIFEILE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

RPN ESTOAEEZEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Assessment of the net realisable value of properties held for sale

B RHA A SRR ARIBN i 5E2.8 R FE191H

Refer to Notes 2.8 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements

RZZE-_—FXA=+tH BEEEEAFE
YIH4)3£1,963,641,0008 7T

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had
properties held for sale amounting to
approximately HK$1,963,641,000.

FAEGFEMERKAMA B FERE 28
BEIER - IR FERRGAHEERR
EAG R TEAB A A & W) 5 P EE A YRR e
AERFERAREZ2RE BRI ERD
HEITHHERTE - EXARFEGFEDED
AR FENERNA BTG - ZENG
%Eiuu%adaﬂzﬁé’]%uﬂiéy o BIEE R Y
REBE-ZFT - —FARNA=ZTHLEFENTE
%%ﬂi?ﬁ%iﬁdﬁ °
Properties held for sale are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Net
realisable value represents the estimated
selling price less estimated costs of
completion and costs to be incurred in
selling the property. The net realisable value
was determined by the Group with reference
to the valuation performed by independent
qualified external valuers. Given the
significant judgment and estimates used
in assessing the net realisable value of
properties held for sale, such assessment
is considered significant to our audit.
Management concluded no impairment on
the properties held for sale was recognised
for the year ended 30 June 2021.

HPIEFEMENRTZF B
Our audit procedures in relation to properties held for

sale included:

— FHMAEEESRS  WHEERBEMMGEMETSWR - KA
TR EEETRANITTEMMRE

— reviewed the valuation report and held discussions

with management and the valuers to understand
the methodologies and assumptions adopted in the

valuation of the properties;

— FHABENERMEZEND - WHEBPFIOEH
iRt - FHABERNZERIE - BIIEMED + K

— obtained the valuers’ qualifications and expertise

and read their terms of engagement and evaluated
the objectivity, independence and competence of

the valuers; and

— FEFEANTEARERTSEE HFEERE
EEBARAEEREEHENEE AKX HER
AR RANERER  IHEFEMENGEE -

— evaluated the methodologies used and the key

assumptions, such as estimated selling price of
properties held for sale, adopted in the valuation
models based on market data, entity-specific
historical information, and the nature and
composition of the Group’s properties held for

sale.
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RATSI A E KRS AR PR A o

BIAZBEHRES
Independent Auditor’s Report

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all the information in
the annual report, but does not include the consolidated

financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any

form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
If, based

on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is

or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in

this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

ESHGESYBHRRZEE (K)

EREFEAVHRAE  EFREFNE &
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BHESELEEENER  UAREARE
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(WIS
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E BERENYBRESBERENAET-

RN S MR BT AR
BfE
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MEREAEERE YHABREHRMERLLN
ZEENRE - KPR LBEE 2 REHI
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P TIRARENARET  HEFMEEAL
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CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED £t (%) 5R2AF |

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have

no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors assisted by the Audit Committee are
responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting

process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person

for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.
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BIAZBEHRES
Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

— identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control.

— obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of

the Group’s internal control.
— evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates

and related disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the

Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit

opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the

audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our

audit.
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BIAZBEHRES
Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards

applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

11th Floor

Lee Garden Two

28 Yun Ping Road

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong
28 September 2021

Chiu Wing Ning
Practising Certificate No.: P04920
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Consolldated Statement of Profit or Loss

BE-FT-—4,A=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021
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Revenue
Direct costs

Gross profit

Other income

Changes in fair value of
investment properties

Changes in fair value of financial
assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”)

Expected credit loss (“ECL”) of
financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI”)

Administrative expenses

Finance costs

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Profit/(loss) for the year
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share for profit
attributable to the owners of
the Company during the year

Basic

Diluted

Bret

Notes

14

12

12

2021 2020

T#ET FHETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
994,589 552,880
(263,095) (182,284)
731,494 370,596
80,124 55,995
(99,460) 5,840
3,174 (9,294)
(14,000) -
(126,910) (109,321)
(21,385) (36,382)
553,037 277,434
(403,521) (244,427)
149,516 33,007
148,700 47,696

816 (14,689)

149,516 33,007
HK$0.237% T HK$0.08/8 7T
HK$0.237% T HK$0.08/8 7T
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

—E-—F —EEF
2021 2020
THERT THET
HK$’000 HK$'000
Profit for the year 149,516 33,007
Other comprehensive income/(expense)
for the year, net of tax
[tems that will be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Change in fair value of financial assets
at FVTOCI (recycling)
(1,560) (10,061)

Exchange gain/(loss) on translation
of financial statements of foreign
operations 188,027 (100,366)
[tems that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Change in fair value of land and
buildings held for own use 528 728
Income tax relating to components

of other comprehensive income 87) (120)

Other comprehensive income/
(expense) for the year, net of tax 186,908 (109,819)

Total comprehensive income/
(expense) for the year 336,424 (76,812)

Total comprehensive income/

(expense) for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company 335,608 (62,123)
Non-controlling interests 816 (14,689)
336,424 (76,812)

REEES TAARIRAE AHBEH REEE Details of dividends payable to owners of the Company are

MFEE11IER -

set out in Note 11.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RIZFEZ—F7A=1+H AS AT 30 JUNE 2021

—E-—F —EETF
2021 2020
iz FE T FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
EERAE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
IRBEE Non-current assets
LB Y Investment properties 14 6,655,700 7,084,875
Mz - #es kB Property, plant and equipment 15 45,636 42,365
HiIERBHEE Other non-current asset 16 950 950
Hihe & E Other financial assets 17 157,728 184,232
EETIAEE E Deferred tax assets 27 17,614 16,290
6,877,628 7,328,712
RBEE Current assets
BERAPGTEWE Properties under development
for sale 19 1,567,653 1,496,021
ERKZITFEDE Completed properties for sale 19 395,988 511,224
HEfh & m & E Other financial assets 17 3,483 6,472
BAnBEFTAERZ Financial assets at fair value
EEE through profit or loss 20 32,101 458,046
FEUWE 5 BR TR I Bt Trade and other receivables
& I BR 3R 21 30,821 30,333
RITEHETFLRR® Bank balances and cash 22 1,988,157 1,236,667
4,018,203 3,738,763
RBAE Current liabilities
E b FE S BRK Other payables 23 132,074 151,611
AHAEaE Contract liabilities 24 156,181 436,470
JE {F S 2 AR AR BR R IR Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders 25 239,990 239,990
F& - B8 3& 1~ R 518 Amount due to a related
company 25 1,489 1,547
BEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 26 865,920 1,261,920
HEAE Lease liabilities 28 2,273 2,627
FEA B 18 Tax payable 1,388,115 989,395
2,786,042 3,083,560
MEBEEFHE Net current assets 1,232,161 655,203
HEERRBERES Total assets less current
liabilities 8,109,789 7,983,915
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RIZFZ—HF7A=1+H AS AT 30 JUNE 2021

—EB-—F —EFTF
2021 2020
ki FET FAET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
BEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 26 10,613 10,351
EERR Advance from a director 31(a) 112,632 170,182
HEAE Lease liabilities 28 4,952 1,004
R IBE e E Deferred tax liabilities 27 930,853 1,070,462
1,059,050 1,251,999
EEFE Net assets 7,050,739 6,731,916
fEm EQUITY
A& < Share capital 29 2,468,985 2,441,551
7% 15 Reserves 4,404,645 4,114,072
AATFHEEAEMEER  Equity attributable to the owners
of the Company 6,873,630 6,555,623
FEFE RS Non-controlling interests 177,109 176,293
ESAE Total equity 7,050,739 6,731,916
iR H Ik 4
Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil Yung Philip
0 0
Director Director
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE-FT-—4,A=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

"(?' /EEZIEQI)ILE

Cash flows from operating activities

B A AT & A Profit before income tax
FEE Adjustments for:
ME  HRRREINE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
EREEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets
SR PN Dividend income
A B A Interest income
B 75 B AR Finance costs
REMELRARBEZED Changes in fair value of investment
properties

HERAARBEA
Bam o REEER
HERE Y EER

FEEZ A S BER AR
EEW 52 B REE
(A EE

BARBEFARMER
Wk 2 & BEER
FEHE MEK

HEWE - #es MREEE  Loss on disposal of property, plant

and equipment

Gain on disposal of financial
assets at FVTPL

Gain on disposal of investment
properties

(Gain)/Loss on redemption of
financial assets at FVTOCI

ECL of financial assets at FVTOCI

RO BEFABRZ Change in fair value of financial
TREEZAREBEEZY assets at FVTPL
PE =58 Exchange difference
RBE S EHAT 2 LEHE T Operating profit before working
capital changes

FEMERD Decrease in properties held for sale

H 5 Ik H b i WAR FOR Decrease in trade and other
receivables

H b 78 15 BR FRORL Decrease in other payables

BHREEORD) &M (Decrease)/Increase in contract
liabilities

Hﬂlﬁ_ﬁﬂz S tb' ERANEE Proceeds from disposal of financial

assets at FVTPL-equity securities
listed in Hong Kong
ﬁﬁ)\f”’*ﬁ@ﬁ)\?@ $2  Purchase of financial assets at
TRIEE-RBEELTZ FVTPL — equity securities
IR AN 5 % listed in Hong Kong

EA%E/%J:WZJ‘&$

REEHMEE RS
B B 6 A A
E A

Cash generated from operations
Finance costs paid
Profit tax paid

4 E B AT S SF A

Net cash generated from operating
activities
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—_ B —E-FTE
2021 2020
FER THET
HK$’000 HK$’000
553,037 277,434
568 711
3,227 3,352
(2,123) (632)
(45,208) (37,866)
21,385 36,382
99,460 (5,840)
(463) (607)
(16,429) (15,611)
(26) 1,247
14,000 -
- 3
(3,174) 9,294
(17,994) 49,566
606,260 317,433
88,178 44,043
1,341 22,784
(30,878) (38,453)
(300,014) 136,125
2,704 6,722
- (38,638)
367,591 450,016
(20,965) (36,416)
(142,939) (142,934)
203,687 270,666
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Cash flows from investing activities

Dividend received

Interest received

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Additions of investment properties

Release of fixed deposits with
original maturity of over three
months placement of

Release of pledged bank balances

Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL
— short term investment

Proceed from disposal of financial
assets at FVTPL — short term
investment

Proceed from disposal of investment
properties

Redemption of financial assets at
FVTOCI

Purchase of financial assets at FVTOCI

Proceed from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Net cash generated from investing
activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Dividends paid

New bank and other loans raised

Repayment of bank loan

(Decrease)/Increase in advances from
a director

(Repayment)/Advance of amount due
to a related company

Payment of capital element of lease
liabilities

Net cash generated (used in)/from
financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes, on cash held

Cash and cash equivalents at
end of year

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

—_E-—£F S — FR AT
2021 2020
FTER THET
HK$’000 HK$’000
1,434 632
45,311 37,383
(317) (435)
(3,496) (12,221)
- 193,368
2,238 28
(1,340,659) (1,225,457)
1,797,622 1,045,058
491,407 514,681
17,841 3,129
(3,882) (31,593)
- 7
1,007,499 524,580
(17,601) (20,845)
15,000 597,792
(411,000) (499,559)
(57,550) 11,000
(58) 166
(2,711) (2,840)
(473,920) 85,714
737,266 880,960
1,232,907 398,298
16,462 (46,351)
1,986,635 1,232,907
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE-FT-—4,A=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

RITEERREESEY Analysis of the balances of cash and
HEER DT cash equivalents
ERAEVBEAMRATFERES Z Bank balances and cash as stated in
RITEFLRRE consolidated statement of financial
position
B BEHRITAET Less: Pledged bank balances

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED £ (%8)AR25 | Annual Report 2021 4£##

—E-—F —E-EF
2021 2020
FExT FHIT
HK$’000 HK$’000
1,988,157 1,236,667
(1,522) (3,760)
1,986,635 1,232,907
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RERE Wit)

BHERBAN-Z-2F
hERE Wit
Bkh
RENERSEE

“ESREARZ AR

Balance at 1 July 2019

Profit/(Loss) for the year
Other comprehensive
incomel(expense) for the year:
Exchange loss on translation
of financial statements
of foreign operations
Change in fair value of financial
assets at FVTOCI (recycling)
Surplus on revaluation of land and
building
Income tax relating to components of

other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive (expense)/income

for the year

2019 final dividend approved
and paid (Note 17)
2020 interim dividend approved
and paid (Note 17)
Issue of share capital:
Pursuant to scrip dividend scheme

Balance at 30 June 2020

o

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Bk

BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

ARAREARLER
Equity attributable to the owners of the Company

RAARE

AARERE

Rzl
k& REGRE  DEERRE KEERH) REER 8%  FEREE fRi

Financial

assets at

fair value

through other

Property  comprehensive
Share Exchange  revaluation reserve Retained Non-controlling Total
capital reserve* reserve*  (recycling)* profits* Total interests equity
TEn THL TR TEn TER TERL TER TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

(#it30w)
(Note 30(a))

2,326,486 (376,944) 28,160 77 4,670,006 6,638,591 190,982 6,829,573
- - - - 47,69 47,69 (14,689) 33,007
- (100,366 - - - (100,366) - (100,366
- - - (10,061) - (10,061) - (10,061)
- - 728 - - 728 - 728
- - (120) - - (120) - (120)
- (100,366) 608 (10,061) 47,696 62123) (14,689) (76,812)
- - - - (89,345) (89,345) - (89,345)
- - - - (46,565) (46,505) - (46,565)
115,005 - - - - 115,005 - 115,065
2,441,551 (479,310) 28,768 (17,178) 4,581,792 6,555,623 176,293 6,731,916
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-FT-—4,A=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

CRCEELA-RER

EREH
ErEfiEha/ (2i)

HEENEEEREIBRRELL
B

BLRBRAEG2ENEZ
THRBTERES

A2 EREREIH0HER

ER2ERE/ (Xh) 48

EREREAN-S-5F
RERE (Wit11)

BHEREAN-S--F
RERE (i)

¥R
RENRRE5E

IRI-ERAZTRER

SREELRBEHZD(ERF)

Balance at 1 July 2020

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income/(expense)
for the year:

Exchange gain on translation of
financial statements of foreign
operations

Change in fair value of financial
assets at FVTOC (recycling)

Surplus on revaluation of
land and building

Income tax relating to components of
other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income/(expense)
for the year

2020 final dividend approved and paid
(Note 11)

2021 interim dividend approved and
paid (Note 11)

Issue of share capital:

Pursuant to scrip dividend scheme

Balance at 30 June 2021

ADRREARGRE
Equity attributable to the owners of the Company

RAARE

FARKRZE

fifzeR
kx BERE NXERRE RE(EYH) REEA BF  FERER SERGER

Financial

assets at

fair value

through other

Property  comprehensive
Share Exchange revaluation reserve Retained Non-controlling Total
Capital reserve* reserve* (recycling)* profits* Total interests equity
TEL TR TR TERL TR TR TERL TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

(W& 27a)
(Note 27(a))

2,441,551 (479,310) 26,768 (17,178) 4,581,792 6,555,623 176,293 6,731,916
- - - - 148,700 148,700 816 149,516
- 188,027 - - - 188,027 - 188,027
- - - (1,560) = (1,560) - (1,560)
- - 528 - - 528 - 528
= = ®7) - - (87) - (87)
- 188,027 441 (1,560) 148,700 335,608 816 336,424
- - - - (31,981) (31,981) - (31,981)
- - - - (13,054) (13,054) - (13,04)
277,434 - - - - 277,434 - 27,434
2,468,985 (291,283) 29,209 (18,738) 4,685,457 6,873,630 177,109 7,050,739

*  These reserve accounts comprise the Group’s
reserves of approximately HK$4,404,645,000
(2020: HK$4,114,072,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

GENERAL INFORMATION
Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) is a

limited liability company incorporated and domiciled
in Hong Kong. The address of its registered office is
disclosed in the Corporate Information section of the
annual report and, its principal place of business is
Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on The

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
controlled by Yan Yin Company Limited (“Yan Yin”), a
limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in
Hong Kong. At the reporting date, the directors consider
the ultimate parent company of the Group is also Yan
Yin.

The Group is principally engaged in property
development and investment and provision of property

management and related services.

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2021 were approved for issue by the
board of directors on 28 September 2021.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-FT-—4,A=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

2. TEETHERRBE

2.1. mEIHE

BN E142B EF288H 2 F E4r
EUBHRERDEEEGHAE
([BEEGMAg) BH2EE
M mEER (BB G HREE
all) - ke eEmEEAER
ZEBMBREER BEGITE
Al ((HEgT £ kZEEBELSE
BERKA G RAIMER -

R EME M EBERZEF B RA
GOIZHRE - TRBNTEEBHE
RGAAERARZES EMARZE
REERE -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

These annual consolidated financial statements
on pages 142 to 288 have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the accounting

principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

The financial statements also comply with the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and include the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited (“Listing Rules”).
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BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2. TESTBERBE (FE)
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The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are summarised below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented unless otherwise stated. The
adoption of new or amended HKFRSs and the
impacts on the Group’s consolidated financial

statements, if any, are disclosed in Note 3.

The consolidated financial statements have been

prepared on the historical cost basis, except for:

— investment properties;

— financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”);

— financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”); and

— land and building classified under property,

plant and equipment

which are stated at fair values. The measurement
bases are fully described in the accounting policies

below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. Although these
estimates are based on management’s best knowledge
and judgement of current events and actions, actual
results may ultimately differ from those estimates.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial

statements, are disclosed in Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-FT-—4,A=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its

subsidiaries made up to 30 June each year.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power over the
entity, only substantive rights (held by the Group

and other parties) are considered.

The Group includes the income and expenses of a
subsidiary in the consolidated financial statements
from the date it gains control until the date when

the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains and losses on transactions between
group companies are eliminated in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Where
unrealised losses on sales of intra-group asset are
reversed on consolidation, the underlying asset
is also tested for impairment from the Group’s
perspective. Amounts reported in the financial
statement of subsidiaries have been adjusted
where necessary to ensure consistency with the

accounting policies adopted by the Group.
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BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Basis of consolidation (Continued)
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Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the
Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any
non-controlling interests either at fair value or at
their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net

identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from the equity attributable to the
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests
in the results of the Group are presented on the
face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss
and total comprehensive income respectively for
the year between non-controlling interests and the

owners of the Company.
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BE-FT-—4,A=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment
loss unless the subsidiary is held for sale or
included in a disposal group. Cost is adjusted
to reflect changes in consideration arising from
contingent consideration amendments. Cost also

includes direct attributable costs of investment.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends received
and receivable at the reporting date. All dividends
whether received out of the investee’s pre or post-
acquisition profits are recognised in the Company’s

profit or loss.
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BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Foreign currency translation

2. TESTBERBE (FE)

2.3 HEERE
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The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (HK$), which is also the

functional currency of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions
are translated into the functional currency of
the individual entity using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the
reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
reporting date retranslation of monetary assets and

liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are

EEIBE - NIREBEAAEBESE R denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
ZIERME » F{EA L BEWESK at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair

EBEE AR 2 o U £ RAET
EZEHHRAMTENRRE (B
RERRHE B LR RRETHR
#) -

value was determined and are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated (i.e. only translated

using the exchange rates at the transactions date).
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BE-FT-—4,A=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

In the consolidated financial statements, all
individual financial statements of foreign
operations, originally presented in a currency
different from the Group’s presentation currency,
have been converted into Hong Kong dollars.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the closing rates at the
reporting date. Income and expenses have been
converted into the Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates,
or at the average rates over the reporting period
provided that the exchange rates do not fluctuate
significantly. Any differences arising from
this procedure have been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately

in the exchange reserve in equity.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e., a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation),
all of the accumulated exchange differences in
respect of that operation attributable to the Group
are reclassified to profit or loss. Any exchange
differences that have previously been attributed to
non-controlling interests are derecognised, but they

are not reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal (i.e., no loss of
control) of a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit

or loss.
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BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Property, plant and equipment
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Property, plant and equipment (other than cost
of right-of-use assets as described in Note 2.12)
are initially recognised at acquisition cost or
manufacturing cost (including any cost directly
attributable to bringing the assets to the location
and condition necessary for them to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by the Group’s
management). Except for land and building held
for administrative purpose as described below, they
are subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if

any.

Land and building held for administrative
purpose are stated at fair value less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Any revaluation surplus is recognised in other
comprehensive income and credited to “property
revaluation reserve” in equity. To the extent that
any revaluation decrease or impairment loss has
previously been recognised in profit or loss, a
revaluation increase is credited to profit or loss
with the remaining part of the increase recognised
in other comprehensive income. Downward
revaluations are recognised upon appraisal or
impairment testing, with the decrease being
charged to other comprehensive income to the
extent of any revaluation surplus in equity relating
to this asset and any remaining decrease recognised

in profit or loss.
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BE-FT-—4,A=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or
revalued amounts less their residual values, if any,
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-

line method, at the following rates per annum:

Land and building 2%
Furniture, fittings and office

equipment 10%
Motor vehicles and accessories 20%

The asset’s residual values, depreciation methods
and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal
is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
is recognised in profit or loss. Any revaluation
surplus remaining in equity is transferred to
retained profits upon disposal of land and building

and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other costs, such as
repairs and maintenance, are charged to profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are

incurred.
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BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Investment properties
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Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold interest
(see Note 2.12) to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation. These include land held for a
currently undetermined future use and property that
is being constructed or developed for future use as

investment property.

Investment properties include completed properties
and investment properties under development for
continued future use as investment properties.
Investment properties are measured at cost on
initial recognition and subsequently at fair value.
Fair value is determined by external professional
valuers, with sufficient experience with respect
to both the location and nature of the investment
property. The carrying amounts recognised at
the reporting date reflect the prevailing market

conditions at the reporting date.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the
fair value or the sale of an investment property are
included in profit or loss in the period in which

they arise.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial instruments

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when the Group becomes a party to the

contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or when the financial asset
and substantially all of its risks and rewards are
transferred. A financial liability is derecognised
when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or

expires.

Financial assets

Classification and initial measurement of financial

assets

Except for those trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component and are
measured at the transaction price in accordance
with HKFRS 15, all financial assets are initially
measured at fair value, in case of a financial asset
not at FVTPL, plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at

FVTPL are expensed in the profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial instruments (Continued)
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Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and initial measurement of financial

assets (Continued)

Financial assets are classified into the following

categories:

- BEAR — amortised cost

- BAREBEFARZE = - FVTPL; or

- BRAREEFAHEMEER - FVTOCL

DEHATMERE The classification is determined by both:

- EREECSRMEEMNEER — the entity’s business model for managing the
w & financial asset; and

— the contractual cash flow characteristics of the

financial asset.

All income and expenses relating to financial assets
that are recognised in profit or loss are presented
within finance costs or other income, except for
ECL of trade receivables which is presented within

administrative expenses.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement of financial assets
Debt investments

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if
the assets meet the following conditions (and are
not designated as FVTPL):

— they are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the financial assets and

collect its contractual cash flows; and

— the contractual terms of the financial assets
give rise to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal

amount outstanding.

After initial recognition, these are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest income from these financial assets is
included in profit or loss. Discounting is omitted
where the effect of discounting is immaterial. The
Group’s trade and other receivables and bank
balances and cash fall into this category of financial

instruments.
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BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Debt investments (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTOCI - recycling
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If the contractual cash flows of the investment
comprise solely payments of principal and interest
and the investment is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collection
of contractual cash flows and sale, subsequent
changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the recognition
in profit or loss of ECL, interest income (calculated
using the effective interest method) and foreign
exchange gains and losses. When the investment
is derecognised, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from equity to

profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that are held within a different
business model other than “hold to collect” or
“hold to collect and sell’ are categorised at FVTPL.
Further, irrespective of business model, financial
assets whose contractual cash flows are not solely
payments of principal and interest are accounted
for at FVTPL. This category includes structured
deposit.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial instruments (Continued)
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Financial assets (Continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Equity investment

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVTPL unless the equity investment is not held
for trading purposes and on initial recognition
of the investment, the Group elects to designate
the investment at FVTOCI (non-recycling). Such
elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but only be made if the investment meets the

definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when
the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established. Dividends are included in the “other

income” in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities
Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include interest-
bearing borrowings, lease liabilities, other payables
and advances from related parties (including
amounts due to non-controlling shareholders,
amount due to a related company and advance

from a director).

Financial liabilities (other than lease liabilities)
are initially measured at fair value, and, where
applicable, adjusted for transaction costs unless the

Group designated a financial liability at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial
liabilities (Continued)

Subsequently, financial liabilities (other than lease
liabilities) are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method except for derivatives
and financial liabilities designated at FVTPL, which
are carried subsequently at fair value with gains or

losses recognised in profit or loss.

All interest-related charges that are reported in

profit or loss are included within finance cost.

Accounting policies of lease liabilities are set out in
Note 2.12.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings

using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve

months after the reporting date.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial
liabilities (Continued)

Other payables and advances from related parties

Other payables and advances from related parties
are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the

effective interest method.

Impairment of financial assets

HKFRS 9’s impairment requirements use more
forward-looking information to recognise ECL —
the “ECL model”. Instruments within the scope
included loans and other debt-type financial assets
measured at amortised cost and FVTOCI and
financial guarantee contracts (for the issuer) that are

not measured at FVTPL.

The Group considers a broader range of
information when assessing credit risk and
measuring ECL, including past events, current
conditions, reasonable and supportable forecasts
that affect the expected collectability of the future

cash flows of the instrument.
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2. TESTHERE (&) 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

27 EWEEREE) 2.7 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
FEERERRATIEM AR - RAIE In applying this forward-looking approach, a
N distinction is made between:

- VAR EEREEREER - financial instruments that have not deteriorated
btz ARBEBEMN ST A significantly in credit quality since initial
([EB—FEK]): & recognition or that have low credit risk (“Stage

1”7); and

- VIGEHERUARGEHAEERER — financial instruments that have deteriorated
L B AR R Tﬁﬂ'] BT A significantly in credit quality since initial
([E-PEER]) - recognition and whose credit risk is not low

(“Stage 27).
r%_ﬁﬁﬁxiﬂ—rﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiaﬂﬁﬂ “Stage 3” would cover financial assets that have
BURESBENEMEE - AW - K objective evidence of impairment at the reporting
SEMNEMEES TNERILIER - date. However, none of the Group’s financial assets

fall into this category.

[M2ME A EHEREBE R WA ER “12-month ECL” are recognised for the Stage 1

FE-EERAENMIKRETEREAE category while “lifetime ECL” are recognised for the

KIWABAIRE _FERER - Stage 2 category.

EHERBEANTEhRoRIATE Measurement of the ECL is determined by a
HEmARNEBEXOBERINES probability-weighted estimate of credit losses over

EJrﬁEIF_ ° the expected life of the financial instrument.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables

For trade receivables, the Group applies a
simplified approach in calculating ECL and
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL
at each reporting date. These are the expected
shortfalls in contractual cash flows, considering
the potential for default at any point during the life
of the financial assets. In calculating the ECL, the
Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on its historical credit loss experience and
external indicators, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic

environment.

To measure the ECL, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics

and the days past due.

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
and debt investment at FVTOCI

The Group measures the loss allowance for other
receivables, debt investment at FVTOCI and bank
balances and cash equal to 12-month ECL, unless
when there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increase in the likelihood or risk of default

occurring since initial recognition.
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BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
and debt investment at FVTOCI (Continued)

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial assets at the reporting date with the risk of
default occurring on the financial assets at the date
of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or

effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if

available) or internal credit rating;

— significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default

swap prices for the debtor;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in
regulatory, business, financial, economic
conditions, or technological environment that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the

debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations; and

— an actual or expected significant deterioration

in the operating results of the debtor.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
and debt investment at FVTOCI (Continued)

[rrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates

otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at
the end of each reporting period. A debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk if it has a low
risk of default, the borrower has strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term and adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower

to fulfill its contractual cash flow obligations.

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when (i)
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collateral held by
the Group); or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days past

due.

Detailed analysis of the ECL assessment of trade
receivables, debt investment at FVTOCI and other
financial assets measured at amortised cost are set
out in Note 33.2.
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BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

2.8

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is
required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms
of the instrument that is guaranteed. Accordingly,
the ECL is the present value of the expected
payments to the holder for a credit loss that it
incurs less any amounts that the Group expects to

receive from the holder, the debtor or any other

party.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale include completed
properties for sale and properties under
development for sale and are stated at the lower of

cost and net realisable value.

(i) Properties under development for sale

The cost of properties under development
for sale comprises specifically identified
cost, including the acquisition cost of land,
aggregate cost of development, materials and
supplies, wages and other direct expenses,
an appropriate proportion of overheads and
borrowing costs capitalised (see Note 2.18).
Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price less estimated costs of completion

and costs to be incurred in selling the property.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Properties held for sale (Continued)
(ii) Completed properties for sale

In the case of completed properties developed
by the Group, cost is determined by
apportionment of the total development costs
for that development project, attributable to
the unsold properties. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price less costs

to be incurred in selling the property.

The cost of completed properties for sale
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and

condition.

2.9 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank
and in hand, demand deposits with banks and
short term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in

value.
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2. FESHHEERE(H) 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Contract assets and contract liabilities
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A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see Note 2.15) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under
the payment terms set out in the contract. Contract
assets are assessed for ECL in accordance with the
policy set out in Note 2.7 and are reclassified to
receivables when the right to the consideration has

become unconditional (see Note 2.6).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue (see Note 2.15). A contract liability
would also be recognised if the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration before
the Group recognises the related revenue. In such
cases, a corresponding receivable would also be

recognised (see Note 2.6).

For a single contract with the customer, either
a net contract asset or a net contract liability is
presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets
and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are

not presented on a net basis.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Financial guarantees issued

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtors fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt

instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within “other payables”. The fair
value of financial guarantees is determined based
on the present value of the difference in cash flows
between the contractual payments required under
the debt instruments and the payments that would
be required without the guarantee, or the estimated
amount that would be payable to a third party for
assessing the obligations. Where consideration
is received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of

any deferred income.

Subsequently, financial guarantees are measured at
the higher of the amount determined in accordance
with ECL under HKFRS 9 as set out in Note 2.7
and the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income

recognised over the guarantee period.
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BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Leases
(a) Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee

At inception of a contract, the Group considers
whether a contract is, or contains a lease.
A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of
a contract, that conveys the right to use an
identified asset (the underlying asset) for a
period of time in exchange for consideration’.
To apply this definition, the Group assesses
whether the contract meets three key

evaluations which are whether:

— the contract contains an identified asset,
which is either explicitly identified in the
contract or implicitly specified by being
identified at the time the asset is made

available to the Group;

— the Group has the right to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits
from use of the identified asset throughout
the period of use, considering its rights
within the defined scope of the contract;

and

— the Group has the right to direct the use of
the identified asset throughout the period
of use. The Group assesses whether it
has the right to direct ‘how and for what
purpose’ the asset is used throughout the

period of use.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.12 Leases (Continued)

(a) Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee

(Continued)

Measurement and recognition of leases as a

lessee

At lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability on the consolidated statement of
financial position. The right-of-use asset is
measured at cost, which is made up of the
initial measurement of the lease liability, any
initial direct costs incurred by the Group, an
estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset at the end of the lease,
and any lease payments made in advance of
the lease commencement date (net of any

incentives received).

Except for those right-of-use assets meeting
the definition of investment properties and
those relating to a class of property, plant and
equipment to which revaluation model was
applied, the Group depreciates the right-of-
use assets on a straight-line basis from the
lease commencement date to the earlier of the
end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset
or the end of the lease term unless the Group
is reasonably certain to obtain ownership at
the end of the lease term. The Group also
assess the right-of-use asset for impairment
when such indicator exists. Those right-of-
use assets meeting the definition of investment
properties or relating to a class of property,
plant and equipment to which revaluation
model was applied are subsequently measured
at fair value, in accordance with the Group’s

accounting policies.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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Measurement and recognition of leases as a
lessee (Continued)

At the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability at the present
value of the lease payments unpaid at that
date, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group’s incremental

borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement
of the lease liability are made up of fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed
payment) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable payments based on an index or rate,
and amounts expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee. The lease payments
also included the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonable certain to be exercised
by the Group and payment of penalties for
terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects

the Group exercising the option to terminate.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability
will be reduced for payments made and
increased for interest cost on the lease liability.
It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or
lease modification, or if there are changes in

in-substance fixed payments.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.12 Leases (Continued)

(a) Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee

(Continued)

Measurement and recognition of leases as a
lessee (Continued)

For lease modification that is not accounted for
as a separate lease, the Group remeasures the
lease liability based on the lease term of the
modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the

effective date of modification.

When the lease is remeasured, the
corresponding adjustment is reflected in the
right-of-use asset, or profit and loss if the right-

of-use asset is already reduced to zero.

The Group has elected to account for short-
term leases using the practical expedients.
Instead of recognising a right-of-use asset and
lease liability, the payments in relation to these
lease are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Short-term leases are leases with a lease term

of 12 month or less.

Right-of-use assets are presented included
in property, plant and equipment of the

consolidated statement of financial position.
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BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.12 Leases (Continued)

(b) The Group as a lessor

As a lessor, the Group classifies its leases as

either operating or finance leases.

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of the underlying asset,
and classified as an operating lease if it does

not.

The Group also earns rental income from
operating leases of its investment properties.
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line

basis over the term of the lease.

2.13 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle

the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date

and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future uncertain events
not wholly within the control of the Group, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the

probability of outflow of economic benefits is

remote.

2.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share
capital is recognised at the amount of consideration
of shares issued, after deducting any transaction
costs associated with the issuing of shares (net of
any related income tax benefit) to the extent they

are incremental costs directly attributable to the

equity transaction.
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2. FESHHEERE(H) 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Revenue recognition
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Revenue arises from the sale of properties held
for sale, rental income under operating leases and

estate management income.

To determine whether to recognise revenue, the

Group follows a 5-step process:

1. ldentifying the contract with a customer.

2. ldentifying the performance obligations.

3. Determining the transaction price.

4. Allocating the transaction price to the

performance obligations.

5. Recognising revenue when/as performance

obligation(s) are satisfied.

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time
or over time, when (or as) the Group satisfies
performance obligations by transferring the

promised goods or services to its customers.

(i) Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties recognised
when (or as) the control of the property is
transferred at a point in time. Revenue is
recognised when the customer obtains the
physical possession or the legal title of the
completed property and the Group has present
right to payment and the collection of the

consideration is probable.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Revenue recognition (Continued)

()

(ii)

Sales of properties (Continued)

Deposits received from customers prior to
delivery of the properties to the customers are

contract liabilities.

For contract where the period between the
payment by the customer and the transfer of
the promised property or service exceeds one
year, the transaction price is adjusted for the

effects of a significant financing component.

Rental income

Accounting policies for rental income are set
out in Note 2.12(b).

(iii) Estate management income

(iv)

v)

Revenue is recognised in the period when

services are rendered.

Interest income

Revenue is recognised on a time proportion
basis using the effective interest method. For
financial assets measured at amortised cost
or FVTOCI (recycling) that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied

to the gross carrying amount of the asset.

Dividend income
Revenue from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ right to receive payment is

established.
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2. FESHHEERE(H) 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Impairment of non-financial assets
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Property, plant and equipment, other non-current
asset and interests in subsidiaries are subject to
impairment testing. All such assets are tested for
impairment whenever there are indications that the

asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs of disposal,
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessment of time value of

money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As
a result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at cash-generating

unit level.

Impairment losses is charged pro rata to the assets
in the cash generating unit, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less cost of disposal, or value

in use, if determinable.

Annual Report 2021 4£# | CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =t ((E) HRAH

185



186

GEMBREMEE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-FT-—4,A=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

2. TEETTBERBE (FE)

216 FTRMEERES R ()

BEBERLOREEEZAERE
FRAHE - BEEABEEEE
ZA B e ERRNZEE
ZEREETBAEREM 2R
B H8EREERESRER A
MERIFE S EEE -

217 EEER

BAIKEF
RERAKENZREHTBESE TR
EHRETE -

1RSSR I ATES 50 - A EE
B REHIERSHE  FEE
EHAERSRBESHE - 3K
TIREEEEATSNE S L
fif o

AREBETHEELWBARFL
ST TS B R R RATEE AT
g - ZIB AR FHN LRI E LM
RAMBD 2+ THRRIERE

£

BN EE BN FRIEM/RS - HR
EHEBRTERAXEH  AEBEE
tERFTEIMEERRNEE B DL
B AT K o

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount and
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been

recognised.

2.17 Employee benefits

Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided

through several defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution
retirement benefit plan under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a

percentage of the employees’ basic salaries.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries that
operate in the PRC are required to participate in
a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. This subsidiary is required
to contribute 10% of its payroll costs to the central

pension scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss as employees render services during the
year. The Group’s obligations under these plans
are limited to the fixed percentage contributions

payable.
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BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by

employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised

until the time of leave.

2.18 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment
income earned on the temporary investment
of the specific borrowing, for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying assets
are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing

costs are expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the
cost of a qualifying asset when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are
being incurred and activities that are necessary
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
are being undertaken. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its

intended use or sale are complete.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and the Group will
comply with all attached conditions. Government
grants relating to income is presented in gross
under other revenue in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss.

2.20 Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities
comprise those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal
authorities relating to the current or prior reporting
period, that are unpaid at the reporting date. They
are calculated according to the tax rates and tax
laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which they
relate, based on the taxable profit for the year.
All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are
recognised as a component of tax expense in profit

or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)
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Deferred tax is calculated using the liability
method on temporary differences at the reporting
date between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and their
respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for
all deductible temporary differences, tax losses
available to be carried forward as well as other
unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit, including existing taxable
temporary differences, will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, unused

tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises
from initial recognition of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither taxable nor

accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

For investment property measured using the fair
value model in accordance with the accounting
policy above, the measurement of the related
deferred tax liability or asset reflects the tax
consequences of recovering the carrying amount
of the investment property entirely through sale,
unless the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time,

rather than through sale.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
the liability is settled or the asset realised, provided
they are enacted or substantively enacted at the

reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss, or in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity if they
relate to items that are charged or credited to other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are

presented in net if, and only if,

(@) the Group has the legally enforceable right to

set off the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously.
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BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred

tax liabilities in net if, and only if,

(a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax

liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the

same taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(ii) different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be

settled or recovered.

2.21 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported
to the chief operating decision makers for their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of the
performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group’s major product and service

lines.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Segment reporting (Continued)

The Group has identified the following reportable

segments:

Property sales;

—  Property rentals;

Estate management; and

—  Others — securities trading

Each of these operating segments is managed
separately as each of the product and service lines
requires different resources as well as marketing
approaches. All inter-segment transfers are carried

out at arm’s length prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses for
reporting segment results under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under HKFRSs, except that finance
costs, income tax, corporate income and expenses
which are not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment are not included
in arriving at the operating results of the operating

segment.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Segment reporting (Continued)
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Segment assets include all assets but bank balances
and cash, deferred tax asset, investments in
other financial assets (including financial assets
at FVTOCI), land and building and corporate
assets which are not directly attributable to the
business activities of any operating segment are not
allocated to a segment, which primarily applies to

the Group’s headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude corporate liabilities
which are not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment and are not
allocated to a segment. These include tax payable,

deferred tax liabilities and certain borrowings.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to

reportable segments.

2.22 Related parties

For the purpose of these consolidated financial
statements, a party is considered to be related to

the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that

person’s family and if that person:

(i) has control or joint control of the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group;

or

(iii) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or of a parent of

the Group.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.22 Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity and if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

the entity and the Group are members of

the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which

the other entity is a member);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures

of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate

of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the Group
and the sponsoring employers are also

related to the Group;
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2. TESTHERE (&) 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 BE AT () 2.22 Related parties (Continued)
(b) BEFE T FE—3EHE  — (b) the party is an entity and if any of the following
AT AHEKEEHARME conditions applies: (Continued)
(#&)
i) ZEBE A FlQFFATEZ (vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
APl kR R by a person identified in (a);
i) ZEA A Fit@OPTRE (vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
TATHERAEEASE influence over the entity or is a member
WA ER (NLE e of the key management personnel of the
NE)FEEEBAEN entity (or of a parent of the entity); or
Heop—8 o
IMEA R 1 A (viii) the entity, or any member of a group
Al B A &) [A) 72 £ B sk A of which it is a part, provides key
EHEGATIREHIEESE management personnel services to the
ANERTE o Group or to the parent of the Group.
—AABEERZYRERK 8 245 Close family members of a person are those family
REKBTEHAASLE 55| members who may be expected to influence, or be
2, A AETEEITRS o influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs

Amended HKFRSs that are effective for annual periods
beginning on 1 July 2020

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the following amended HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA, which are relevant to the Group’s operations
and effective for the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the annual period beginning on 1 July
2020:

Amendments to Definition of a Business

HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS39 and
HKFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

Covid-19 Related Rent
Concessions

Amendments to
HKFRS 16
Amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

Definition of Material

Other than as noted below, the adoption of the
amended HKFRSs had no material impact on how the
results and financial position for the current and prior

periods have been prepared and presented.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 “Definition of

Material”

The amendments clarify the definition of material and
state that “information is material if omitting, misstating
or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
the decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements, which provide financial information about a
specific reporting entity”. Materiality depends on nature or

magnitude of information or both.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (Continued)

Amended HKFRSs that are effective for annual periods

beginning on 1 July 2020 (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 “Definition of
Material” (Continued)

The amendments also:
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introduce the concept of obscuring information
when considering materiality and provide some
examples of circumstances that may result in

material information being obscured;

clarify that materiality assessment will need to take
into account how primary users could reasonably
be expected to be influenced in making economic
decisions by replacing the threshold “could
influence” with “could reasonably be expected to

influence” in the definition of material; and

clarify that materiality assessment will need to take
into account of information provided to primary
users of general purpose financial statements (i.e.
existing and potential investors, lenders and other
creditors that rely on general purpose financial
statements for much of the financial information

they need).

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of these amendments has had no impact on

the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (Continued)
Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs
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At the date of authorisation of these consolidated
financial statements, certain new and amended HKFRSs

have been published but are not yet effective, and have

198

RBRFRA -

not been adopted early by the Group.

ERRMBRSENES FRieARRABED HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and related amendments’
BANBREER BoERN2E Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework’
ERVACHEY)
BEMBRE RN (BTX) - FEEENE-F- Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform-Phase 2'
BREHENBOR(BTR) . RE HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
BRMBRERAETH (B7 HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16
K)  BARBEEER B4R
(BIR)RERRBES
8163 (BHTA)
ERRBRSENE105 REZREBERT Amendments to HKFRS Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
(BT K) R RB QL FABDEZEH 10 and HKAS 28 and its Associate or Joint Venture
#2283 (B3174) BELEIHLE
BENBAEENE165 2021567308 2 Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions beyond 30
CHEY ERERHARBN June 2021°
HeERe
BREHENEIR(BTE) BRENEARDI Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
RBRBERES current and related amendments to Hong Kong
F0KRBET Interpretation 5 (2020)°
BRGHERZ 1R (BIX) Rk SHURRE Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies’
ERUBREENERERARIN HKFRS Practice Statement 2
BB e RN E0R (BFK) SHEENRE Amendments to HKAS 8 Disclosure of Accounting Estimates®
BREHERF 2% (BIX) HE-QHELENE Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
ENGERANE arising from a Single Transaction’
EhE
BREHERF 6% (BIK) BE BEMNXE- Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before
AENBHREY Intended Use?
Yog?
BAGHENEITH (BAA) LENAR-BOA Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
Flls
BRUKRLEN (BT EREYBEREES Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards 2018 -
FEMEL018- 2020?
2020
LR EE S ACHEY ERZEHASNAH Accounting Guideline 5 (Revised) ~ Merger Accounting for Common Control
&it Combinations’
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BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (Continued)
Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

4 Effective date not yet determined

5 Effective for business combination/common control combination for which

the acquisition/combination date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2022

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021

The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements
will be adopted in the Group’s accounting policy
for the first period beginning on or after the effective
date of the pronouncement. Information on new and
amended HKFRSs that are expected to have impact on
the Group’s accounting policies is provided below.
Other new and amended HKFRSs are not expected to
have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated

financial statements.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (Continued)
Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement

2 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”

The amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to disclose
material accounting policy information instead
of significant accounting policies in its financial
statements. The amendments also provide some
guidance on how material policy information are
being identified and provide some examples of when

accounting policy information is likely to be material.

In March 2021, HKICPA issued HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 “Making Materiality Judgements” to provide
entities with non-mandatory guidance on how to make
materiality judgements when preparing their general
purpose financial statements in accordance with HKFRS.
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 was subsequently revised
to provide guidance and examples on how to apply the

concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual
reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and are applied prospectively. Earlier application is
permitted. Except for the disclosures of accounting
policies in note 2 may need to be revised to cope
with the above changes, the directors expect that the
amendments have no other material impact on the

consolidated financial statements.
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BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed

to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Estimation uncertainty

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year

are discussed below:

Fair value of properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices
in an active market for similar property in similar
location and condition and subject to lease and
other contracts. In making its judgement, the Group
considers information from a variety of sources

including:

(i) the floor areas of the properties with respect
to the consideration from the independent and

identified buyer;

(ii) current prices in an active market for properties
of different nature, condition or location (or
subject to different lease or other contracts),

adjusted to reflect those differences;
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BE-FT-—4,A=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

4. EXSEHLERHE (&)

4.1 fHEFFEEE M (8)

WH# R L (EEFFE ()

(i) MUY EERZEBIEN TS
AR ST ER - WIEH AR
MRBRZEEEERIZHH
HI DA SR A5 IR 50 B0 AT ] £ 8D
53

(v) FRRETEEA - HTHER
RIS R RO P FEf 3 (18
AEAREAEREMA L
W) R A R BT 5
Ao mESEREEOTHRE
Vi ) P A O B 3 o

AEBYECERBEMSEEAE
B RIELE - E/Fa TEEA
EMBEHTEER - ERHFTYE
NAREBER  AEEEEEDRE
BMEHEMKESNFERELE -
WEMER T RIEFEREE
RZEZ—FXA=1THHA
6,655,700,000/% 7T }%36,200,000
BT (ZZEZZFF D8R
7,085,475,000/7% 7T }36,400,000
BIT) o RABENFIBEE HNM
R4 KREISHNA ©

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value of properties (Continued)

(iii) recent prices of similar properties in less
active markets, with adjustments to reflect
any changes in economic conditions since the
date of the transactions that occurred at those

prices; and

(iv) discounted cash flow projections based on
reliable estimates of future cash flows, derived
from the terms of any existing lease and other
contracts and using discount rate that reflect
current market assessments of the uncertainty

in the amount and timing of the cash flows.

The Group’s properties have been valued
individually, on market value basis, which
conforms to The Hong Kong Institute of Survey
Valuation Standards. In estimating the fair value
of the properties, the management of the Group
has considered the highest and best use of the
properties. The carrying amount of the investment
properties and land and buildings as at 30 June
2021 are approximately HK$6,655,700,000
and HK$36,200,000 respectively (2020:
HK$7,084,875,000 and HK$36,400,000
respectively). Details of the fair value information

are set out in Notes 14 and 15.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

4. EXRSEHHERHE (&)

4.1 fHEF FAEEE M (8)

REVPCHEYEREEBERLZHE
L EZ 4
TREETREEEANSENERY 2
HFEVEELEE TEEFE
B B A8 ISR IR AL 5 158
B (Bt EER AT HENAE)
WAL ET TR 3 2 A o aRRAGET
FmiZEERNEEETELDR
e MRERFPZHFEVMENER
TS EEBR TS EEEF,
B A IRBETAEE F B AMERTE
B BERERNREEERE - &
BRZHEEMER_T=—FA
=+ H®AEREER1,567,653,000
BT (ZFTZF 4 :1,496,021,000
BIT) cBRAZCHFEVEEEZE
TE-—FEXA=ZtTHILEZFEE
A EREEEBNER(ZEZE
FM|m) o

Allowance for properties under development and

completed properties for sale

In determining whether allowances should be made
for the Group’s properties under development for
sale, the Group takes into consideration the current
market environment and the estimated market
value (i.e. the estimated selling price less estimated
costs of selling expenses less estimated costs to
completion of the properties). An allowance is
made if the estimated market value is less than
the carrying amount. If the actual market value
on properties under development for sale is less
than expected as a result of change in market
condition and/or significant variation in the
budgeted development cost, material provision for
impairment losses may result. The carrying amount
of the properties under development for sale as at
30 June 2021 is approximately HK$1,567,653,000
(2020: HK$1,496,021,000). No impairment loss on
properties under development for sale have been
written down to net realisable value during the year
ended 30 June 2021 (2020: Nil).
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4. EXSEHLERHE (&)

4.1

4.2

st THEE M ()
BREFCIHFEYEREEAZFE
WK% ()
EEEBREERZGEMRIFELE
1M AT | s
SIRBERYEN G T IHEE B
B EEREHEEEANMBETK
AR) e MMREFXRZFEDENG
AAMBEEEREKREEZEE - A5
BERMEFELRHERE - BERZ
FEVMENTERERED EX
YR A E IR FE AR ML o 10
REBRZFENENERMISE

E2EEmM™

AREBRENREBERE 2%
BOMER—_ZE-—FA=+HHN
BR ™ % %8 /395,988,000 7T (=
T —Z4F :511,224,00087T) ° £
BHE-_Z-—FA=1THLFE
NI BB EZR 2 FEMETAZEA
BINFEE( T _TF ) -

EXREFHEE

P 88 89 & 51 ke 22
AEERZFINES > 7B FXK
I MDRFIPTIS AR - BRFZXR
A BEZROTBETEZET
HER - FERERERHEGHETE
BAWFASHEE o WRERIGLE
REZNCENSBIR - G =
BB FEEFELRENEBHMN
ERMMEEMBEHEEMEE -

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1

4.2

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Allowance for properties under development and

completed properties for sale (Continued)

Management exercises its judgment in making
allowance for completed properties for sale with
reference to the existing market environment
and the estimated market value of the properties,
i.e. the estimated selling price less estimated
costs of selling expenses. A specific allowance
for completed properties for sale is made if the
estimate market value of the property is lower than
its carrying amount. If the actual market values
of the completed properties for sale are less than
expected, as a result of change in market condition,
material provision for impairment losses may result.
The carrying amount of the completed properties as
at 30 June 2021 is approximately HK$395,988,000
(2020: HK$511,224,000). No completed properties
for sale have been written down to net realisable
value during the year ended 30 June 2021 (2020:
Nil).

Critical accounting judgements
Accounting for income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong
Kong, The People’s Republic of China (“PRC"),
Malaysia and Macau. There are transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. Significant management
judgement is required in determining the provision
of income taxes. Where the final tax outcome
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current
tax and deferred tax assets and liabilities in the

period in which such determination is made.
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4. ERGF TR HE (&) 4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.2 Critical accounting judgements (Continued)

4.2 EXEEMEE (B

FEHETEE (&)
EEEAKEETREMEELEN
HHNRAABER  ARREEED
RE - MFREMERAAEBER
AEF ERREEREHE WD 25
M E R B HER) - BEHRIBERE B
AEEMBARLERAUNE
B ORF - BRAEDRPENIRE
MEATBFT RO R B -

EFEMIRENE REVELIR
BEMEEERIELCHIE - MiES
EREYERFTER T HIZET &
EMBH - LHIEERNER S
BEBEERE s &EMBERRAEEB
RATWOE R GBI 2 FRTE - KA
EeREZETENSHEFE A
BETAHBROEREE T K
K BEREAREEMEERNX
HeHEZTE-_—FXA=1+H ¥
BEMEARBEEHNELEHIES
& 4930,853,0008 L (Z T - %
% :1,070,462,000/8 7T) EEAE
BERE_T_—FA=THI®
RE MBI KPR - EFHRER
EMFEE27E A o

Accounting for income tax (Continued)

In measuring the Group’s deferred tax on
investment properties measured at fair value,
management of the Group have determined that
the presumption that the carrying amounts of these
investment properties measured using the fair value
model were recovered entirely through sales was
not rebutted. Deferred tax has been provided at tax
rates that are expected to apply upon sales of the
investment properties held by the subsidiaries of
the Group in Hong Kong, Macau, Malaysia and the
PRC.

For the properties in the PRC, the tax expenses on
changes in fair value of investment properties and
properties sales are recognised taking into account
the Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) and Enterprise
Income Tax (“EIT”) payable upon sales of those
properties in the PRC. The LAT is determined
based on management’s best estimates according
to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC
tax laws and regulations and provided at ranges
of progressive rates of the appreciation value,
with certain allowable deductions including land
costs, borrowing costs and the relevant property
development expenditures. As at 30 June 2021,
deferred tax liabilities in relation to the fair value
changes of investment properties of approximately
HK$930,853,000 (2020: HK$1,070,462,000) have
been recognised in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2021,

as set out in Note 27.
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4. EXSEHLERHE (&)

4.2 EREGHHE (F&)

B E i EE (&)

BE  —HEARTIEBENRLER
T5 & E44,975,0008 L (ZE=F
F : 43,551,000 70) EERNEH
RZEZ—FNXA=THMERER
B MK PR - FBEHNERIE
MisrsE2718R - IRIERIEEEMNE
WEEREERHE BHARKFEIHK
RRFENERNRBER - WEE
AREBRRRAERBHRD - X
BIRIER TE & B T E R B - 1t [ 5
HErEZzARNBEEPER -

5. WA
AEET T BLEBEGAVBREER
FIEEB1EARE - RAFERN - K& A
AEBEIBLEBIEEAZRALT :

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.2 Critical accounting judgements (Continued)
Accounting for income tax (Continued)

In addition, deferred tax assets of approximately
HK$44,975,000 (2020: HK$43,551,000) in relation
to tax losses have been recognised in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position as
at 30 June 2021, as detailed in Note 27. The
recognition of the deferred tax assets mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or
taxable temporary differences will be available
in the future. In cases where the actual future
profits generated are less than expected, a material
reversal of deferred tax assets may arise, which
would be recognised in profit or loss for the period

in which such a reversal takes place.

5. REVENUE

The Group’s principal activities are disclosed in Note
1 to these consolidated financial statements. Revenue
from the Group’s principal activities recognised during

the year is as follows:

—E-—F —E-ETF

2021 2020

FET FAET

HK$’000 HK$'000

YEIHE Property sales 922,640 474,911
MEHEE Property rentals 55,179 63,453
Y EE R Estate management 16,770 14,516
994,589 552,880
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BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

5. REVENUE (Continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

customers

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods

and services at a point in time in the following major

product lines and geographical market:

Segments

Geographical markets

PRC
Hong Kong
Malaysia

Timing of revenue
recognition under
HKFRS 15 from external
customers

At a point in time

Revenue not in

the scope of HKFRS 15

BE-ZE-_—SXA=1tHLEE
Year ended 30 June 2021

MREE UXEE YXREE B
Property Property Estate
sales rentals management Total
TERT TERT TER TER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
922,640 5,438 8,434 936,512
- 49,112 8,336 57,448
- 629 - 629
922,640 55,179 16,770 994,589
922,640 - 16,770 939,410
- 55,179 - 55,179
922,640 55,179 16,770 994,589
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5. WA (F&)

5. REVENUE (Continued)

BEFEITSRNBADE (E)

7 &P
B 5 ™ 5

i
&%
Y]

RETEBMBES
ERIEI55KRE
SREFRRA
LON: ol

R AR

WA R/ 7
WEERIE155%
Gl

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)
BE-_ZT-_TF A=1THLFE
Year ended 30 June 2020

WEHE WEHEE REH R
Property Property Estate
sales rentals management Total
TAT TAT TAT TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Segments
Geographical markets
PRC 474,911 14,664 11,192 500,767
Hong Kong - 47,571 3,324 50,895
Malaysia - 1,218 - 1,218
474,911 63,453 14,516 552,880
Timing of revenue
recognition under
HKFRS 15 from external
customers
At a point in time 474,911 - 14,516 489,427
Revenue not in
the scope of HKFRS 15
- 63,453 - 63,453
474,911 63,453 14,516 552,880
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BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision makers, have identified the Group’s
reportable segments as further described in Note 2.21.

These reportable segments are monitored and strategic

decisions are made on the basis of adjusted segment

operating results:

2021

Revenue
From external customers

Inter-segment revenue

Reportable segment revenue
Reportable segment profit

Other information:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Interest income

Interest expense

Income tax expense

Decrease in fair value of investment properties
Increase in fair value of financial assets

at FVTPL
Reportable segment assets
Reportable segment liabilities

Additions to non-current segment assets (other
than financial instruments and deferred tax

assets) during the year

NEEE  NEXEE  NEER Eft ag
Property Property Estate
sales rentals management Others Total
TiEn TiEn TiEn TR T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
922,640 55,179 16,770 - 994589
- 840 26,119 - 26,959
922,640 56,019 42,889 - 1,021,548
549,879 54,567 4,630 5,760 614,836
25 448 95 - 568
- 728 2,499 - 3,227
30,775 14,393 40 - 45,208
- 24,161 - - 24,161
402,985 536 - - 403,521
- 99,460 - - 99,460
- - - 3,174 3,174
2,757,259 5,891,008 11,070 32,101 8,691,498
258,517 263,487 9,658 5,298 536,960
189 14 3,610 - 3,813
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

2020

Revenue
From external customers

Inter—segment revenue

Reportable segment revenue

Reportable segment profit/(loss)

Other information:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Interest income
Interest expense
Income tax expense/(credit)
Increase in fair value of investment properties
Decrease in fair value of financial
assets at FVTPL

Reportable segment assets

Reportable segment liabilities

Additions to non-current segment assets
(other than financial instruments and

deferred tax assets) during the year

nEEE  NXHE MEEE it g
Property Property Estate
sales rentals  management Others Total
TEL L L TiEn TiEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
474911 63,453 14,516 - 552,880
- 840 20,259 - 21,099
474911 64203 34775 - 53979
319,787 66,032 2,028 (8,055) 379,792
53 1,263 123 - 1,439
- - 2,624 - 2,624
29 15,151 22,11 565 37,8606
- 30,605 - - 30,605
304,456 (60,029) - - 244,427
- 5,840 - - 5,840
- - - 9,294 9,294
2,810,517 6,310,669 7,232 458,046 9,586,404
559,591 262,835 5,395 5,428 833,249
146 12,457 6,213 = 18,816
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BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The totals presented for the Group’s reportable

segments reconcile to the Group’s key financial figures

as presented in the consolidated financial statements as

follows:

Reportable segment revenue

Elimination of inter segment revenue

Revenue of the Group

Reportable segment profit
Unallocated corporate income
Unallocated corporate expenses

Finance costs

Profit before income tax of the Group

Reportable segment assets
Bank balances and cash
Other corporate assets

Deferred tax assets

Total assets of the Group

Reportable segment liabilities
Tax payable

Interest-bearing borrowings
Other corporate liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Total liabilities of the Group

Annual Report 2021 4£# | CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED £§

—E-—F —ECETF
2021 2020
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
1,021,548 573,979
(26,959) (21,099)
994,589 552,880
614,836 379,792
61,378 39,145
(101,792) (105,121)
(21,385) (36,382)
553,037 277,434
—®--F -—T-TF
2021 2020
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
8,691,498 9,586,464
1,988,157 1,236,667
198,562 228,054
17,614 16,290
10,895,831 11,067,475
536,960 833,249
1,388,115 989,395
865,920 1,261,920
123,244 180,533
930,853 1,070,462
3,845,092 4,335,559
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2R E R ()
AREENINKEFREMFRDEE
(2T AENMEERIEEERIN) AL
EwEEASWT

BB (EFEH) Hong Kong (domicile)
oy PRC

R Macau

S Malaysia

BRI AL B BN IR AR SR A
EVMLE - FFRBEE (SR TAM
BT IAE ERIN) 2R AZ B EFT

RABR/IREERAT  REB 2T B
EEMEAETL SREFBMBRE
HZRFERBEEDAER - BEBE D
TEJE Hh o

AEBFAWAESE —IINEREHR
SWATEETI0%IA L -

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group’s revenues from external customers and its
non-current assets (other than financial instruments
and deferred tax assets) are divided into the following

geographical areas:

HREF R

Revenue from external

FRBEE

customers Non-current assets
B C—IT-THF ZB--HF —T-FTF
2021 2020 2021 2020
THER FAET THER FAT

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

57,448 50,895 3,293,568 3,482,806
936,512 500,767 1,747,112 2,005,894
- - 1,306,312 1,302,983

629 1,218 355,294 336,507

994,589 552,880 6,702,286 7,128,190

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the services were provided or the
goods delivered. The geographical location of the non-
current assets (other than financial instruments and
deferred tax assets) is based on the physical location of

the assets.

The Company is an investment holding company
and the principal place of the Group’s operation is
Hong Kong. For the purpose of segment information
disclosures under HKFRS 8, the Group regards Hong

Kong as its place of domicile.

No revenue from transaction with single external
customer is amounted to 10% or more for the Group’s

revenue for the year.
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7. HbWg A - F5EE 7. OTHER INCOME, NET
—E-—F —E-FEF
2021 2020
FER TATT
HK$’000 HK$'000
ERAKERE Dividend income from listed equity
WA investments 2,123 632
HEZ AR BETTA Gain on disposal of financial assets at
B oRHEEE FVTPL
gl 463 607
HEREYEER Gain on disposal of investment
properties 16,429 15,611
F B U A Interest income 45,208 37,866
P& W s K JH %A Net exchange gain 12,021 -
IS 78 B Government grants 749 _
MW A Sundry income 3,131 1,279
80,124 55,995
BT —FARA=ZTRHIEFE K During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Group
EERBAEARNRLOMEREESD received funding support amounting to approximately
THRBLEFT S &5 49749,000/8 7T HK$749,000 from the Employment Support Scheme
MESIF -EE2EeWENERLE under the Anti-epidemic Fund, set up by the Hong
EHPBZF  UBERAIgWHEDN Kong Government. The purpose of the funding is to
BT o RIEmALER - ZNE B A4 B provide financial support to enterprises to retain their
NREEHE  WEMEEEARIMNE employees who would otherwise be made redundant.
BTH- Under the terms of the grant, the Group is required

not to make redundancies during the subsidy period
and to spend all the funding on paying wages to the

employees.
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8. BFE A

8. FINANCE COSTS

—E-—F —EETF
2021 2020
FTERT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
MEBER : Interest charges on:

RITERREL Bank loans and overdrafts 14,218 36,441
EEWE (HF31(a)) Advances from a director (Note 31(a)) 7,015 9,971
B2 (Hfet2e) Bond (Note 26) 787 768
H A fE B A Other incidental borrowing costs 7,834 8,820
HEABNEEER  Finance charges on lease liabilities 85 175
RIEERAR Total finance costs 29,939 56,175

B M BB Less: Interest capitalised into

—ERPEE — Properties under development

IEXCEED) for sale (Note) (8,554) (19,793)
21,385 36,382

Kiat - EEKAE D 5 FEF E1.009%
£1.526% (ZFE=-F4F : 1.800%%
3.404%) ER LRI EF B IEHE
CFI °

Note: The borrowing costs have been capitalised to properties
under development for sale at a rate from 1.009% to
1.526% (2020: from 1.800% to 3.404%).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

R B4 B 2= R 9. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

BRBLADR R &R, (GFA) THIEE

charging/(crediting) the following:

Profit before income tax is arrived at after

— —E-TF
2021 2020
TERT FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETIRA(BRESHE) Staff costs (include directors’
emoluments)
He ITEREMEF Salaries, wages and other
benefits 26,253 24,554
JERRR IR AT S K Contribution to defined
(B75E@) kb)) contribution plans
(Notes (a) & (b)) 603 584
26,856 25,138
ZEE N & Auditors’ remuneration
RE Current year 736 709
ME - BB NREBITE Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment 568 711
EREEERE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 3,227 3,352
KEWMEEEHESRAD Direct outgoings in respect of
BHEMAAR investment properties that
generate rental income 14,019 10,504
REMERGELES Direct outgoings in respect of
WA B B B AR investment properties that did
not generate rental income 2,786 1,368
P& 5 Es 18 Net exchange loss = 12,457
HEER : Lease charges:
RERERBAMBEIRELRE  Short term leases and leases
Bl 16 mESHHEER with remaining lease term
HMEBMLRI2EANEE shorter than 12 months as at
initial application of
HKFRS 16 491 328
BRZ AR EETA (Gain)/loss on redemption of
B mEW sz &6 financial assets at FVTOCI
BE (EF) B (26) 1,247
HEMZE - B REHEEE  Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment = 3
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BE-FT-—4,A=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

9. BRBAIER (&)
et -

(a)

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =

BHE-_Z-_—F~A=+tHR=Z=
TEARNA=ZTH  BRERESE - £
RUER P R R EE A HF21,00008 7T ©
BE-_Z-_—RKR_Z-_ZTFEXA=+
AIEFE AEBETESHLKER
R £ fA] & BE 2RORL A IR AE AR FOK S o

HRFEMANTZE  FBRBRAR =
EoEF_AFEZ_TFE+AH
FEMTERTERBBER2EANS
TR DADNRIRAE AR EES) - #E i
%T@Zi_%_*ﬁi/\ﬂ =+tHILF
EHEBIHRO L RIKSHIEK -

9. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

As at 30 June 2021 and 2020, there was a sum of
approximately HK$21,000 in the forfeited account of the
Group under the MPF Scheme. During the year ended
30 June 2021 and 2020, the Group did not utilise any
amount in the forfeited account of reduce the existing

level of contribution.

Due to the impact of COVID-19, a number of policies
including the relief of social insurance have been
promulgated by the PRC government from February
2020 to December 2020 to expedite resumption of
economic activities, which resulted in the relief of certain
contributions to retirement benefit scheme contributions
during the year ended 30 June 2021.

g (M) HR23 | Annual Report 2021 4£#



w5 B B R R B A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

10. FRIEH X H

AR AREEREBEE T -_—FA=1
B I E8 A FE R T m Al 3 FE SR T s
MELBEFERBEBEREE Bt
BREEGEUBRERPAEBBENNEH
VERE 1 -

REBFERAMERGEDN  FRFRARHN
R E2% (ZEZFF 1 25%) °

T IR E R A BB AR BB Y BB

WORBIEMOWMEGE - THIRERE

ATHER R ERGERMHN - WHEHRT
LLERFFREH

5 515 ) 2 B IE T5 AR 1 4F 70 2 Ak e
BREFEAEE QL EBARAT
GESTCE

BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

10.INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided in the
consolidated financial statements as the respective
Group companies did not have assessable profit in
Hong Kong for the year ended 30 June 2021 or the
assessable profit was set-off tax against loss brought

forward from previous years.

Under The New Law and Implementation Regulations,
the tax rate of PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2020: 25%).

The provision for LAT is estimated according to the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws
and regulations. LAT has been provided at ranges of
progressive rates of the appreciation value, with certain

allowable deductions.

Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on
the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates
of taxation prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the

Group operates.

—E-—F —ETF
2021 2020
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
7K B B 18 Current tax

— 85N — Overseas
B ERTE PRC EIT 142,178 127,714
AR E A M A R LAT 232,091 178,535
374,269 306,249

iE 3E B 18 Deferred tax
NE (Kfit27) Current year (Note 27) 29,252 (61,822)
FriSBix 48 8 Total income tax expense 403,521 244,427
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-FT-—4,A=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

10. iEH X i (&)
M0 T8 37 B 3% i AR A 3R
AR -

B B A i 7

BRBEANEHRBE16.5%
AE(ZFZFF 1 16.5%)
2 BiIE

AR H 2 e &

DARBMWE 2 RS E
EINRERZR 2 RE &

R BT 82

By e

SR T8 3 10 5 32 PR B 7 A5 98
CRBYE

o ]+ 34045 (A

FR&H T

VEEHE A 2

10.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

profit at applicable tax rates:

Profit before income tax

Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate
of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%)

Tax effect of non-deductible
expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable revenue

Tax effect of differences in
overseas tax rates

Tax effect of unused tax losses
not recognised

Tax effect of utilisation of
unrecognised tax losses

LAT

Income tax expense

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED £t (%8) AR25 | Annual Report 2021 4£##

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting

—E-—F —E-TF
2021 2020
TET TA57T
HK$’000 HK$’000
553,037 277,434
91,251 45,777
27,681 19,110
(19,051) (26,847)
75,218 34,139
1,938 2,163
(5,607) (8,450)
232,091 178,535
403,521 244,427
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

11. B 11.DIVIDENDS
(@ mXERE (a) Dividends attributable to the year
—E-—F —EETF
2021 2020
TET FETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FREARR B RR E EmA%2.078 10 Interim dividend of HK2.0
—E-FTHF 7 581) cents (2020: HK7.5 cents)
per ordinary share 13,054 46,565
BRI RHIKRE SR LB Proposed final dividend of
3.0 (ZE=F - HK3.0 cents (2020:
5.0/8100) (#f7E) HK5.0 cents) per
ordinary share (Note) 19,580 31,981
32,634 78,546
TE - FREEF HREHE Scrip dividend alternative was offered to
EIRMHDRNR SRR EE - iR shareholders in respect of the 2021 and 2020
EBEOEREESOT interim dividend. This alternative was accepted by

the shareholders as follows:

—E-—fF —EEF
2021 2020
FE T FA&T
HK$’000 HK$’000
fz B Dividends:
e Cash 13,054 7,197
LARZ KB Share alternative — 39,368
13,054 46,565
BaE - Note:
R¥RE B %R R 2 RERRE I AR The final dividend proposed after the reporting date has
HERERBAEE - not been recognised as a liability at the reporting date.
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BE-FT-—4,A=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

11. K2 11.DIVIDENDS (Continued)
(@ ETFERE (#&) (a) Dividends attributable to the year (Continued)

(i) ERFARERINHOEFY (i) Dividends attributable to the previous financial

BEERE year, approved and paid during the year
—B=-—fF ZEZTF
2021 2020
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000

T F I BFE R Final dividend in respect of

B& 8 5 IR Ei@AR5.0/81lL  the previous financial year,
ZFE—NF :15.0%81lU) of HK5.0 cents
(2019: HK15.0 cents) per

ordinary share 31,981 89,345
REARE BAR L AR R B AR R Scrip dividend alternative was offered to
EE S HREBEEERRES N shareholders in respect of the final dividend.
T This alternative was accepted by the
shareholders as follows:

—E-—F —E-FTF
2021 2020
FET +ET
HK$’000 HK$’000

PN Dividends:
[ Cash 4,547 13,648
LARE AR B Share alternative 27,434 75,697
31,981 89,345
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per

REAE share is based on the following data:
27 Earnings
—T——fF —E-EF
2021 2020
FER TATT
HK$’000 HK$'000
KEEBZHBAEGERET Profit attributable to the owners
ETE FRER K of the Company for the purpose
B #E 2 A of calculating basic and diluted
earnings per share 148,700 47,696
g 4= Number of shares
—EB-—F —E_TF
2021 2020
B 31T E M 2 NG Weighted average number of
AT E SR EAREF ordinary shares for the purposes
of basic earnings per share 646,234,648 611,721,455
—ECFN_ZT_TFRAERER Dilutive earnings per share for 2021 and 2020 are

L@l T —FNA=+THAMZE
:gﬁ/\ﬂ +EE?§E%EWJ&%$

FRAFIAER -

and 2020.

the same as basic earnings per share as there was no

potential ordinary share outstanding as at 30 June 2021

Annual Report 2021 4£# | CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =t ((E) HRAH

221



222

w5 B R R A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-FT-—4,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

BEERSREEAEMNE

131EEMS

EAY/NCTh-o SR X v ek

m

SE L
HTEE
Bt
%%
B

EHRTES:
bW
MRS B
HERiE*
THE
z8%

2021

Executive directors:
Chao Sze Tsung Cecil
Ho Sau Fun Connie
Yung Philip
Chao Gigi

Non-executive directors:
Chao Howard
Lam Ka Wai Graham*

Sun Ping Hsu Samson*
Ting Woo Shou Kenneth*

Lee Ding Yue Joseph

OB IFRITES

13.DIRECTORS” REMUNERATION AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

13.1 Directors’ emoluments

The aggregate amounts of emoluments received or

receivable by the directors of the Company are as

follows:
Hi R

— R Rk
ExMe & HeBE  FHEMR B

Employer’s

contribution

Other  to defined

benefits - contribution
Fees Salaries  allowance plans Total
TER TER TER TER TER
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- 9,010 - - 9,010
67 1,090 - 18 1,175
67 836 - 18 921
67 1,528 239 18 1,852
67 416 20 18 521
162 - - - 162
67 - - - 67
67 - - - 67
67 - - - 67
631 12,880 259 72 13,842

*  Independent non-executive directors
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BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

13.BEERENREEAEIMNS (&) 13.DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)
13 1ESE8ME (&) 13.1 Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
H A F 2=

i AN
G e ReEE  HEMER R

Employer’s

contribution

Other  to defined

benefits — contribution
Fees Salaries  allowance plans Total

THET THET TRT THET TR
HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

—E-TF 2020

HWOIES: Executive directors:
iy Chao Sze Tsung Cecil - 8,834 - - 8,834
(EESPAS Ho Sau Fun Connie 66 1,055 3 18 1,142
St Yung Philip 66 802 3 18 889
HAZ Chao Gigi 66 1,640 216 18 1,940

EHTES:  Non-executive directors:

i BaW Chao Howard 66 416 2 18 502
e Lam Ka Wai Graham* 158 _ N _ 158
HFRIE Sun Ping Hsu Samson* 66 - - - 66
THsE: Ting Woo Shou Kenneth* 66 - - - 66
8= Lee Ding Yue Joseph 66 - - - 66
620 12,747 224 72 13,663

o B IERITESR *  Independent non-executive directors
Wit BEETRARRNRITHRAEE - Mr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil is also the Chief
HEAEENMES2EEEARTTR Executive of the Company and his emoluments
BB IRIEH NS - disclosed above include those for services rendered

by him as Chief Executive.

BHE-ZT-—FR-ZT-_FTFXA No director has waived or agreed to waive any
=tRIEFEIVESESENEXRE emolument in respect of the years ended 30 June
T A 2021 and 2020.
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BE-FT-—4,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

B2 EREEFHz2EMNAL

BHE—_ZT-_—FXA=1+tRHILF
B AfusmHMALZE  HE
AL (ZF—FF U7 RAKE
ZEZ -BRTI&ESFMALH
BHE_T - —FRA=THILFE
EXBMEFBERT

e Salaries
RKEFRETE

13.EEREHEEBAEMS (&) 13.DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)
13.2 Five highest paid individuals

For the year ended 30 June 2021, four (2020: four)

directors of the Group is among the five highest

paid individuals whose emoluments are included

above. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect

of the remaining one (2020: one) highest paid

individual is as follows:

Contribution to defined

contribution plans

& 2 48R T

1,000,000/8 T &
1,500,000/ 7T
1,500,001 T2
2,000,0007% 7T

RREFEER  BEAEENRS
FIALZAME - ERIAZI
ARE B F E kBB E -

—EB-—F —EFTF
2021 2020
FHET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
1,503 1,462

18 18

1,521 1,480

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

HK$1,000,000 to
HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to
HK$2,000,000

B <48 B A 2
Number of individuals
—B--F  CT_TF
2021 2020
- 1
1 _
1 1

No emolument was paid to the directors and the

highest paid individual as inducement to join or

upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss

of office during both years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

14. 1R &Y= 14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
FREBE #HE 2RELRE HBARR Changes to the carrying amounts presented in the
FRIBEEM T - consolidated statement of financial position can be

summarised as follows:

—E-—F —E-FEF
2021 2020
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000

RAREE At fair value
RtA—BZERAEE Carrying amount at 1 July 7,084,875 7,659,411
b i, =58 Exchange differences 141,767 (93,527)
= Disposals (474,978) (499,070)

¥ N Additions:

—BE1R X — subsequent expenditure 3,496 12,221
N BEERE Change in fair value (99,460) 5,840
RAA=+BHREAE Carrying amount at 30 June 6,655,700 7,084,875
REBE THREYWFEHMAKREEE Certain investment properties of the Group with an
3,179,059,0008 7t (Z & T 4F aggregate carrying value at the reporting date of
2,972,900,000/& 70) B T B 17 A HK$3,179,059,000 (2020: HK$2,972,900,000) were
BRI TAEE 2 IRITEE (FIFE37) - pledged to secure bank borrowings (Note 37).

Annual Report 2021 4£%# | CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =t ((%/8) HRAH 225



226

GEMBREMEE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-FT-—4,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

14. R &Y= (&)

REMEZIREBEEE
(i) RZAEBEBERFZ

TRINRIAEBEREM RN RS H
FAERFIREEEERFAEZ AR
BE AREFEVHHEEDE
IBRARBEFEMAETZ=ER
REBEEED - AABEZEM
RRBERD ZBABBEES AR
EREBEEMELRATHE

— ERMEE: UE-RBAE
HEZ AR EE  BAERE
ERBENTEAEERTS
o i) o B 4 A

- BAME:AE-_RBAE
SREZAREE MHEHAE
ZAIBREHARNTEE R
WAE BEEHEEHAEILIF
ERATAEBRZEE - TR 8
R 2 NME R E T I5 R ]
E2ZE 2@ A\ E

— FZAME:ERTAUERH
BIFE2WABAFAEZAR
BE

14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement of investment properties

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”.
The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in

the valuation technique as follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities at the measurement date.

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are

inputs for which market data are not available.

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using

significant unobservable inputs.
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RENEZ A ABEBE (H)

(i) DZABEERFIFKE)

REERR

REWE
BE-F8
FE-&FE
EEE A
E= - ®=PFI
F= - HRAE
FE -+

tBEEE

EHE_T - —FR-_T-FTFRX

FE—RME—
R EEEES
“AIRE=AEL - AEREHK
REREEHEHHTER A EBER
HIR AR RIRE R B AR E A

A=+tHLFEAR "
RELEER

RlE&RPE
ﬁ@ Efm °©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement of investment properties

(Continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Recurring fair value measurement
Investment properties:
Commercial — Hong Kong
Residential — Hong Kong
Commercial — Macau
Residential — Macau
Residential — Malaysia

Residential — PRC

—®=-% —T-TfH
2021 2020
E=H E=R
Level 3 Level 3
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
25,130 25,200
3,205,300 3,397,800
298,967 315,023
1,007,228 987,959
372,046 353,112
1,747,029 2,005,781
6,655,700 7,084,875

period in which they occur.

During the year ended 30 June 2021 and 2020,
there was no transfer between Level 1 and Level
2, nor transfer into or out of Level 3. The Group’s
policy is to recognise transfers between levels of

fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting
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14. REY * (#)
RENEZAABEBE (H)

(1)

AR EBEERFIZF ()
=

E_T-_—FR-_F-_FFXA
StRLEREMEEHBELIREE
BEBRGEMETERS - LREE

MWIREMED B BB ERTT
BRAREITEM - MAREREA
RPN B Y B E SRR
FHEBERARETEM - ERTIR
BEMISEEAERA SRR LE
RRER - W2EER — I MR
MBLUENORTISERS - B
BB AEAFEZ2IBRPHER - &
HEAKEBENRENELAAERE
- BHRCR&ES MRENER -

AEBEEEETHRFERSEH
HYETT (B BRI E R E T (A ER

B

14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
Fair value measurement of investment properties
(Continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Investment properties were revalued on 30 June
2021 and 2020 by independent and professional
qualified valuers. The valuation of properties in
Hong Kong was revalued by K.T. Liu Surveyors
Limited. The valuation of properties in Malaysia,
Macau and PRC were revalued by Roma Appraisals
Limited. The properties were revalued on market
value basis on their existing development stage
and usage, and by reference to recent market
transactions for similar properties in the similar
location and condition or by capitalisation of
future rental which is estimated by reference to
comparable rental as available. The fair value gains
or losses were recognised in profit or loss for the
year. In estimating the fair values of the Group’s
investment properties, the highest and best use of

the properties is their current use.

The Group’s management has discussions with
the valuer on the valuation assumptions when the
valuation is performed at each interim and annual

reporting date.
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14. R EW=E ()
REWEZ R

Ran%:

Investment properties:

CE S

Commercial - Hong Kong

FE-ZER
Residential - Hong Kong

FE-EA
Residential - Hong Kong

EES IS

Commercial - Macau

[FE -4

Residential - Macau

REEEE (&)

(i) BE=ZRAAIEEENEF

BRI (Hitasn)
Valuation techniques
(Note (a)&(b))

BABARLE
Income capitalisation

approach

WAER{LE
Income capitalisation

approach

TEHEA
Market comparison

approach

[V
Market comparison

approach

s EA
Market comparison

approach

GEMBREFMEE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement of investment properties

(Continued)

(iif) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

Note:

TTRENBARE

Unobservable inputs

CUN[di

Capitalisation rates

EAfi X

Capitalisation rates

mEE (Br/TAR)
Market price (HKD/square feet)

MERNRE - UE 28 BEN
() /EE
(Discount)/Premium on quality, location,

view and floor level of the properties

mEE (RFxT/FAR)
Market price (MOP/square feet)

WENRE  E - RE-
BEm () /&R
(Discount)/Premium on quality, location,

view and floor level of the properties

mEE (BMT/ FHR)
Market price (MOP/square feet)

nENmE NE - RE-
BEm () /&E
(Discount)/Premium on quality, location,

view and floor level of the properties

FURRNBAKE

Range of unobservable inputs

—g--F
2021

FE3.0%

3% per annum

F£2.0%

2% per annum

17,805 - 33,714

(27.6%) - 35.4%

12,346 - 18,338

(15%) - 15%

6,179 - 7,252

(5%) - 5%

—E-TE

—R =%

2020
BF3.0%

3% per annum

5F2.0%

2% per annum

19,298 - 22,393

(7.5%) - 51.86%

14,571 - 16,000

(15%) - 15%

5,997 - 6,904

(10%) - 10%
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BE-FT-—4,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement of investment properties

(Continued)

14.8REY = (&
RENEZAABEBE (H)

(ii) Information about Level 3 fair value

(i) BE=ZRAABEGEHEX (&)

measurements(Continued)

Hret - (&)

REMX

Investment properties:

FE-BRAD

Residential - Malaysia

FE-HE
Residential - PRC

RERM (Hia)s&b)
Valuation techniques
(Note (a)&(b))

TEHEA
Market comparison

approach

5 L B0A
Market comparison

approach

Note:(Continued)

FTABRNRARE

Unobservable inputs

maE (&% FIR)
Market price (RM/square feet)

MENRE  NE - 28-
BEM (1) /BB
(Discount)/Premium on quality, location,

view and floor level of the properties

mEE AR/ F5X)
Market price (RMB/square meter)

MENGRE - UE 58
BEM (1) /BB
(Discount)/Premium on quality, location,

view and floor level of the properties
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FBENBAEE

Range of unobservable inputs

—E--F
2021

1,057 - 1,455

(20%) - 20%

53,000 - 57,000

(15%) = 15%

“T-ZF
2020

1157 -1,237

(20%) - 10%

52,200 - 55,000

(15%) - 15%



w5 B B R R B A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

14. REY % ()
RENEZ A ABEBE (H)

(ii)

1 EBEFER K (B)

BT —FR-_FZFEFER
A=+H R EENEER
EEREWEARKRESHU
ANEROEER] » EfhER -
FRBERILMEEN 2 TEEST)
SENEE A BE BT
SHESET  AERANER
e T2 R EMAE S AU
METBEENOREE - BAMR
TEEWW;\TE%%%%%DWI%BD
NFHE - RABENTE
BARERZEBEBA -

/\/\

E-ZE-_—FR-ZF-FFX

A=+8 " urh®ES B -
BRARLRFPEOHERTE

BREMENRABELLEA
tt@%%ﬂ’ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ%fﬁ%%ﬁ‘%

EMERRAMSLBOAE
E o BRI A E AL
MENEE LB SBEMNEZ
BRABRERNN - -LEE
VE - SBEREBEMS 2R
EBEEMRGE mMaREE
BRI

BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement of investment properties
(Continued)

(ii) Information about Level 3 fair value

measurements(Continued)

Note:(Continued)

(a)

As at 30 June 2021 and 2020, the fair values of
certain commercial and residential investment
properties in Hong Kong are determined
using income capitalisation approach by
capitalisation of future rental. In the valuation,
the market rentals of all lettable units are made
by reference to the rentals achieved by the
Group in the lettable units. The capitalisation
rate adopted is by reference to the yield rates
observed by the valuers for similar properties
in the locality and adjusted for the valuers’
knowledge of factors specific to the respective
properties. The fair value measurement is

negatively correlated to the capitalisation rate.

As at 30 June 2021 and 2020, the fair value
of commercial and residential investment
properties located in Hong Kong, Macau,
Malaysia and the PRC are determined using
market comparison approach by reference to
recent sales price of comparable properties on
a price per square feet or square meter basis,
adjusted for a premium or a discount mainly
specific to the quality, location, view and floor
level of the properties compared to the recent
sales. The fair value increase as to premium
and fair value decrease as to discount on

quality, location, view and floor level.
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15. 9% - BERRE 15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

232

FRREE
Right-of-use assets
BELHE
B¥faR B
R EBR
Land and 44 4 Ea
building held BAE Furniture, EER
for own use B fittings R#
carried at fair ~ Other right-of- and office  Motor vehicles W
value use assets equipment  and accessories Total
TEn TAn Tan A TAn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE-E-NELA-HLEE  At1)uly2019
BR Cost - 6,160 13,548 7,765 27 473
ftE Valuation 36,400 - - - 36,400
2itHE Accumulated depreciation - - (10,981) (7,608) (18,589)
RHESS Net book amount 36,400 6,160 2,567 157 45,284
BEZBR-NELA-BLEE  Asat1)uly2019
POERETE Opening net book amount 36,400 6,160 2,567 157 45,284
EHESR Exchange differences - - (9) - (9)
Em Additions - - 367 48 435
HE Disposal - - - (10) (10)
ik Depreciation (728) (2,624) (658) (53) (4,063)
B R Surplus on revaluation 728 - - - 728
BREEEFE Closing net hook amount 36,400 3,536 2,287 142 42,365
RZZ-2EXA=1A At 30 June 2020
AR Cost - 6,160 13,882 7,755 27,797
i@ Valuation 36,400 - - - 36,400
2ithE Accumulated depreciation - (2,624) (11,595) (7,613) (21,832)
REERE Net book amount 36,400 3,536 2,287 142 42,365
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BECR-RFLA-ALEE
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E%

EfRER

ARREEFR

R-B--FXAZtH
RA

A

ZitHE

REEFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Asat 1 July 2020
Opening net book amount
Exchange differences
Additions

Depreciation

Modification

Surplus on revaluation

Closing net book amount

At 30 June 2021
Cost
Valuation

Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

HEMNFAER SN E28

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)
ERIEEE
Right-of-use assets
KELHER
BTHER Bl
Pl EBR
Land and =gy
huilding held A Eﬁrﬁf f
e 1t S RER
for own use 5B fittings B
carried at fair ~ Other right-of- and office ~ Motor vehicles Wy
value use assets equipment  and accessories Total
TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
36,400 3,536 2,287 142 42,365
- - 1 - 1
- - 317 - 317
(728) 2,499) (515) (53) (3,795)
- 6,220 - - 6,220
528 - - - 528
36,200 7257 2,090 89 45,636
- 12,380 14,200 7,755 34,335
36,200 - - - 36,200
- (5123) (12,110) (7,666) (24,899)
36,200 7,257 2,090 89 45,636

Details of the leases are set out in Note 28.
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15. 9% ~ R (E) 15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
BT MIEF AR BEEESER - HE If the land and building were stated on the historical
BEAOR : cost basis, the amounts would be as follows:
— —EZTF
2021 2020
FER TATT
HK$’000 HK$'000
X, 7R Cost 20,200 20,200
Ritire Accumulated depreciation (4,040) (3,636)
SR FE Net book amount 16,160 16,564
REBEFRBZ LHERBFREERZ All the Group’s land and building with an aggregate
42 BRTE{E A£36,200,0008 L (Z T =F carrying value at the reporting date of approximately
£ 1 36,400,000/87T) O AR EE 2 4R HK$36,200,000 (2020: HK$36,400,000) were pledged
TTEREEM (HEE37) - to secure banking facilities granted to the Group (Note
37).
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15. 9% ~ e R =RE (&)

THREFZAANEBEEE
(i) RAEEBRIE

TRIRAEE L MBFRHmE
HEERFIEEEUEERTEZR
REE WREFEMBERSER
FBRAABEAEMREZ=E
NEFEESHE D - AREBEZE
A ERTS 2B ABEELA
BRMES2UMmMELATOHR

- BAMEE:AE-—RBAE
SREZAREE - BABRRE
EXRENFTERAAETS
PHRFARBEE

— B oMMEE: AE R AE
TR AREBE BNHGAEB
ZABEMEARTEE R
BAEBE BEEZEHAEBEILIE
KRATAEBR ST - TAE
vl NIV R AR e
E2E 2@ A\ A

— F=RHE:ERTABER
BIFEZBABNUFEZAF
BE

BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Fair value measurement of land and building
(i) Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s land and building measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 “Fair Value
Measurement”. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as

follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which

market data are not available.

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured

using significant unobservable inputs.
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15. 9% ~ e R =RE (&)

THREFZAARBEEEE (H)

(i) AAEEBRLZE (&)

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
Fair value measurement of land and building

(Continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

—EB-—F —EEF
2021 2020
B=% iy
Level 3 Level 3
TET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
KEEAREBERE Recurring fair value
measurement
BAEEER I RET Land and building held for
own use:
FEx—FE Residential — Hong Kong 36,200 36,400

EBREZT-_—FRZZTZZFN
A=THIFERN  E—HKME=
BoEWEmERE (W EERESE
AN E=REL - AEEMHK
RemRTERESHRTERARE
BERRNERFE LIRARENEAE

B iR o

E-_ZT-_—FR_ZF_FFAH
TR EREFEHRBIRESE
BEBEEMEITER - B
EMTERARREMISEBERE
- AW 2RE R — 2 K AR AR
MERIHATISR SR EREM
AEREEMEELHRKRESE
AL ©

AREBEEEETHRFERSEH
HYE T (R BRI E R E T (A ER

BT o

During the years ended 30 June 2021 and 2020,
there was no transfer between Level 1 and Level
2, nor transfer into or out of Level 3. The Group’s
policy is to recognise transfers between levels of
fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting

period in which they occur.

The land and building were revalued on 30 June
2021 and 2020 by independent and professional
qualified valuer, K.T. Liu Surveyors Limited on
market value basis and by reference to recent
market transactions for similar properties in the

similar location and condition.

The Group’s management has discussions with
the valuer on the valuation assumptions when the
valuation is performed at each interim and annual

reporting date.
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15. 9% ~ e R =RE (&)

THREFZAARBEEE (H)

(i) E=ZRAABEGTENEF

BEEERLHLRET
Land and building held for
own use:
5 L BUE FARRHNBA
Market Comparison Unobservable input
approach
fe-&% mHLRA
Residential - Hong Kong  Market comparison

approach

UREBBNBEREET LM RE
FHRAABEREMATSLEOR
B 2RAILBEMEMTHEE
RESERER  BREVENE
E B SENEERAEEESNK
i -pEE  UE - SENEE
MEARBEMNEMNEE M
AEERD BT -

FHAEFERN L LRBFTELER
S EBEHBEREEREMEEREF N Y
FEMHE]THER -

BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Fair value measurement of land and building
(Continued)

(ii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

gE
Range
—B--% e S 3
2021 2020
mEE BT/ FAR) 17,805 - 33,714 19,298 - 22,393

Market price (HKD/square feet)

NENRE B B

BEMFN (14.4%) 1.15%
(Discount)/premium on quality,

location, view and floor level

of the properties

The fair value of residential land and building
located in Hong Kong are determined using market
comparison approach by reference to recent sales
price of comparable properties on a price per
square feet basis, adjusted for a premium or a
discount mainly specific to the quality, location,
view and floor level of the properties compared
to the recent sales. The fair value increase as to
premium and fair value decrease as to discount on

quality, location, view and floor level.

Deficit/Surplus on revaluation of land and
building held for own use is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in

“property revaluation reserve”.
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BE-FT-—4,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

16. Mt ERBEE

@ AT{E S Club debenture
@ ATE S AR AR EE 185 B -

impairment losses.

17.HbERMEE
Hit @ MEEREATRE :

investments:

kRBEE Non-current assets
BARBEFAEMER Financial assets at FVTOCI:
Wz emEE
KARE BB L™ Perpetual notes, listed in Hong
(H15t(a)) Kong (Note (a))

KA - TEEBRINET  Perpetual notes, listed outside

(K1aEmb)) Hong Kong (Note (b))

BEx ®&FAEL™ Debentures, listed in Hong Kong
(Ktit(c) (Note (c))

B EFABEINLET Debentures, listed outside Hong
(K1) Kong (Note (d))

R ORE R R

Less: Impairment loss

REEE Current assets
BAREBETA Financial assets at FVTOCI:
Hi2mlas :
EF EHEBEI L™ Debentures, listed outside Hong
(Kt &z (d)) Kong ((Note (d))

o ORE R R

Less: Impairment loss
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16.OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSET

—m—

. —

2021
FTERT
HK$’000

950

ZTETF
2020
TAT
HK$'000

950

17.OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Other financial assets included the following

Club debenture is stated at cost less accumulated

—E-—F —E-FTF
2021 2020
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$000
115,252 123,174
4,822 4,418
3,303 4,495
42,351 52,145
(8,000) -
157,728 184,232
9,483 6,472
(6,000) -
3,483 6,472
161,211 190,704




Hthem&EE (&)
%ﬁ&fc{ﬁ@%)\ﬁﬁﬂiﬁuﬁz 57 & Rl
BEEAKRBEYHBELOAT :
RZZE—-—ILF+LH—H
&
fE o
NABENEE
RZEZZFEFXA=1TBAHK
—E-THFLA—H
¥ 0
fE o]

NAEBENEE
HE-BREAE _BR

F

AA —
N
J\_

FE-BEREAF=ZHER

——%A=+H
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BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

17.OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

At 1 July 2019
Additions
Redemption

Change in fair value

At 30 June 2020 and
1 July 2020

Additions

Redemption

Change in fair value

Transfer from Stage 1
to Stage 2

Transfer from Stage 1

to Stage 3

At 30 June 2021

The movement of gross balance of financial assets at
FVTOCI is as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F-EER SF-ER E=KR B
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT TERT TERT FTERT
173,548 - - 173,548
31,593 - - 31,593
(4,376) - - (4,376)
(10,061) - - (10,061)
190,704 - - 190,704
3,882 - - 3,882
(17,815) - - (17,815)
(1,560) - - (1,560)

(18,185) 18,185 - -

(3,303) - 3,303 -
153,723 18,185 3,303 175,211
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BE-FT-—4,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

175t E®mE E (F)

BARBEFAHEMLEZEKEI Z &8
EEREBEEIHBROT ¢
FERER

»+A—H

B W R R 18 5 1R 15 AN

WSNA=+H
F=ZER
®+A—H

B W R R 18 5 1R 15 AN

/%‘
o
[
-+
i

17.OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Stage 2
At 1 July
Increase in impairment

loss recognised

At 30 June

Stage 3
At 1 July
Increase in impairment

loss recognised

At 30 June

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED £t (%8) AR25 | Annual Report 2021 4£##

The movements of impairment loss for financial assets
at FVTOCI are as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT FAT
11,000 -
11,000 -
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
3,000 -
3,000 -
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17.He®EE (&)

AREBN-—EEBEAFERE %X
BEANBENZRERENRESRE
MHE  ERMEENE RIEKELRR
ERETEREATMREEREFE

BT AT e

Bret -

(@ AEEFLBEEEB LT AKARE XK
& v F500,0003 7T £10,000,000
o EEEINEHB FEEBAEAS
7.75% EEHEE XN F5.72%M
R [ T 35 b B R R R B 5E B R B =)
R4.45%%E6.50%2 H - B¥FIRE—

R e

by REBEFBEMEXKAZE  ALEN
TF240,000% 7T 500,000 7T ' £ &
BIESNET  EETE A BEER
MED B BEF5.25%/%6.25% @ &
FIRE—K -

() REEFE—ELMESF 28R
1,000,000% 7T » £F# = - ZIHA A
B2028F1A310 - BICEEXAETF
6.50%  F¥FIRE — X B E2021
FoHIOBIEFE BEBHFEHITAKRE
TRME -BEERER ZEBEEENE
AEERERL  BHERREEE
3,000,000/ 7T °

BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

17.OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

The Group holds investments under a business model

whose objective is to hold to collect the associated

contractual cash flows and sale; and the contractual

terms of the financial assets give rise to cash flows that

are solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.

Note:

(a)

The Group has investment in perpetual notes with
principal amounts ranging from US$500,000 to
US$10,000,000 listed in Hong Kong without fixed
maturity date at floating rate of 7.75% with reset rate on
reset date ranging from 5.72% plus mid-market swap rate
and fixed rates ranging from 4.45% to 6.50% per annum,

payable semi-annually.

The Group has investments in two perpetual notes with
principal amount of US$240,000 and US$500,000 listed
outside Hong Kong without fixed maturity date at a
coupon rate ranging from 5.25% to 6.25% per annum,

payable semi-annually.

The Group has investment in one listed debenture with
principal amounts of US$1,000,000 listed in Hong Kong
with maturity dates of 31 January 2028 at a fixed coupon
rates of 6.50% per annum, payable semi-annually. During
the year ended 30 June 2021, there was a default of
interest payment by the debenture issuer. In the opinion
of the directors, the credit quality of this debenture
deteriorated significantly and an impairment loss of
HK$3,000,000 is recognised accordingly.
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17. 5

- ==

fttE@mEE (&)

Het - (%)

(d)

R B ISR

AFRRERTEERNA - Bt Ema

TEBBETZEES X8 T
250,0003 JT £3,100,000% 7t © £ &
HB202149AH13H £2026F4H8
B EBEZEMNENFEF6.75%F
11.875% * ¥ F K E — X B2020
F6A308 - EARHAMA - BAFIE—
% FmiE%H - XeFAR500,000%E 7T
RHH A2026F5 8178 » BT E=@EF
ERFF5.50% ° BLE2021F6H30H
W& E B TBSEHN8,185,000%8
TTHEEENERTRETHE EFR
R ZEERINEERBEZS LA -
& It 7 52 B (B E5 18 11,000,000 7T ©

BAREBEFABESZZEMEED K
HURERE T ASEBEMIRITRE (B
37) °

b HREIT AREIERE

H ok 4B R IEAE 75 80 = A R R R R
R BB -

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =#t (%) HRAR

17.OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(d) The Group has investments in ten listed debentures
with principal amounts ranging from US$250,000 to
US$3,100,000 with fixed maturity date ranging from
13 September 2021 to 8 April 2026 at a coupon rates
ranging from 6.75% to 11.875% per annum, payable
semi-annually which carry forward from 30 June 2020.
Additional one listed debenture with principal amount
of US$500,000 with fixed maturity date on 17 May 2026
at a coupon rate of 5. 5% per annum was purchased
during the year. During the year ended 30 June 2021,
the credit rating of certain debentures with gross
amount of approximately HK$18,185,000 were being
downgraded. In the opinion of the directors, the credit
risk of these debentures has been increased significantly
and an impairment loss of HK$11,000,000 is recognised

accordingly.

(e) Financial assets at FVTOCI have been pledged to secure

banking facilities granted to the Group (Note 37).

Except as mentioned above, the credit risk on other
listed perpetual notes and debentures is considered
to be insignificant because the issuers are assigned
with high credit ratings by international credit rating

agencies.

| Annual Report 2021 4%



18.[ B 2 7]

R-TF-_—FR=-F_F

18.SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 30 June 2021

FARA=1

H TEWBRARIZERNT :

WEAR

Name

Ace Cosmos Finance Limited

AEEEARAA

Bongi Development Limited

SENEEEBRAA
Cheuk Nang Property Management
Company Limited

AXMERERRBEERRA

Dun Man Secretarial and Management
Services Limited

BEREARAE

Golden Scheme Investment Limited

BREEBRAA
Green View Investment Limited
BEEEERAR

Lo & Son Land Investment Company
Limited®

EEEXBRAR)S

Lucky Faith Properties Limited*

Martego Sdn Bhd **

BERRARAT

New Grow Development Limited

AmALLE
GenE

Place of incorporation

or registration/
operation

RERIES

British Virgin
Islands (“BVI")

B
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

R

Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

HRAED

Malaysia

BB
Hong Kong

w5 B B R R B A
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BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

and 2020 are as follows:

BRTREAER/
ELEEN

Particulars of issued

ordinary share
capital/registered
capital

10,0008
BR1ET
10,000
USS$T shares

URHE2ETT
2 shares, HK$2

AURHE2E T
2 shares, HK$2

2RH#20%E T
2 shares, HK$20

AR BT
2 shares, HK$2

AR 2B T
2 shares, HK$2

3,000%
#£300,000% 7T
3,000 shares,
HK$300,000

k2B T
2 shares, HK$2

5,000,000
ERINER

5,000,000 shares of

RM1 each

W
2 shares, HK$2

BRZRELA
Proportion of ownership
interest
EE &
Directly  Indirectly
72.42% -
(2020:  (2020: )
72.42%)
100% -
(2020:  (2020: )
100%)
100% -
(2020:  (2020: -)
100%)
100% -
(2020:  (2020: -)
100%)
- 100%
(2020: -) (2020:
100%)
100% -
(2020:  (2020: -)
100%)
- 100%
(2020: -) (2020:
100%)
100% -
(2020:  (2020: -)
100%)
- 100%
(2020: -) (2020:
100%)
100% -
(2020:  (2020: -)
100%)

TEEH

Principal activities

RERK

Investment holding

WEEE
Property trading

nEER

Property management services

WEREERE
Provision of secretarial and
management services

HWERE

Property investment

REETHERERER
Mortgage lending, property
investment and development

WERERER

Property investment and
development

WERE

Property investment

WERERER

Property investment and
development

WERE

Property investment
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18.MY B~ &) (#&)
RZBE-_—FR_F_FF A=+
B> TEWREAR Z2ERNOT : ()

BRIREER/
ERRIEE EmEA
BEHRE  Particulars of issued
Place of incorporation ordinary share BREZRELA
WEAR or registration/  capital/registered  Proportion of ownership
Name operation capital interest
B G
Directly Indirectly
mEBRAF BB BRI 100% -
Pacific Charm Investment Limited” Hong Kong 1 share, HK$1 (2020:  (2020: )
100%)
Power Tripod Limited BA 10,000% - 100%
10,0008 T
Hong Kong 10,000 shares ~ (2020: -) (2020:
HK$10,000 100%)
ERERBRAA BR ARHE2E T 100% -
Power Wide Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares, HK$2 (2020:  (2020: -)
100%)
A7 (EM) BRAF & 100RH100ET - 71.70%
Top Regent (Asia) Limited (“Top Regent”) Hong Kong 100 shares, HK$100 (2020: -) (2020:
71.70%)
BARRBRARS B MR - 100%
Yorkshon Development Limited® Hong Kong 2 shares, HK$2 ~ (2020: -) (2020:
100%)
KERERAA Bt 1REIAET 100% -
Ever Regal Limited Hong Kong 1 share, HK$1 (2020:  (2020: -)
100%)
SHRERRAF B 10,0008 100% -
#10,0005 7T
Cheuk Nang Construction Company Hong Kong 10,000 shares, (2020:  (2020: -)
Limited HK$10,000 100%)
EMxEE (M) RO BB 500,000 AE# - 100%
(H1i() (Note (i) PRC RMB500,000  (2020:-)  (2020:
100%)
HE R MXERRRAF hE 500,000 ANR# = 100%
(W) (Note (i) PRC RMB500,000  (2020: -) (2020
100%)
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18.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 30 June 2021

and 2020 are as follows: (Continued)

IERR

Principal activities

REBKR
Investment holding

WEZRREE

Property development and trading

RERARREHE
Property investment and
investment holding

HERARER
Property investment and
development

WERERER
Property investment and
development

WERE

Property investment

WERR

Property development

RENZEERSE
Provision of property management
services

RENXEERE
Provision of property management
services
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18.MY B~ &) (#&)
RZEBE - —FR_F_FF A=+

BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

18.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 30 June 2021

H:TEZRBATZERWT « (&) and 2020 are as follows: (Continued)
BRTREER/
EMEIHS,/ EUDEN
KEBRE Particulars of issued
Place of incorporation ordinary share BEZRELS
WEAR or registration/  capital/registered  Proportion of ownership EEXH
Name operation capital interest Principal activities
E& E3
Directly Indirectly
ARERERR (M) BRAF" BE  94,000000% - 100% HE%E
(Hi#()) (Note (i) PRC US$94,000,000  (2020: -) (2020:  Property development
100%)
EEEVERR (RI)BRAF hE 494,000,000\ R - 100% HEXRREE
(B30 (Note (1)) PRC  RMB494,000,000  (2020: -) (2020:  Property investment, development
100%)  and trading
RN Z RE S S TRBRA A BB 5,000,000\ K% - 100% HEEE
(W) (Note (i) PRC RMB5,000,000  (2020: -) (2020:  Property development
100%)
Hiat - Note:
() “ZEEB/REFTBEDERIMAINGIE (i) The entity is registered as a wholly foreign owned

(ii)

Bk e

EEAREBEATEARAERBZEER
BENTIEMBARCHEN LERA -
UEINEER BT E MM E R F 2
BEHEEEBENRITE -

WEBARZKREEKB FRITIEAR
ITHAREBEEREZRZ 25 ER (M
37) °

NAIAEBRA (FE) ST EBHME
RARBEERK -

FEF AR AL

(ii)

i#

enterprise under PRC law.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results or formed a substantial portion of the net
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars

of excessive length.
Shares of these subsidiaries have been pledged to banks
as security for bank loan facilities granted to the Group

(Note 37).

Companies not audited by Grant Thornton Hong Kong
Limited.

incorporated during the year.
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18. M4 B2 = ()

TRIEHTAESEMNE X FlAce
Cosmos Finance Limited (7%= & &9 K
BAREPRBEEANIFERER) &Y
HiER - TRIMZINOTEER - &
FEMBREM A RIER S AT 285 o

Ace Cosmos Group

R Em A DX

FREEE
RBEE
mEBRIE
FREBAME

BEFE

FEERERNEREE

WA

REZRN,(EE)

AEZEEBA (XH)
Gk

DECTIFIERES 2
&r, (EiE)

EERSELN
REenE
REZHMBAN

PANE =i —1
REeEn=E

BeRA/ Rt F88

18.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following table lists out the information related
to Ace Cosmos Finance Limited and it’s subsidiary
(“Ace Cosmos Group”), the subsidiary companies of
the Group which has material non-controlling interest.

The summarised financial information presented below

represents the amounts before any inter-company

elimination.

Non-controlling interest
percentage

Non-current assets

Current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Carrying amount of
non-controlling interest

Revenue

Profit/(loss) for the year

Total comprehensive
income/(expenses) for the year

Profit/(loss) allocated to non-
controlling interest

Cash flows generated from
operating activities

Cash flows used in investing
activities

Net cash inflows/(outflows)

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED £t (%8) AR25 | Annual Report 2021 4£##

—E-_—F —E-EF
2021 2020
TET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
27.58% 27.58%
1,306,312 1,302,983
405,283 405,085
(1,029,662) (1,029,095)
(39,770) (39,770)
642,163 639,203
177,109 176,293
2,960 (53,256)
2,960 (53,256)

816 (14,689)

37 218

(5) (198)

32 20
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BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

19.PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

—E-—F —EEF

2021 2020

FHERT TAETT

HK$’000 HK$'000

ERPME Properties under development 1,567,653 1,496,021
BRI Completed properties 395,988 511,224
1,963,641 2,007,245

RHESEMEN T MERENESH

B40F 704 -

The lease term of the land use right of the properties

held for sale ranging from 40 years to 70 years.

20. A REEFTAEZZE®ME 20.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

= THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
—E-—F T -TF
2021 2020
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$000
BRAREEFABRZZ Financial assets at fair value
THREE through profit or loss
REB LT ZRAE Equity securities listed in Hong
(Ktat(a)) Kong (Note (a)) 32,101 31,168
FEHAI & (et b)) Short-term investment (Note (b)) - 426,878
32,101 458,046
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20 BARBEEFABEZEHE

= ()
EX

20.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Note:

(@ AEERETERAZFFEKRENAAE (a) The fair value of the Group’s investments in listed equity

BEERMETE33. 7S -

securities have been measured as described in Note 33.7.

(b) BHREREWBMER  FHNFE (b) The short-term investment represented structured

MIRTIBESHARTELR  HE
WMOSBRERBUETIEAEREESR
WM BEET - IRDAOFSIZEBT
BHMEF N ENF1.35%%3.80% °

21. R U E 5 Bk 5K 5 H b FE UK AR K

FE W B 3 R K
HE=%

H fth & W2 Bk X
HEEH
MBE K ZKA
AHREREE
Hiiz e

H th & YR K

deposits which were placed with bank in the PRC and
contain embedded derivatives, the returns of which
were determined by reference to the performance of the

fluctuation of exchange rate in the market and the interest

rate earning for the range from 1.35% to 3.80% per

annum quoted in the market.

Trade receivables

From third parties

Other receivables

Prepaid expenses

Costs for obtaining contracts
Utilities deposits

Other deposits

Other receivables

248 CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =t ((8) AR2A5 | Annual Report 2021 43

21.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

—E-—F —EETF
2021 2020
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
1,035 1,704
6,607 5,943
6,223 6,398
7,962 7,487
693 693
8,301 8,108
29,786 28,629
30,821 30,333
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21. B E 5 R 7 H th FE U AR =X

(%)
AREEBNEHEKRFBAR/IEROES
LRERE - AREEFEEBR - AFE
ERKEE 5 R WHIER BN ERE
ERk - BEREHR - REBETBEH
BERHRRAHHE ZHRWFA (BRE
B 5 NEMEKGRIAT ) &Rk 9 AT 40
T~

BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

21.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

The trade receivables of the Group represent rental
and management fee in arrears. The Group maintains a
credit policy to minimise any credit risk associated with
trade receivables. As at the end of the reporting period
the ageing analysis of the trade receivables (which is
included in trade and other receivables), based on the

debit note or invoice date, is as follows:

—R-——F —ECTHF

2021 2020

FET THETT

HK$’000 HK$’000

0-30K 0-30 days 621 1,009
31-60K 31-60 days 113 333
61-90K 61-90 days 64 125
HBIBIOKR Over 90 days 237 237
1,035 1,704

EREZEFRELTRERREHH -

AEBEVEEAETIEERR X
BRANESREUNEBHEENEES
[RLB2

REEANKAFETRERFEERH
EEHAMEEMBERNA  EXETER
HEME AEEEKEeBERNME - W
EMERERA M AR #EEY - REREAER
7 P g R420,0008 T (ZE T4 -
115,000/ 7T) °

Trade receivables are due upon presentation of

invoices.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk, and sufficient rental deposits are held to cover

potential exposure to credit risk.

Costs for obtaining contracts mainly represent the
incremental costs, primarily sales commission, as a
result of obtaining the pre-sale property contracts. The
Group has capitalised the amounts and amortised when
the related revenue are recognised. HK$420,000 (2020:
HK$115,000) has been recognised in profit or loss in

current year.
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21.

22,

FE IR & 5 R 5K R HL At FE UK R K
(#&)

At R RBER N ERERO RS -
EITAEBRBEMENERYED
BIEMRETR - EREEMERRR
WRABIR - FUtHEHERBROY
LWRRRTEARN

21.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

Other receivables included deposits paid to
constructors to perform repair and maintenance works
for the Group’s investment properties and properties
under development. The credit risk of deposits paid is
considered to be low, therefore the impact on ECL is

considered immaterial.

RITEEFRRAS 22.BANK BALANCES AND CASH
—E-—F —EETF
2021 2020
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
EEBER Pledged deposits 1,522 3,760
RITHETF Cash at bank 1,986,635 1,232,907
4 RE Total 1,988,157 1,236,667

AEBMNBRTERSEHRBR2EYD
1,953,942,0008 L (Z T =T F :
1,198,612,0007% 7T ) B SR 1T 45 88 17 X
A B A IRTT o BIB(FEAR LN
SN B IR AG B ) TN 4 S T B IR AR -
WITFRRE TS EREE -

Y - EEIERMBITEESHERE
DI RB AT RERN - ARXZHF
EERERFARBLE TRERTR
HYERTT e

Included in bank and cash balances of the Group
is approximately HK$1,953,942,000 (2020:
HK$1,198,612,000) of bank balances denominated in
Renminbi are placed with banks in the PRC. Under
the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement and Sales and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the bank balances are

not freely transferred.

The credit risk on pledged deposits and cash at
bank are considered to be insignificant because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings,

assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
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23. H th FE 1 BR =K 23.OTHER PAYABLES

—E-—F —E-FF
2021 2020
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
MEZ® Tenant deposits 9,123 9,638
Hith FE T BR R % JEET B A Other payable and accruals 122,951 141,973
132,074 151,611
HEMmENZKOEEEEERAREER The carrying values of other payables are considered to

AEEMNEGEILUE - be a reasonable approximation of their fair value.
HihENREREFERIEREE Other payable and accruals mainly included
Y2 0 48%8893,557,0008 L (== value-added tax and other tax payable for sales of
Z T 1 114,546,000587T) O B FEEIE properties in PRC amounted to HK$93,557,000 (2020:

BN REMENTRIES - HK$114,546,000).
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2. BB E

RAIESI BN RIE

24.CONTRACT LIABILITIES

—2-—F ZETF
2021 2020
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
Contract liabilities arising from
receipt in advance from sale of
properties 156,181 436,470

BRREEIEZEROBEEINRSE
BARRR - BIERTHREREK - K&
EFEE - PEERBITEROEENRS
B RANEE A E P8RS m IR
R i 8 A WA

T-_—FEXA=Z+H AEH
ERNBEBEANAR—FREBBHROHL
156,181,0008 & (=& = T F :
436,470,000/ 7T) R FEE R —F A
BARARBBA - VEREREEE 2 &2
HEFTERSAMENINTE -

F %

o |l

HBEBEEFY 25 5269,002,000
T (ZZE T4 : 105,739,000 7T)
EREAREREBHBA °

AN
=
B

HRRIER BT HEHREEREI55H
ME > FIBERASHITBB—FNaK
BRBEODEGELERMEANONR
ZEE -

The contract liabilities represented the aggregate
amount of the transaction price allocated to the
performance obligations that are unsatisfied as of
the end of the reporting period. The Group expects
the transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied
performance obligations will be recognised as revenue
when the Group transfers good or service to the

customer.

As at 30 June 2021, the Group’s contract liabilities
amounted to approximately HK$156,181,000 (2020:
HK$436,470,000) and are expected to be recognised
as revenue within one year. As a practical expedient,
the balance does not involve significant financing

component.

Contract liabilities outstanding at the beginning of the
year amounting to approximately HK$269,002,000
(2020: HK$105,739,000) have been recognised as

revenue during the year.

Since all the contracts with an original duration of
one year or less, as permitted under HKFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts

is not disclosed.
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25. (S —RBBERNTFEIZERIEK 25.AMOUNTS DUE TO A RELATED

IE COMPANY/NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

R BAEEEN fENEETFTER The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and

H - ARREESRAAEBEES ° repayable on demand. The carrying amounts of the

amounts due approximate their fair values.

ANRNBESENABERINELRES A director of the Company is also the beneficial owner
A e of the related company.
26 ERMEE 26.INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS
BEREEBE AT - The analysis of the carrying amounts of borrowings is as
follows:
—E-—F —E-FF
2021 2020
H it FET TET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
REBEE Current liabilities
RITERR—FNA Bank loans due for repayment
B Ef 2 #B 10 within one year (a) 865,920 1,261,920
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
BHER—F1& Bond due for repayment
FIH 2 B 19 after one year (b) 10,613 10,351
876,533 1,272,271
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26. BEBE (& 26.

Hret -

(@ PMEEH  AEEORITFFRMER

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS
(Continued)

Notes:

(@) At the reporting date, the Group’s interest-bearing bank

RIATHER borrowings were secured as follows:
— —ECTHF
2021 2020
FET THET
HK$’000 HK$'000

BREE: Interest-bearing bank borrowings:

— BB (B a2a0) — Secured (Note (i) 865,000 1,261,000
— ER R — Unsecured 920 920
865,920 1,261,920

B aE) I|RATIEFORER (M 5E37) - I
HEBRITRZER S INT.1%K
BB EEEF ERK0.5%ET 2 -
R EBE - RITEROER
IR E1.6420% (T ZF4F :
1.4960%) °

ERBERTER (BREHER &
BB RE R G IZ AN AT B
RZZBZ—FA=+H RBREERE
RIRZERKMS - BREBITERER
—FRNEE-

PIBRITERBTAMEHE —RE
K2 A - BAREERIEREN
ARG B R ESKBNBFE K o

Note (i)Bank borrowings are secured (Note 37) and
interest-bearing at Hong Kong Interbank Offer
Rate (“HIBOR”) plus 1.1% or Hong Kong Dollar
Prime Rate minus 0.5%. The effective interest
rate of the bank loans at the reporting date is
1.6420% (2020: 1.4960%).

The above interest-bearing bank borrowings, including
the term loans, contain a repayable on demand clause
and are carried at amortised cost. As at 30 June 2021,
the interest-bearing borrowings are repayable within
one year based on the scheduled repayment dates set

out in the loan agreements.

All of the banking facilities are subject to the fulfillment
of covenants that are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group
was to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities

would become repayable on demand.
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26 EEBE (&) 26.INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS
(Continued)

Kiat - (&) Notes: (Continued)

IRITEERBEEM FBFL2HWTE
37 c BN SEBE R ESHRREIR
EEHNRMIFE333F - RZEZ—F R
TTFNA=TH EBRIEEDN
HOGFORBWER -

Bank borrowings are secured, details refer to Note 37.
Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity
risk are set out in Note 33.3. As at 30 June 2021 and
2020, none of the covenants relating to drawn down

facilities had been breached.

(b) fEHTM1E10,500,000/% JT & FE I 48 K& (b) Bond with nominal value of HK$10,500,000 is unsecured
LASE R E5%00 & E F| = A FE - 7£
HERBZEBRNER7.4154% ° E5
EIREEEMER - SR - BB
AR mERAERR 2T ZFN
AZ+RAEH EFEESERIER
FaELEAN—FRIIE -

and bears interest at a fixed rate of 5% per annum. The
effective interest rate of the bond at the reporting date
is 7.4154%. The bond has no early redemption clause,
is unconditional, unsubordinated, non-convertible,

unsecured and with maturity date on 26 August 2022.

27 R IE B IR 27.DEFERRED TAXATION

FRELEHRBEaEEHO T The movements during the year in the deferred taxation
are as follows:

—E-—F —ETF
2021 2020
FET FA&T
HK$’000 HK$’000
Rn+tHA—H At 1 July (1,054,172) (1,275,045)
PE H =58 Exchange differences (98,314) 52,656
HE Y ERENR Release on disposal of properties 268,412 106,275

BEEBEmPFA (H#R) Credit to/(Recognised in)
profit or loss (29,252) 61,822

B B th 2 [ U s R RE R Recognised in other

comprehensive income 87 120
WAA=+H At 30 June (913,239) (1,054,172)
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27 IEFERIE (&)

FAREHAEEENRAB (ERRBKRER

EREHEESRA) WEBHNT
EEHEAEE

RZZE—-—hEtHA—H

BE X Z

HEMERKR

BEA/ (X)) EB&EF
EXHEREMEEKEF
RZZEZTFSA=THK
—E-TF+HA—H
EHERE
HEMERK
BEtAEEREF
BEXHEREMEERER

R-E--FXA=1H

27.DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities

jurisdiction) during the year is as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

(prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation

Effla
B JiIE:S
T 4R {E BiIE T H
Revaluation  Accelerated
of properties tax R
and LAT  depreciation Total
THET TET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 July 2019 1,289,825 27,189 1,317,014
Exchange differences (52,656) - (52,656)
Release on disposal of properties (106,275) - (106,275)
(Credited)/Charged to
profit or loss (60,312) 72 (60,240)
Charged to other comprehensive
income (120) - (120)
At 30 June 2020 and
1 July 2020 1,070,462 27,261 1,097,723
Exchange differences 98,314 - 98,314
Release on disposal of properties (268,412) - (268,412)
Charged to profit or loss 30,576 100 30,676
Charged to other comprehensive
income (87) - (87)
At 30 June 2021 930,853 27,361 958,214
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R-ZE—NLF+EH—H
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RZZEZZFEFA=THRK
—_E_TF+LH—H
EEtAEERF

R-ZE-—-%XA=+H

FEF SRR MR P REROT
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27 .DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

Deferred tax assets

REER

Tax losses

TAETT

HK$'000

At 1 July 2019 (41,969)

Credited to profit or loss (1,582)
At 30 June 2020 and 1 July 2020

(43,551)

Credited to profit or loss (1,424)

At 30 June 2021 (44,975)

Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of

financial position:

—E-—F —ETF
2021 2020

FH& T FA&T
HK$’000 HK$’000

Net deferred tax assets recognised

in the statement of financial

position (17,614) (16,290)
Net deferred tax liabilities

EEH IR BEFE recognised in the statement of

financial position 930,853 1,070,462

913,239 1,054,172

AEBERELEHREEE Unrecognised tax losses
AR AR AR MR B A AT FEORIE - AR The Group has unrecognised tax losses of approximately
B ARHER R B IR B 15 49221,591,0008 HK$221,591,000 (2020: HK$243,829,000) due to
T (ZZE ZF4 1 243,829,000/ 7C) ° unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses do
RBBRTRENIBEEBBTIEER - not expire under current tax legislation.
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28. HE R
TRERTASEEEAENFHA

FZEE

RIEBE R KA
—F N2 H
EE_EFRFINH

HERBENRKMEER

HEBENRE

KEBEENHENIRE -

—FRNEIH
EE_E=2FRFEH

B —FRE B
FARBEE

=

—F RN E D
ARAASERB AR

AEERSRHEERGBEHRKTETT
EEE AR RS AR LB R - FT A

28.LEASE LIABILITIES

maturities of the Group’s lease liabilities:

The following table shows the remaining contractual

—E=-—F —EEF
2021 2020
TERT TAETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Total minimum lease payments:
Due within one year 2,330 2,711
Due in the second to fifth years 5,009 1,012
7,339 3,723
Future finance charges on leases
liabilities (114) (92)
Present value of leases liabilities 7,225 3,631
Present value of minimum lease
payments:
Due within one year 2,273 2,627
Due in the second to fifth years 4,952 1,004
7,225 3,631
Less: Portion due within one year
included under current
liabilities (2,273) (2,627)
Portion due after one year included
under non-current liabilities 4,952 1,004

The Group considers that no extension option or

termination option would be exercised at the lease

HEHRARPEAE - BEMESELML - 8 commencement date. All leases are for offices,
HR—FE=F- warehouse and carpark. The lease periods are from one

to three years.

Hez—_Z-—9FA=1+BHIFE During the year ended 30 June 2021, the total cash

EMIREREARTEA A3,202,000 (=
T -FF 3,168,000 7T) °

(2020: HK$3,168,000).
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EE%EW%HEE
RZEBE-_—FRAA=Z+HEZZE-ZF

FRA=+E
AEREAR -

EmRE
EERE

Types of

right-of-use
assets

B

o

Warehouse

fFEfs

Carpark

£
]
it

Office

AEBEFFTMWAEM

BHBREAES
EHPNERAEEE
Financial

statements items

of right-of-use
assets included in

NE BERRE

Property, plant and
equipment

mE - BELRE

Property, plant and
equipment

EHHE

Short-term lease

EHHE

Short-term lease

28.LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)

Details of the lease activities

As at 30 June 2021 and 2020, the Group has entered

into leases for offices, warehouse and carpark.

HEHE

Number of
leases

N

M
A
[
A
_FH
o 1

MREES
HE

Range of
remaining
lease term

2018 A
(ZZEZZF 17ERA)
20 months

(2020: 17 months)

718 A
(ZZ-Z%F:7EA)
7 months

(2020: 1 month)

& A
(ZZEZZF:1f4A)
1 month

(2020: 1 month)

4-718 A

(—E-FF :4.781)
4-7 months

(2020: 4 — 7 months)

BfE

Particulars
EEAGNETERE

Subject to monthly fixed
payment

FEABNEEHR

Subject to monthly fixed
payment

FEABNEEHA

Subject to monthly fixed
payment

FEABNEER

Subject to monthly fixed
payment

Annual Report 2021 4£# | CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED &t ((E) HRAH

259



260

w5 B R R A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-FT-—4,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

29. IR AR K fi e
(A) BRZE
BETEGR 7 ERR Ordinary shares, issued and fully
paid

RREEZERK - Voting ordinary shares:
RAFEL At the beginning of the year
E AR BB Issue of shares pursuant to scrip

BifRdn dividend scheme
RAEFER At the end of the year
K&t

1. MABRKEETE

(@ EZZE—NF+—A=+=
B AARREBER=ZZ—N
F+—A -+ —HAMH
B DA B A B EHEI - BA3.00
BT BTN D B R G  H
25,232,406/ % T = &
—NEFERARBEZURR
BZMRRE

by EZZE=_ZTFHARA &
AREBEBER_Z_TFMA
= HAME RN EETE -
LA2.107 7T 8 77 F1 9 Bd iR
fn + $£18,747,0610% 45 F 5t
—E_EFRHREEEZEN
R B Z R -

Wit

Notes

Notes:

29.SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVE
(A) Share capital

—EC-F ZTCIFE
2021 2020
R EE TER rin & e TAT
Number of Number of

shares HK$/000 shares HK$'000
639,613,567 2,441,551 595,634,100 2,326,486
13,063,214 27,434 43,979,467 115,065
652,676,781 2,468,985 639,613,567 2,441,551

1. Scrip dividend scheme

(a)

On 23 December 2019, the Company issued
and allotted a total 25,232,406 ordinary shares
in the Company at HK$3.00 to shareholders
who elected to receive shares in the Company
in lieu of cash for the 2019 final dividend
pursuant to the script dividend scheme
announced by the Company on 21 November
2019.

On 5 May 2020, the Company issued and
allotted a total of 18,747,061 ordinary shares in
the Company at HK$2.10 to shareholders who
elected to receive shares in the Company in lieu
of cash for 2020 interim dividend pursuant to
the script dividend scheme announced by the

Company on 3 April 2020.
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29. AR fé fm (4E)

(A) B (%)
Hat - (&)

1. UIRKBFE (&)

(c)

EZFE-FF+_A=F+N
H - ARalBER=-ZT=
TE+—-—A-+HBAH
B AR AR B EHEl - BA2.10
BT BT S B ARG 0 K
13,063,214 T =_F =
TERHRBEZEURKE
ZHIRE o

2. PRALAEMWEE1ATI 2 BTG,
BT EERARDMBAER -

3. RFER EEARFZHMERA

BE -

HEREE AR R Z B -

BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

29.SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVE
(Continued)
(A) Share capital (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

1.

Scrip dividend scheme (Continued)

() On 28 December 2020, the Company issued
and allotted a total of 13,063,214 ordinary
shares in the Company at HK$2.10 to
shareholders who elected to receive shares
in the Company in lieu of cash for 2020 final
dividend pursuant to the script dividend scheme
announced by the Company on 25 November
2020.

All shares issued as mentioned in Note 1 above rank
pari passu with the existing shares of the Company

in all respects.

None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities

during the year.
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BE-FT-—4,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

29. IR A K f&# s (4R)

(B) f#f&

EAN|

RZZE—NF+H—H

REEFER

AEEEHERFEAE

ETtt}E&EH:Z@—jLEEEHHH“ g

BEHEREN ZF - T F R HAR

RZEBE-EFENA=1THK
—E-FTF+H—H

REEEE

AEEE2EHWBRALRE

BEHEREN ZF - TFRHMK

ETtt/E&EH_E:—EEP,HﬂHxM

R-ZBEZ-Z-FXA=1H

RZE-_—FA=+H BESF
BAREH FeI 2 BEE - A
DIRFARRBREZFEBHEEELD

£27,922,0008 T (ZE —_FF :
72,823,000/ JT)

29.SHARE CAPITAL AND
(Continued)

(B) Reserve

The Company

Balance at 1 July 2019

Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

2019 final dividend approved and paid
2020 interim dividend approved and paid

RESERVE

Retained
profits/total

reserves
TETT
HK$’000

1,477

208,256

209,733

(89,345)
(46,565)

Balance at 30 June 2020 and 1 July 2020

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

2020 final dividend approved and paid
2021 interim dividend approved and paid

Balance at 30 June 2021

73,823
(8606)

72,957

(31,981)
(13,054)

27,922

At 30 June 2021, the aggregate amounts of reserves

available for distribution to equity shareholders of

the Company, as calculated under the provisions

of Part 6 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
was approximately HK$27,922,000 (2020:

HK$73,823,000).
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30.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

—E-—F —ET-THF
2021 2020
FE T FAET
HK$’000 HK$000
EEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
IRBEE Non-current assets
({op==R/NCTd s o Interests in subsidiaries 254,727 254,727
JE W BT B8 A R FR1E Amounts due from subsidiaries 168,475 171,502
423,202 426,229
RBEE Current assets
JFE WY J8 A B) BE Amounts due from subsidiaries 2,989,419 2,725,373
RITREFRRE Bank balances and cash 561 558
2,989,980 2,725,931
REBEE Current liabilities
H At JE 7 BR X Other payables 1,227 1,356
FEAT BB A R 5R18 Amounts due to subsidiaries 791,803 454,897
793,030 456,253
RBEEFEE Net current assets 2,196,950 2,269,678
BEERRBER Total assets less current liabilities 2,620,152 2,695,907
FRBER Non-current liabilities
BEREE Interest-bearing borrowings 10,613 10,351
BN Advances from a director 112,632 170,182
123,245 180,533
EEFE Net assets 2,496,907 2,515,374
g EQUITY
A& 7 Share capital 2,468,985 2,441,551
& (Hat298)) Reserves (Note 29(B)) 27,922 73,823
REHBEHE Total equity 2,496,907 2,515,374
jichg =] Hik B
Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil Yung Philip
EE EFF
Director Director
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BE-FT-—4,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

SILEEERAEALT ZERRS

FRAGAEMBRREMEOREZ
R5 /BRI - AT TR R B B R E
ATRFRETZEARR

SRNTEEEERAE
e 2ECHEL
MIaE13s 14 F
KAREEMWD -

e REMEH
BB & A
BfERL 12 12

MEN FEEREL

AT T R 2R SR AT
BRAF ([CCALD &
R AT CRPY)
AR2ATR ([CCDMLY)
AlEm R Kt HEEEB A

XAt FEHFEE S
BRARME

TRANSACTIONS

31.SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY

In addition to the transactions/information disclosed

elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements,

Z during the year, the Group had the following material
transactions with connected and related parties:
—E-—F —E-FTF
2021 2020
Mt FTERT TAET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Remuneration paid to key
management personnel,
including amounts paid to
the Company’s directors as
disclosed in Note 13:
Salaries and other short-term
employee benefits 15,824 15,584
Post-employment benefits 108 108
15,932 15,692
Interest paid to
Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil (@) 7,015 9,971
Architect and other
professional service fees
paid to Cecil Chao &
Associates Limited (“CCAL")
and Cecil Chao Design
(Macau) Limited (“CCDML”) (b) - 4,200
Commission paid to Szehope
Securities Company Limited (c) 7 113
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BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

EHEEEATZEARXE (&) 31.SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Bret -

(a)

1 1 A AN £ [ R 4 A R I A
EEERBHZEF  RRITRAZER
EM%etERME - RZF=Z—F XA
=+8 BtEtYEILATAEEZR
A112,632,0008 0 (ZE_F 4 ¢
170,182,000/ 70) - Sttt B 1H 1+ B %
RRAR—FTIZEERTEEER L

CCALKRCCDMLIK 15 & 75 5T 7E 2 & 3K
REEZEREMEERBETAER -
#2185 + ACCALKRCCDMLYZ B 2%
WA AN - ZERXHEK ETHREIZE14A
EMMREZIFERERS - EmRAI
FBUUAEZBRBEEREEEETEWMES
iR o

HitBHL R RESERARZE
HEAA -

BRIA B Rl 9h - 0 R B N AT B
EARAMELETIREBNEEZR
2 wH R FEFHEALH - MARAE
ENERBALITRZERS  TH®
BHTEEKEEEAEANES -

Notes:

(a)

Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil has provided unsecured
advances to the Group at 1% over prime interest
rate in Hong Kong per annum. At 30 June 20271,
the advances from Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil
amounted to approximately HK$112,632,000 (2020:
HK$170,182,000). Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil has
confirmed that he will not request repayment of these

advances in coming one year.

CCAL and CCDML rendered architectural and related
services to the Group on terms agreed between both
parties. Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil is the beneficial owner
of CCAL and CCDML. These transactions constitute
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The disclosures required by
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are provided in the

reports of the directors.

Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil is the beneficial owner of

Szehope Securities Company Limited.

Other than the above, no other transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company or a
connected entity of the director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted

at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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NEBEZHELENRBENHER

REEHELNAEEAELHH A

m

AxE .

RERE
smm =
—B%

ikt

-—EREERSH

EXTE
—BELARN
2

FERE
- HEEX
- BHHE
— & A8

—E--&
RA=TH

—EFNF
tA—H
RERE :
— B
ik
-EfffERS
MEATER
-BERABR
B

FEE
— R E
— &R 8

—E-TF
~NA=1H

1 July 2020

Cash-flows:
- Repayment
- Proceeds
- Capital element of lease
rentals paid
- Decrease in advance from a
related company

Non-cash:
- Lease modification
— Interest expense
- Interest accruals

30 June 2021

1July 2019

Cash-flows:
- Repayment
- Proceeds
- Capital element of lease
rentals paid
- Increase in advance from a
related company

Non-cash:

— Interest expense
— Interest accruals

30 June 2020

32.RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES

ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from

financing activities can be classified as follows:

[ 35)

RENT FER

ENES B3 RRBH

BEREE BRAE Advance Amounts

HE&E Interest- Advance froma  due to non-
Lease bearing from a related  controlling
liabilities  borrowings director company shareholders
TRET TAET TET ThET TR
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
3,631 1,272,271 170,182 1,547 239,990

- (411,000) (57,550) - -

- 15,000 - - -
(2,711) - - - -

_ _ _ (58) _

6,220 - - - -
85 - - - -

- 262 - - -

7,225 876,533 112,632 1,489 239,990
6,296 1,173,795 159,182 1,381 239,990

- (499,559) - - -

- 597,792 11,000 - -
(2,840) - - - -
- - - 166 -

175 - - - -

- 243 - - -

3,631 1,272,271 170,182 1,547 239,990

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED £t (%8) AR25 | Annual Report 2021 4£##



w5 B B R R B A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

3.2 FEREER AABMEEE 33.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

R FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
AEEE—RMEBXEHEEREER The Group is exposed to financial risks through its
HTEASHMT AR SRER - &8 use of financial instruments in its ordinary course of
B B 3T 5 A B (B 55 o E bR - F operations and in its investment activities. The financial
KR REMEKRR)  EERR K risks include market risk (including foreign currency
mENE © =B o risk, interest risk and other price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk.

BREUKTAZABRERNEE RN The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
AEFERREFINNT - EEEERER out below. The management manages and monitors
EmNREBUEREERRERFS these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
BRI HETT o implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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BIEHMEERESER
UTHERzemEENRESREBEN
BREEEZEMIERARES -

TREE
REHEE

H 5 IR S
H & Uk B R
RITHERLRE

B EETAEM

EEWNECEREE :
KARE  EEAB L™

KARE - EEBIRI
=)

B &S LM

E%  EEAEHRINET

BRARBEAARRZ

SHAE
K2 ERIL A

EHRAES
RAEEE

TREE
REHEE

H Al & A R 3K
JE A I A SR R IR

JE A B 3E X B 5RR
BEE

EER
HES&

mh S

g
/

3.2 AKREER AABEEE 33.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
B (&)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

33.1Categories of financial assets and liabilities

The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated

statement of financial position relate to the

following categories of financial assets and

financial liabilities:

—E-—F —EEF
2021 2020
FTERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
Financial assets
Amortised cost:
Trade and other receivables
17,231 15,316
Bank balances and cash 1,988,157 1,236,667
Financial assets at FVTOCI:
Perpetual notes, listed in
Hong Kong 115,252 123,174
Perpetual notes, listed
outside Hong Kong 4,822 4,418
Debentures, listed in Hong Kong 303 4,495
Debentures, listed outside
Hong Kong 40,834 58,617
Financial assets at FVTPL:
Short-term investment — 426,878
Listed equity securities held
for trading 32,101 31,168
2,198,700 1,900,733
Financial liabilities
Amortised cost:
Other payables 38,517 37,065
Amounts due to
non-controlling shareholders 239,990 239,990
Amount due to a related
company 1,489 1,547
Interest-bearing borrowings 876,533 1,272,271
Advance from a director 112,632 170,182
Lease liabilities 7,225 3,631
1,276,386 1,724,686
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33.85iEMEER AABHEERE 33.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
HE (&) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

33.25E @A 33.2Credit risk

EERREXZEHFENEANE
FERAEERNBEENRR - K
SEERMBREREERIINR
FHFITRE - WHEBEEBER N
FRMHER SR - URERZOMS
R B TSR KRR

AEBNEERRIEZXREES
NE L EURIR o AN E B R TE
o ERERMIBITAR LIRS H
EERBRERE/MTEE B
ZEHFREL  PENBRAEEA
TBRIT YEREEEFNR K
SERRZEFEREBREIK - &1
RITHBERNR  ERERFE
MRXZHFEHIGETEER -

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligations resulting
in financial loss to the Group. The Group has
adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy
counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral,
where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk

of financial loss from defaults.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade and other receivables. The Group’s
exposure to credit risk on pledged deposits and
bank balances and cash are considered to be
insignificant because the counterparties are the
major banks in the Hong Kong, PRC and Malaysia
with established credit ratings, for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk. Given the high
credit ratings of the banks, management does
not expect any counterparties to fail to meet its

obligations.
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3B.eMEREERAAEERE
Bk (#0)
33.25 R A K ()

£ 1. ¢ ¢}

NE BER A b 77 05 AT B 76 3
FERIESRIHR ENTARERE
X RETERHERELX  BE5FE
WHRIBERBAZEERBEER
BEBMSE  EFEEMEAE
KEXER  SEERELZZMA
EHEEE - HNRIRBENRCH
WHBEWEEEN  WEEHE
FiaZ AR EMEFPXNEERS -
Bl b PAT 75 80 HR Y JE L BR TR B 4% & /Y
HIEMERERXERRE - AEH
ﬁ@ﬂi@ii_y_ FRA=ZTHK
TECEFRNACTHIEFEME
Z B IAR TR BIE AR KB EE

L EARPHEEHELMER
28 -

BBEE AT ENEMEHEER
BAABEIAEMDEKZHE
FRE
HEEA A ENEMSREE
1517 3R S H A YR OE - T;z&f*{ﬁ
Bt AR 2wl Zﬁ%ﬂ”:\&
Re MiR1THH -  RRERKER
[EBR ﬁ@%ﬁﬂﬂ?&ﬁf?ﬂ g
FCER AN B AL B DA R B RSN EB (S
B H AT IR BN 1T E B SR RS AN
AfHE - BEREHMEERF - N
AR EREN1& BT B UL Bl 8 B & 75 -
MEME @ FREEMELRGRIEN
EERRBIER ABEE -

rFJ

33.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

33.2Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables

The Group has applied the simplified approach
to assess the ECL as prescribed by HKFRS 9. To
measure the ECL, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the past due days. In calculating the ECL
rates, the Group considers historical elements and
forward-looking elements. Assessed lifetime ECL
rate of trade receivables is minimal for all ageing
bands as there was no recent history of default and
continuous payments were received, and rental
deposits are required from tenants prior to the
commencement of leases. The Group determined
that the ECL allowance in respect of trade
receivables for the year ended 30 June 2021 and
2020 is minimal as there has not been a significant

change in credit quality of the customers.

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
and debt investment at FVTOCI

Other financial assets measured at amortised
cost include deposits and other receivables
debt investment at FVTOCI and cash and bank
balances. In order to minimise the credit risk,
the management of the Group would make
periodic collective and individual assessment on
the recoverability based on historical settlement
records and past experience as well as current
external information and adjusted to reflect
probability-weighted forward-looking information,
including the default rate where the relevant
debtors operates. Other monitoring procedures are
in place to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In these regards, the
credit risk of deposits and other receivables are

considered to be low.
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33.85iEMEER AABHEERE 33.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
HE (&) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
33.21=E E b (48) 33.2Credit risk (Continued)

BBERL T ENREMEEMEER
BAABEIARMDEKZE
FRE (&)
Wiz & T mMERMF17FE - &
E-TE - FRA=ZTHLEFE
A AEEREN LEMESKREX
1—JLﬂ:|J§°E/\ T _—_—FXXA=+
% B 5 B EE %) 733,303,00078
7‘5 cEERA  RESNEREE
BEZL BHEABXETME
EE=[EER - At - EERBES
83,000,000/ JT ° L 4h - AN BF IR
FEETLELMESHELSBOA
18,185,000 ;L W {2 A A AR T
# o EE B E B E 28 17 R b 5T
& REZSELMESR =T =—
FRA=ZTENEEERERER
BARIEE I - AAETEEERIBLRE
FHHTESS —BEER - Eitk - BRI
{EE1E A11,000,0008 7T ° AR
BEFAHMEZEYZE ZimﬂéSF
MNESEEHNESRITNER
H o AEERBEEARR WEE
Eit ANEBEZE AR BEFAEM
FHEkE Zémi,éSFH’JTJﬁ%ﬁﬁ%&
EHBENEARRERREMT
RER) o ST /\E’\Jﬁlézﬂgﬁﬁﬁ
H - BEEEEATEEAARSE
FREEBITEE -

A REFE FTE E A U R IB A
TEEEAEAEI12EANTESHER
BERFETHRIE  BABVIHRER
WRZESREENEERK I &
BEEN BBEZE=_T=—F,"A
=tAR-_ZE-_ZTFA=+HL
FEMENRRBRE -

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
and debt investment at FVTOCI (Continued)

As set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements, there was a default of interest payment
in a listed debenture held by the Group during
the year ended 30 June 20271. As at 30 June
2021, the gross amount of this debenture was
approximately HK$3,303,000. In the opinion of
the directors, the credit quality of this debenture
deteriorated significantly and ECL is assessed
under stage 3. Accordingly, an impairment loss
of HK$3,000,000 is recognised. In addition, the
credit rating of certain debentures with gross
amount of approximately HK$18,185,000 were
being downgraded in the current financial year.
The directors assessed the credit quality of these
listed debentures individually as at 30 June 2021
and are in the opinion that the credit risk for
these debentures has been increased significantly
and the relevant ECL is assessed under stage 2.
Accordingly, an impairment loss of HK$11,000,000
is recognised. The Group’s exposure to credit
risk on remaining debt investment at FVTOCI are
considered to be insignificant because the debt
investment at FVTOCI are with good credit rating,
for which the Group considers to have low credit
risk. Given the good credit ratings of the issuers,
management does not expect any counterparties to
fail to meet its obligations.

The directors of the Company have assessed that
the ECL for other receivables are minimal under the
12-months ECL method as there is no significant
increase in credit risk on these financial assets
since initial recognition and the risk of default is
low during the year ended 30 June 2021 and 2020.
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33.2MEREERAABEEE
B (8])
333MBELEAR

MEER R T IE AR B EAEITE
BBRXNREREMEMEERS
EMerBERRNERNORRE
B - AKB LB ERNFIBEMERE
BEARIREIRE IR )7 | R

MR -  AEENBREEBES
BELLEENRERETRD - F
HERENMERNRBESFR
MESERZOHETIEN - AR
RAER E R IE R VIR & R A K
KEE BT RMEEMBER T IR
HEESBENREEEMESR
MREERBK - AEBBEBEFE
AR —BEERERBMEER - LKA
REARERERBIERRE

Tt ArEE#E _T_—4%
NAZtTHMZZZZEF A=
AN rmBENRHaREIER -
AERKUBENRENE (BEEA
ERMEHENF S A - k&I
RE2E - QIREBERE BHMIRITF
KEHE) o BERE AR DAE (AR
BEEBER  ZAERASEETRE
WEREZNOHEEAEETA - W8
BEOHEE MG B EER
FEAE AT HIM -

33.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

33.3Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The Group is
exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement of
its payables and financing obligations, and also in
respect of its cash flow management. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants by reviewing each operating
entity’s cash flow forecast, to ensure that the Group
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions and related parties to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term. The
liquidity policies have been followed by the Group
since prior years and are considered to have been

effective in managing liquidity risks.

Analysed below is the Group’s remaining
contractual maturities for its financial liabilities as
at 30 June 2021 and 2020, based on undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed
using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates
current at the reporting date). When the creditor
has a choice of when the liability is settled, the
liability is included on the basis of the earliest date
on when the Group can be required to pay. Where
the settlement of the liability is in instalments, each
instalment is allocated to the earliest period in

which the Group is committed to pay.
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3.2EKREERAABEEE
B (48)
33.3REE SR (&)

33.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
33.3Liquidity risk (Continued)
ALK - RERRERA

Maturity Analysis - Undiscounted cash outflows

SR-5  SHWF
R-FR EIRWE @IREE BB
FPBEER  Morethan  Morethan BFHLAE
BEE  Within1  1yearbut 2 years but Total
Carrying year or less than less than  undiscounted
amount  on demand 2 years 5 years cash outflows
ThEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZBZ-FRR=1H At 30 June 2021

FiceRaE Non-derivative financial liabilities
AfERER Other payables 38,517 38,517 = = 38,517
ERERRRESR Amount due to non-controlling shareholders 239,990 239,990 > = 239,990
EREBRAZE Amount due to a related company 1,489 1,489 - - 1,489
BERE Interest-bearing horrowings 876,533 866,445 10,500 - 876945
BER Advances from a director 112,632 - 119,390 - 119,390
HEGRE Lease liabilities 7,225 2,330 2,109 2,900 7,339
127638 1148771 131,999 2900 1,283,670

R-E-FESA=TH At 30 June 2020

FTEeRER Non-derivative financial liabilities
HA (TR Other payables 37,065 37,065 - - 37,065
EREAREESS Amount due to non-controlling shareholders 239,990 239,990 - - 239,990
ERBEAFNE Amount due to a related company 1,547 1,547 - - 1547
BERE Interest-bearing borrowings 1272271 1,262,445 525 10,500 1,273,470
BERY Advances from a director 170,182 - 180,392 - 180,392
ikl Lease liabilities 3,631 271 1,012 - 3,723
1,724,686 1,543,758 181,929 10,500 1,736,187
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33.8RiEREER AABEERE 33.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

33.3Liquidity risk (Continued)

B (8])
33.3REE LA (&)

it B ERN SR BREKBRT
WA FRIEROEHRER - REE
FipERNENEEEERE TSR
ERNHRDITABEINT - X T
BREEAGRMEFAENFEX
it o ZEERBIAEBHI MR - &
NAIEFRBRBRVIT TR REITEE
RE#ERKIAEERE - ARRIES

BIE - EMERSRIEE RGP
HOFHERERDREERE -

R-B--£xA=1H At 30 June 2021
FTEERER Non-derivative financial liabilities
BREE Interest-bearing borrowings

R-E-SEXA=1H
Hitepas

BElEE

At 30 June 2020
Non-derivative financial liabilities

Interest-bearing borrowings

The amounts included above for interest-
bearing borrowings comprised term loans from
banks with a requirement on demand clause.
The maturity analysis of the term loans based
on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the
loan agreements is summarised as follows. The
amounts include interest payments computed using
contractual rates. Taking into account the Group’s
financial position, the directors of the Company
do not consider that it is probable that the banks
will exercise their discretion to demand immediate
repayment. The directors of the Company believe
that the term loans will be repaid on accordance
with the schedules repayment dates set out in the

loan agreements.

AR - ERREREERARERERKN
Maturity Analysis - Term loans subject to a repayment on demand

clause hased on scheduled repayment

SR-F  SRWE KR

R-Fh  EORRE EBIREF RERLER

ZHUKEX  Morethan  More than Total

R Within 1 1Tyearbut 2 yearsbut undiscounted
Carrying year or less than less than cash
amount  on demand 2 years 5 years outflows

TEx TR TRz TEn TEn

HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
865920 873,072 - - mn
1261920 1,280,955 - - 1,080,955
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33.:EMEERAABHEERE 33.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
HE (&) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
33.3nBE SRR (&) 33.3Liquidity risk (Continued)

USRS B ) R A B B ¥y O AR TR OR B
ERMERFEAR - A Ll IE0TE
TRMABEIHNETAMEENE
mAEERLEE -

33.4F R E K

MERBREVHTEZ AR EES
BenEGEE TSN R E mF
BB - BRIIBERRIRITEST
Hh REBRARBABERER
BEEE-

ANEE 2N EERERREERT
EEERENEEEE AT ERE
IRITERREFER - WAL HNA
SRR - A AKBEEHIRER
ENRER - REBERBERNE L
BEIER  EEBREBENELE
BIRITRZFEEZS - MR SRE
Erg

AEEZXKARBREFZFBEER
WA At M EEARTESR -

7N 5% 8 3 {56 PR 58 B ) = 4 e ) R

2B o

AEEBHFRECRBEABEEI
FERER R - WRAE R -

The amounts included above for variable interest
rate instruments for non-derivative financial
liabilities are subject to change if changes in
variable interest rates differ to those effective
interest rates determined at the end of the reporting

year.

33.4Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Except
for bank balances, the Group has no significant

interest-bearing assets.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
bank balances and cash, short-term investment
and interest-bearing borrowings which includes
bank loans and advances from a director. These
arrangements issued at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. In accordance
with the terms of the interest-bearing borrowings,
the interest rate will be adjusted should the Hong
Kong Dollar Prime Rate and HIBOR be changed.

The Group’s perpetual notes and debentures are
earning fixed interest rate, therefore it is immaterial

to interest rate risk.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to

hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

The policies to manage interest rate risk have
been followed by the Group since prior year are

considered to be effective.
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33.2MEREERAABEEE
B (8])
334K A ()

NZE-—FA=1+H ' FEEHF
K& EH THES08F - BEEMEA
=18 - @R AR E 2R
i1z 2 N K AR B & A 494,171,000
BT (ZFE ZZF : £9859,000/%
JL) ° 50 F 2 LA THRAAE
BESEE T —EARSANE2E
B2 5l o

33.5 5 E & B2

SNERBIEDBMAREL AR ERK
KRR ERBEERBTEHY
@ AREEERES  HRAES
R EEE - KBHRSH IS
% BARERSERARKEH -
MONSEHNSHAERAE 4
DA RS 45 B B 2 M EE SRR
HAEWT

33.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
33.4Interest rate risk (Continued)

At 30 June 2021, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant,
would decrease/increase the Group’s profit after
income tax and retained profits by approximately
HK$4,171,000 (2020: approximately HK$859,000).
The 50 basis point increase/decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible
change in interest rates over the period until the

next annual reporting date.

33.5Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Group operates mainly in
Hong Kong, Malaysia and the PRC with most of the
transactions denominated in local currency of Hong
Kong, Malaysia and the PRC. Foreign currency
denominated financial assets and liabilities,

translated into HK$ at closing rates, are as follows:
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3.2 FEREER AABMEEE 33.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

R (&) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
33.55MNE EL B (48) 33.5Foreign currency risk (Continued)

AR® EYH

RMB UsS$

FET FTERT

HK$’000 HK$’000

RZEBEZ-Z—%XA=1+H At 30 June 2021

H 5 K& H i fE UL HR 3k Trade and other receivables 662 _
RITERER S Bank balances and cash - 3,209
BEAREFAEMEE Financial assets at FVTOCI

WmzemEE = 161,211
AKX E b FE Overall net exposure 662 164,420

R-ZZE_ZTEFA=1H At 30 June 2020

B 5 K H th FE AR X Trade and other receivables 662 -
RITEFRERE Bank balances and cash - 3,699
EAREFAEMEE Financial assets at FVTOCI

Wz GMEE - 190,704
BAXERFE Overall net exposure 662 194,403
MRB T EETTEE - AEBE The Group did not have significant foreign currency
3 T BB JT 2 A I M B K HNE R risk between US$ and HK$ as HK$ is pegged with
% INERBER A TEE - US$. The foreign currency risk are considered as

immaterial.
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.eREAREERAAEEERE
R (&)
33.6 M {EKE

HiBREAREMBIAZARE
BERARRERESHEENHBER
(M =EH) RINES BRI F
FERER  ANEBEXEEH T
BRAFFOTHERES  ZFL
MIRANRESBRIRAABER
ABRZeMEE  -BEREESEE
BRERNES  EFERIFELHEED
118 -

AEEEHFRECREAHBAERER
ﬁﬂf‘i’fﬂﬂ IR - WRAE R

o

Q

BEREBRENION(ZE =

33.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
33.60ther price risk

Other price risk relates to the risk that the fair
values or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices
(other than changes in interest rates and foreign
exchange rates). The Group is mainly exposed to
change in market prices of listed equity securities in
respect of its investments in listed equity classified
as financial assets at FVTPL. The management will
monitor the price movements and take appropriate

actions when it is required.
The policies to manage other price risk have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are

considered to be effective.

A hypothetical 10% (2020: 10%) change in prices

F10%) BREHEHAEFBLRF of trading investments would result in an effect to
TEEEZENM - the Group’s result for the year as follows:
—E-—F ZEZETF
2021 2020
FER FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BARBEEETAEZRZ  Increase in profit for the year as
TREEER LAY a result of increase in price of
7 2 ) 1 0 financial assets at FVTPL 3,210 3,116
LA AEEFT A2 Decrease in profit for the year
SREEMBE TEE  as aresult decrease in price of
N 2R R financial assets at FVTPL (3,210) (3,116)
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3.2 FEREER AABMEEE 33.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
HE (&) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
BIRGEMBRRARIBRZAFE 33.7Fair value measurements recognised in the

i
TRAFAKMSRT AR RS
R RE IR R BB B 2 A R
B - IR IR R
135 A% BEAEMATZZER
RBERIED o DhBESEHR
FAHERT 2 G ABBRTIE
RRABBUT LA THM

— ERMEE: UE-RBAE
HEZ DR EE  BAERE
EREERHEAEERTS
o i) B 4R A

- B_AME:AFE-_RBWAE
AEZAREE MHEHBAE
ZAIBREHARARTEE R
WAE BEEEERAEILIF
ERTAEBRZH8E - TR 8
2l UNEVRIZ: N ¢ ]
E2E 2B A B

— FZAME:ERTAERH
BIFE2BRABAFAEZAR
BE

consolidated statement of financial position

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”.
The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in

the valuation technique as follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities at the measurement date.

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are

inputs for which market data are not available.

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using

significant unobservable inputs.

TREEXBEERRBESBEIAR The level in the fair value hierarchy within which
BREAZEXR  BEREAARE the financial asset or liability is categorised in its

AAEAAERER ZRERERE
N

entirety is based on the lowest level of input that is

significant to the fair value measurement.
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33.8RiEREER AABEERE 33.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

BER (&)

BIRGREMBRRRPEIAZAFE

33.7Fair value measurements recognised in the

=& (&) consolidated statement of financial position
(Continued)

REERABERFRAREFEZ The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair

TREERBERALBRESAE value in the consolidated statement of financial

wm position are grouped into the fair value hierarchy as

R-ZZB-—%XA=*H

BE

?Hﬂ 7\

o

NAEEFARRZ

TREE
RAEEEELM

PR 5 25

BARBEARM
EHREZEREE
(REBEHERBX)
KARE  EEBEBELE™

KARE  EEB
B £

B EHBELD

B AEABBEINET

follows:

At 30 June 2021
k2
Note

Assets
Financial assets at
FVTPL:
Listed equity securities
held for trading (a)
Financial assets
at FVTOCI
(before ECL):
Perpetual notes, listed
in Hong Kong (b)
Perpetual notes, listed
outside Hong Kong (b)
Debentures, listed in
Hong Kong (b)
Debentures, listed

outside Hong Kong (b)
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Level 1 Level 2 Total
TET THET T#ET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
32,101 - 32,101
- 115,252 115,252

- 4,822 4,822

- 3,303 3,303

- 37,834 37,834

32,101 161,211 193,312
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33.85iEMEER AABEERE 33.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

BUR (#) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
BIRGEMBRRARIBRZAFE 33.7Fair value measurements recognised in the
=& (&) consolidated statement of financial position

(Continued)

RZZE-_ZFA=+TH At30 )june 2020

H &
Note
BE Assets
AR BEF AEBZZ  Financial assets at
TREE : FVTPL:
BHEEEE LT Listed equity securities
I8 A 3% 5 held for trading (a)
REIE Short-term investment (c)
BARBETAEM Financial assets
EEREZ EREE at FVTOCI
(REFEHEREX) - (before ECL):
KAZERE  EEB L™ Perpetual notes, listed
in Hong Kong (b)
AR EHBIR Perpetual notes, listed
SN T outside Hong Kong (b)
E5 EEBLE™ Debentures, listed in
Hong Kong (b)
&% EEBEINET  Debentures, listed
outside Hong Kong (b)

REMEHETEE B F_EX

E—E EFE_E Bat
Level 1 Level 2 Total
AT FAT FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
31,168 - 31,168
426,878 426,878

— 123,174 123,174

- 4,418 4,418

- 4,495 4,495

- 58,617 58,617
31,168 617,582 648,750

F=EERE® - in the reporting period.

HEREREPRELER  EEARE
BEERNEM T ERRME A N

There has been no transfer among levels 1, 2 and 3

The methods and valuation techniques used for
the purpose of measuring fair value are unchanged

B o compared to the previous reporting periods.
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3.2 EERAAEEEE
R (48)
BIRGEUBRAXPERZAFME

8 ()

HeE -

(@)

EWREF

EmBEUNBTAE  AAEE
MEFE2ENBEAN LM

EHES

EHEHFUETEHE - AAEE
T2EZEHRREHHOREmMES
EoBBBFLFNEBREARRZ
HBEFVREHYERE 2
F¥33.2 ¢

RHRE

ARBEDZEENREBHE

BEFROABEREEREM

EE -

BIRAABETENESREENSH
EENAREE
REEAESBKAFTENEHITA
RAEEHEEHE T -_—FXA
“tTHHNARBEREEEZER -

33.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

33.7Fair value measurements recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position
(Continued)

Notes:

(@)

Listed equity securities held for trading

The listed equity securities are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars. Fair values have been determined by
reference to their quoted bid prices at the reporting

date.

Listed debt securities

The listed debt securities are denominated in United
States dollars. Fair values have been determined by
reference to their quoted bid prices at the reporting
date. Details of ECL on the listed debt securities are
set out in note 33.2 to the consolidated financial

statements.
Short-term investment
Fair values had been determined by reference to

the performance of the underlying assets of the

fluctuation of exchanges rate on the market.

33.8Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at

other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial

instruments carried at amortised cost are not

materially different from their fair value as at 30
June 2021.
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EXEHE

AR E I H B S DARE(R AR 5 A2 1A
BREEETARBRRRAMESIHE
A B F 25 F 4 45 BB B0 A AR A A
AR E AR A o

=[]
[s]

REFHABERGERE  AEBERE
BIRTERRZEE - #THRIHESR
B AREAE S ©

AREBEREBERMBL R - LR
BEFEGRAEEN - Fitt - NEER
BREFRALAEEARE (BRERAE
EREXRTHRBMERDABEE -
EEZLBERERATRER) BERITER
KB E - BERNRESEAVHRRRP
ERAEDRARE -

FAN - ARBEZERE  AZTTNFRE
HHRES BEBEERGBHLETE
B50%  — T —FR_FT-_FFAH
=t+RZEERBELEMAT :

BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

34.CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost

of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to

shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debts divided by
total capital. For this purpose, the Group defines net
debt as total borrowings (including current and non-
current interest-bearing borrowings and advances from
a director as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position) less bank balances and cash. Total
capital is equity as shown in the consolidated statement

of financial position.

During the year, the Group’s strategy, which was
unchanged since 2009, was to maintain a gearing ratio
of not more than 50%. The gearing ratio at 30 June
2021 and 2020 were as follows:
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BARIERE -

attributable to owners of the Company.
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EXEE (&) 34.CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)
—E-—F —B-FF
2021 2020
FET TETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 876,533 1,272,271
E-EAEN Advance from a director 112,632 170,182
EESE- Total borrowings 989,165 1,442,453
B RITFERNMIR S Less: bank balances and cash (1,988,157) (1,236,667)
(CFR) BaEFHE Net (cash)/debt (998,992) 205,786
BE N (HaE) Total capital (Note) 6,873,630 6,555,623
EERBHLE Gearing ratio FEA N/A 3.14%
K&t - BERBIEMEEARARARGEF Note: Total capital includes all capital and reserves
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35. & IE

(a)

(b)

BARARE

R¥E BN ERPYEZ EAE
ERR T IS EL REMEHRR P
B

EHEBEREL

EEMHE-RAEA
RIER  AEERBEMEEDS
BERUH Z AT - RARWE 2 &K
HE WA T

Contracted but not provided for

BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

35. COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments

Capital commitments in respect of properties
under development outstanding at the reporting
date not provided for in the consolidated financial
statements are as follows:

—E=-—F —EFTHF
2021 2020
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
412,090 291,419

(b) Operating lease commitments — as lessor

At the reporting date, the Group had future
aggregate minimum lease rental receipts under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of the
Group’s properties as follows:

—EBE-—F —EZEF

2021 2020

FTET TET

HK$’000 HK$"000

—FR Within one year 23,054 34,926
—FEREMFNR After 1 year but within 2 years 3,707 4,613
MEBRE=ZFNA After 2 year but within 3 years 325 503
27,086 40,042

AEBRBEEHELHHEHERR
BEYx (MaE14) P HRE A —
ERF - WADEERIIPBEARE
EEEHEFPETHERN R BETE
BEIRK - AR —REERBES
XfHRES - HEO I BEXER

S
Sl

The Group leases its investment properties (Note
14) under operating lease arrangements which
run for initial periods of one to five years, with an
option to renew the lease terms at the expiry date
or at dates as mutually agreed between the Group
and the respective tenants. The terms of the lease
generally also require the tenants to pay security
deposits. None of the leases include contingent
rentals.
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35. 74 (&) 35.
(0 BEHEE-BEHEA
R-ZE-—F<A=+8 A%
EEHEE Y HERE(ZE -8
F o ETREBON 2 BT RE

COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(c) Operating lease commitments — as lessee
As at 30 June 2021, the lease commitments for
short-term leases (2020: future minimum rental

payables under non-cancellable operating leases) of

MxEHES) AT : a warehouse of the Group are as follows:
—E-—F —E-FF
2021 2020
TET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
—F R Within one year 106 164
36. I FIERER 36.FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS OF

AARERBETETHEBERA®
MITHMEMBITELLARAER 2
% /1,065,920,000 (= —F F -
2,254,000,000/87T) - AR T - —4F
NA =+ H{# A A%865,920,000 (=
T =F4F 1 1,261,000,000/87C) © AR
HHH AREFRRMBATEEE
RAKATREEA - W MmBE AR A R
BRETHEEIFLHEE - BLERY
NABELTEE -

THE COMPANY

The Company has executed corporate guarantees
to banks in respect of banking facilities granted to
certain subsidiaries to the extent of HK$1,065,920,000
(2020: HK$2,254,000,000) of which HK$865,920,000
(2020: HK$1,261,000,000) was utilised as at 30 June
2021. At the reporting date, no provision for the
Company’s obligation under the guarantee contracts
have been made as the directors considered that it was
not probable that the repayment of the loans by the
subsidiaries would be in default. The fair value of these

guarantees was immaterial.

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED £t (%8) AR25 | Annual Report 2021 4£##



37.

w5 B B R R B A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEEERF

RIRER - NEBUA TR Z 2R
7718 B A865,000,0008 L (ZE=F
% :1,261,000,000/%8 7T) :

(i) AREENETREDE FHE
MERTHREFT  HEEES
B £3,179,059,000/%8 7T (=& =
T 4 :2,972,900,0007% ) (B 5F
14) 1,539,000 L (Z T =&
% 1,539,000 70) (Mi5E19) &
36,200,000 T (Z T ZF F :
36,400,000/ 7T) (MI5E15) 2 R
THRTT ©

(i) ATHBRRMAEEENMEGHER
I

(iii) SRITATFERMET,522,0008 70 (=
T —F4F 13,760,000 7T ) B 7EE
(M 5E22)

(iv) ATHBARZRMDEERFRT
(FisE18) 5

(v) BETYWENHE RS - RERWKE
He WA MR mHROIRE
)53

i) BARBEFAEMEZERS Z S
BhEE 161,211,000 ¢ (==
—ZE4 1 190,704,000 7T.) (M5
17) o

BE-FT-—4,B=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

37.PLEDGE OF ASSETS
At the reporting date, the Group’s total bank borrowings
of HK$865,000,000 (2020: HK$1,261,000,000) were

secured by the following:

(i) legal charges on certain of the Group’s investment
properties, properties held for sales and land and
building with carrying values of approximately
HK$3,179,059,000 (2020: HK$2,972,900,000)
(Note 14), HK$1,539,000 (2020: HK$1,539,000)
(Note 19) and HK$36,200,000 (2020:
HK$36,400,000) (Note 15) respectively;

(ii) floating charge over all the assets and undertakings

of certain subsidiaries;

(iii) charge over certain bank account balances with
carrying values of approximately HK$1,522,000
(2020: HK$3,760,000) (Note 22);

(iv) mortgages over the shares of certain subsidiaries
(Note 18);

(v) assignments of sale proceeds, insurance proceeds,
rental income and deposits arising from the tenancy

agreements of certain properties; and
(vi) financial assets at FVTOCI of approximately

HK$161,211,000 (2020: HK$190,704,000) (Note
17).
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3. BEE

MNZTEZFTFtHA=+—H ' Empresa
Industrial De Construcao Limited
([Empresa Industrial |) M 22 7] K&
RAVEFRRFD - FAARFEA R
#11,347,0007T (42 E 7 4911,017,000
BIT)  SMFAEER B T FEITIE
RMHARTS o B F MEmpresa Industriali2
% 5 £92,610,00002 FF 7T (18 F R 49
2,534,000/87C) - AZEEEHHE B A
® R EE ©

ARERER B - RIBAREEFAAR
BER EFeRAR LB REAMK
B AR T EH AR ENGRE MR
REFTBBATHEE - At - WHELE
e B -

38.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

On 31 July 2020, Empresa Industrial De Construcao
Limitda (“Empresa Industrial”) commenced a court case
against Top Regent, a subsidiary of the Company, for an
amount of approximately MOP11,347,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$11,017,000), plus interest, in
respect of a provision of services for land levelling
works. Top Regent counterclaimed Empresa Industrial
for an amount of approximately MOP2,610,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,534,000). The date
of first hearing of this case is not yet confirm as at the

date of this report.

Based on the legal advice obtained by the Group, the
Board is of the opinion that the above mentioned claim
has no merit and the lawsuit will not have a material
adverse effect on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group. Accordingly, no provision is considered

necessary.
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2N E
AZEZ—FRA

ES

Property

EEHRABLIEE

SR (H)

Scenic Crest

Mui Wo

Lantau Island
New Territories

Hong Kong (Portion)

BBRBT A EES0R
HRIEE (1)

South View Garden

80 Shek Pai Wan Road,
Aberdeen, Hong Kong

(Portion)

BEH% ME200%:

#78 (31)

Villa Cecil 200 Victoria
Road, Hong Kong (Portion)

BR B E30%
gl (317)

Cheuk Nang Lookout,

30 Severn Road, The Peak,
Hong Kong (Portion)

=+H

W&

Lot no.

4871638

716in D D. 4

H8:184, 185, 186, 187
188, 189, 1901915
AL 184,185, 186,187
188, 189, 190 &191

R £ 833857BEL
LR R
Sec. B of I.L. 8338 & Ext.

MR EEN 10675

R.B.L. 1067

COMPLETED PROPERTIES
As at 30 June 2021

WREH

Government

lease term
(F)

(years)

FHHE1992F 1
554
55 from 1992

B 18865 £51999F

999 from 1888

H1922F 5t
75EETSE
75 + 75 from 1922

M1992F B 355F

55 from 1992

il

Type

A%/ %

Commercial /

Residential

BE/ %

Commercial /

Residential

Residential

B#E
AREER
Total
approved
gross

floor area
(FAR)
(s.f)

3,892

3,892

6,683

6,683

LS
BREEE
Total
marketable
gross

floor area
(FER)
(s.f)

3,903

3,903

12,500

12,500

FEMER

Schedule of Major Properties

Car parking

spaces

BE-FT-—47A=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Frf &
RS

% owned

100

100

100
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Schedule of Major Properties

BE-FE-—4,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

2 & B3 (

)

R-ZE-_—FXA=+H

e

Property
BEASTIEINNR
#E—H

F— ZRZE(HH)
Villa 1, Villa 2 and Villa 3,

Villa Cecil, Phase II,
192 Victoria Road,
Hong Kong (Portion)

BRESMEN6H

BRE-HE-ERE_E

Tower 1 and 2,

Villa Cecil, Phase IIl,
216 Victoria Road,
Hong Kong

BEAE
BRAZTERTD

BEKS0250BE (517)

Parkview
Lorong Perak
50250 Kuala Lumpur

Malaysia (Portion)

SRR

AYIEREZR ()

Cheuk Nang Garden
Longhwa, Longgang,

Shenzhen (Portion)

&

Lot no.

B 2441

I.L. 2441

AL R215%

LR R
R.B.L. 215 & Ext from

F13595 18

(RITEPT77HEL) 578

Section 57, Lot 1359
(formerly Lot PT77),
Section 57

TH%EA819-0128

Lot No A819-0128

COMPLETED PROPERTIES (Continued)
As at 30 June 2021

WREH

Government

lease term
(F)

(years)

H1923F # st
7SEETSE

75 + 75 from 1923

H1922F 5t

75EETSE

75 + 75 from 1922

KAEE

Freehold

H2004F #70F

70 from 2004

£

Type

Residential

Residential

Residential

B%/Ex

Commercial /

Residential
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[5319;:
AEEER
Total
approved
gross

floor area
(FER)
(s.f)

33,272

33,272

73,292

73,292

27,236

27,236

429,343

429,343

CL
AREER
Total
marketable
gross

floor area
(FAR)
(s.f)

44,857

44,857

97,000

97,000

Car parking

spaces

20

20

21

21

1,054

1,054

AL
AR R

% owned



BREPYE
R-ZE-_—FXA=+H

Property

ERNRIE
BEEETN
Ll
One Kowloon Peak
8 Po Fung Terrace,
Ting Kau, Tsuen Wan

Cecil Central Residence
EXEE
RESMERA
500508

Cecil Central

Residence Lorong
Perak 50250,

Kuala Lumpur Malaysia

BARERHE
Estrada de
Seac Pai Van

B&

Lot no.

BT BRI

Tsuen Wan Town
Lot 352

E11385 113665
BRESTR

Section 57,
Lot 11385 and 11386

M05FHE
Lot No 21202

E33

Government
[ease term

(#)

(years)

H1991F 3t
56

56 from 1991

Ve

Freehold

B0 ERH10E

10 from 2011

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

As at 30 June 2021

WERE  wEAEE
Typet Site area
(F5R)
()
fiz 39,999
Residential 39,999
BE/h 6,630
Commercial/ 88,638
Residential
B3/l 97597
Commercial/ 97,597
Residential

BHE
BEEER
Total
approved
gross

floor area
(FAR)
)

83,99

83,99

5%

1,706,048

Phase 2
1,708,048

1,676,000
1,676,000

18
BEEEE
Total
marketable
gross

floor area
(F7%)
(s

113,388

113,366

g

Car
parking
spaces

70

70

867

867

1,031
1,031

fia

% owned

100

100

100

100

7169
71.69

Schedule of Major Properties

BE-FT-—47A=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

BiIR
RS

Stage of
completion
date

2022

2002

Not yet
determined

BfiE
Not yet
determined

R=%=-%
~AZTH
EIfR

Development
asat 30/6/2021

E-HRERNE
EliZ-_H0E
BHANRS

Atotal of 11 units of
Phase 1 were sold

The Occupation Permit

of Phase 2 has been issued

FENCERRLE

New plans are
approved by the
government authoriies

FaahneRcER
Application for new land
lease has been submitted
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Schedule of Major Properties

BE-FE-—4,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

HRPYEE)

R_B-_—FXA=TH

UES 18 BREH
Government
Property Lot no. lease term
(%)
(years)
Hi RMXEORR  B07EEHS0F
BERMI £ 45
New Villa Cecil Lot No. 1848 50 from 2007
Shui Hang, Cheung Chau, - D.D. Cheung Chau
Hong Kong
AR SREZNE (% @009F
M E FRRUEEE  2ABRENE
X H000F
1AL REHE
Cheuk Nang * Riverside Yu  Chong Xian Zhen North ~ Residential
Hang District Hangzhou  of Chong Hang Jie West 70 years from
of Yan Shan Gang 25/12/2009
Commercial
40 years from
2501202009
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BaRE

Type*

Residential

Residential/
Commercial

HELER

Site area
(F5R)

()
11,751

111,751

350,847

350,647

Bk
BREER
Total
approved
gross

floor area

(F5R)
(s
41,088

41,088

1,096,561

1,09%,561

g
BREER
Total
marketable
gross

floor area
(F7R)
(s

58,291

58,291

Efi

Car
parking
spaces

778

778

i
ERR:

% owned

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
(Continued)
As at 30 June 2021

i

BitIE RAZTH

nRAS BIfR
Stage of

completion Development

date asat 30/6/2021

um F-HAEERL
FEIETR

Exi hEECERY
2022 The Occupation Permit of
Phase [ was issued.

The superstructure of Phase Il

has been completed and a Fire
Certificate has been issued

200 TRETN:
BREEDARY

FEEf®

2002 The construction

is completed. Inspection by
the Government authorties
isin progress
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